
      
N OTIC E AN D  AGEN D AN OTIC E AN D  AGEN D A  

 
PLAN N IN G &  ZON IN G C OMMISSIONPLAN N IN G &  ZON IN G C OMMISSION
WED N ESD AYWED N ESD AY
APR IL 24, 2024APR IL 24, 2024

 C OU N C IL C H AMBER SC OU N C IL C H AMBER S
211 WEST ASPEN  AVEN U E211 WEST ASPEN  AVEN U E

             4 :00 P .M.             4 :00 P .M.

To partic ipate in  the meeting vi rtual ly use the fo l low ing l ink:To partic ipate in  the meeting vi rtual ly use the fo l low ing l ink:  

Join the Meeting Onl ineJoin the Meeting Onl ine  

Planning &  Zoning C ommission meetings w i l l  be l ive streamed on the ci ty w ebsi teP lanning &  Zoning C ommission meetings w i l l  be l ive streamed on the ci ty w ebsi te
((https://w w w .flagstaff.az.gov/1461/S treaming-C i ty-C ounci l -Meetingshttps://w w w .flagstaff.az.gov/1461/S treaming-C i ty-C ounci l -Meetings ))

The publ ic can submit comments that w i l l  be read at the dais by a staff member toThe publ ic can submit comments that w i l l  be read at the dais by a staff member to
C D PandZC ommission@flagstaffaz.govC D PandZC ommission@flagstaffaz.gov

      
1.1. CALL TO ORDERCALL TO ORDER

NOTICE OF OPTION TO RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSIONNOTICE OF OPTION TO RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION
  
Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the Commission and to the
general public that, at this work session, the Commission may vote to go into executive session,
which will not be open to the public, for legal advice and discussion with the Commission's attorneys
for legal advice on any item listed on the following agenda, pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3).

  

 

2.2. ROLL CALLROLL CALL
 
NOTE: One or more Commission Members may be in attendance telephonically or by other
technological means.
  
CAROLE MANDION, VICE CHAIR
BOB HARRIS III
CARLTON JOHNSON
CJ LUCKE

IAN SHARP
MARY NORTON
MEGAN WELLER
 

  

 

3.3. PUBLIC COMMENTPUBLIC COMMENT

At this time, any member of the public may address the Commission on any subject within their
jurisdiction that is not scheduled before the Commission on that day. Due to Open Meeting Laws,
the Commission cannot discuss or act on items presented during this portion of the agenda. To
address the Commission on an item that is on the agenda, please wait for the Chair to call for Public
Comment at the time the item is heard.

  

 

4.4. APPROVAL OF MINUTESAPPROVAL OF MINUTES
Approval of the minutes from the regular meeting on Wednesday, March 27, 2024.

  

 

5.5. PUBLIC HEARINGPUBLIC HEARING   

 

A.A. Public Hearing:Public Hearing: PZ-24-00013: Pine Canyon Lot 344, Single-Family HOH
A Conditional Use Permit request from Hugh McMahon on behalf of Two Hawks Design and
Development to allow a Single-Family High Occupancy Housing Development in the Single-Family
Residential (R1) Zone at 2911 South Solitaires Canyon Drive in the Estates at Pine Canyon Unit 5
subdivision. The proposal is for a 5,165 square foot new-build single-family residence with 5
bedrooms, 5.5 bathrooms and a 1,042 square foot attached garage on approximately 0.76 acres.

 

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/ap/t-59584e83/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fteams.microsoft.com%2Fl%2Fmeetup-join%2F19%253ameeting_MzEyOTcwYWYtZWVhNy00ZTMxLWE3YTAtNjU1MDJhNzAyNjU3%2540thread.v2%2F0%3Fcontext%3D%257b%2522Tid%2522%253a%25225da727b9-fb88-48b4-aa07-2a40088a046d%2522%252c%2522Oid%2522%253a%252245b8a659-c639-43cc-90e4-3cdfc843a807%2522%257d&data=05%7C02%7Canjel.johns%40flagstaffaz.gov%7C67478c4e7bcb482d894e08dc60a1bd77%7C5da727b9fb8848b4aa072a40088a046d%7C0%7C0%7C638491494997296217%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=8T4DWp%2BRyp35WeqbiN%2BN5OcO2tB2IitpZppa9eDYy4Y%3D&reserved=0
https://www.flagstaff.az.gov/1461/Streaming-City-Council-Meetings
mailto:CDPandZCommission@flagstaffaz.gov
https://public.destinyhosted.com/agenda_publish.cfm?id=35247&mt=ALL&get_month=3&get_year=2024&dsp=min&seq=3986


STAFF RECOMMENDED ACTION:STAFF RECOMMENDED ACTION:
 In accordance with the findings presented in this report, Staff recommends approval of PZ-24-00013

with the following condition:
1) The development of the site shall substantially conform to the plans as presented with the
Conditional Use Permit application.

 

6.6. GENERAL BUSINESSGENERAL BUSINESS   

 

A.A. Juniper Point Parcel 2 Preliminary Plat PZ-22-00192-01Juniper Point Parcel 2 Preliminary Plat PZ-22-00192-01  
JP325, LLC requests Preliminary Plat approval for Juniper Point, Parcel 2, located at 2000 John
Wesley Powell Boulevard, a single-family subdivision of 62 lots on 17.54 (gross) or 11.36 (net) acres
in the RR (Rural Residential) Zone utilizing the Planned Residential Development (PRD) option. 
 

 STAFF RECOMMENDED ACTION:STAFF RECOMMENDED ACTION:
 Staff recommends the Planning & Zoning Commission, in accordance with the findings

presented in this report, forward the Preliminary Plat to the City Council with a recommendation
of approval, given the conditions outlined in the Staff Report. 

 

B.B. Land Availability and Suitability Study and Code Analysis Project (LASS+CAP) ProjectLand Availability and Suitability Study and Code Analysis Project (LASS+CAP) Project
Update and DiscussionUpdate and Discussion
 

 

Discussion item only
 

7.7. GENERAL BUSINESS:GENERAL BUSINESS:   

 

A.A. Appointment of Chair and Vice ChairAppointment of Chair and Vice Chair   

 

8.8. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS TO/FROM COMMISSION MEMBERSMISCELLANEOUS ITEMS TO/FROM COMMISSION MEMBERS   

 

9.9. ADJOURNMENTADJOURNMENT   

 

CERTIFICATE OF POSTING OF NOTICE

The undersigned hereby certifies that a copy of the foregoing notice was duly posted at Flagstaff City Hall on                      , at                a.m./p.m.
This notice has been posted on the City's website and can be downloaded at www.flagstaff.az.gov.

Dated this               day of                                       , 2024. 

__________________________________________
Alaxandra Pucciarelli, Commission Liaison                                          

http://www.flagstaff.az.gov


  
Planning & Zoning CommissionPlanning & Zoning Commission 5. A. 5.  A.             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 04/24/2024  
From:From: Dustin Stiffler, Associate Planner

InformationInformation
TITLE:TITLE:
Public Hearing:Public Hearing: PZ-24-00013: Pine Canyon Lot 344, Single-Family HOH
A Conditional Use Permit request from Hugh McMahon on behalf of Two Hawks Design and Development to
allow a Single-Family High Occupancy Housing Development in the Single-Family Residential (R1) Zone at
2911 South Solitaires Canyon Drive in the Estates at Pine Canyon Unit 5 subdivision. The proposal is for a
5,165 square foot new-build single-family residence with 5 bedrooms, 5.5 bathrooms and a 1,042 square foot
attached garage on approximately 0.76 acres.

STAFF RECOMMENDED ACTION:STAFF RECOMMENDED ACTION:
In accordance with the findings presented in this report, Staff recommends approval of PZ-24-00013 with the
following condition:

1) The development of the site shall substantially conform to the plans as presented with the Conditional
Use Permit application.

AttachmentsAttachments
Staff Report
Draft Conditional Use Permit No. PZ-24-00013
Draft Notice of Decision
Draft Prop 207 Waiver
Conditional Use Permit Application
Narrative
Public Participation Report
Vicinity Map
Site Plan
Floor Plans
Elevations



1  

 PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 

 
 

PZ-24-00013            DATE:  April 3, 2024 
                   MEETING DATE:  April 24, 2024
      REPORT BY:  Dustin Stiffler 

               
REQUEST: 
A Conditional Use Permit request from Hugh McMahon on behalf of Two Hawks Design and Development to allow a High 
Occupancy Housing Development, Single-Family in the Single-Family Residential (R1) Zone at 2911 South Solitaires Canyon Drive 
in the Estates at Pine Canyon Unit 5 subdivision. The proposal is for a 5,165 square foot new-build single-family residence with 
5 bedrooms, 5.5 bathrooms and a 1,042 square foot attached garage on approximately 0.76 acres. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

In accordance with the findings presented in this report, Staff recommends approval of PZ-24-00013 with conditions. 
 

1. The development of the site shall substantially conform to the plans as presented with the Conditional Use Permit 
application. 
 

PRESENT LAND USE: 
The subject property is currently vacant and is a recorded lot in the platted Estates at Pine Canyon Unit 5 subdivision in Pine 
Canyon. 
 
PROPOSED LAND USE: 
The submitted floor plan meets the minimum threshold of five bathrooms, which is considered a High Occupancy Housing 
Development, Single-Family. The proposed land use will remain residential as a single-family dwelling that is viewed per the 
Flagstaff Zoning Code as High Occupancy Housing.  
 
NEIGHBORHOOD DEVELOPMENT: 
Property is within the Estates at Pine Canyon community. 
 
North: Single-Family Dwelling, R1 Zone 
South: Single-Family Dwelling, R1 Zone 
East: Single-Family Dwelling, R1 Zone 
West: Single-Family Dwelling, R1 Zone 
 
 

 
STAFF REVIEW: 
 
I. Project Information 
 

A. Background 
Section 10-40.30.030.B of the Flagstaff Zoning Code, Residential Zones - Allowed Uses, identifies “ High 
Occupancy Housing Development, Single-Family” as an allowed land use in the Single-Family Residential (R1) Zone 
subject to the approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) by the Planning Commission. Adopted on November 
17, 2020, and effective on March 21, 2021, the High Occupancy Housing Development (HOHD) Zoning Code 
standards require that a Single-Family Dwelling with seven or more bedrooms and/or five or more sanitation 
facilities, obtain a Conditional Use Permit before a building permit can be issued. 



 

PZ-24-00013 | April 24, 2024 

 
 

On January 12, 2024, an application for a 5-bedroom, 5.5-bathroom, single-family residence was submitted for 
a CUP for a Single-Family Dwelling in the Estates at Pine Canyon Unit 5 subdivision. The approximately 29.95-
acre residential subdivision contains 47 lots and has a density of 1.6 units per acre. The subdivision is located 
along South Clubhouse Circle within the Pine Canyon golf club. The lot will be accessible from South Solitaires 
Canyon Drive, which can be accessed from East Byrds View Drive via South Clubhouse Circle. The lots that have 
been developed contain large, estate-style homes. The entire subdivision is subject to Resource Protection 
standards, but it is not located in a Pedestrian Shed of an Activity Center as depicted in the Regional Plan. 

 
Section 10-40.60.175 of the Flagstaff Zoning Code contains additional standards for HOHD. The structure is 
also required to be at least 10 feet or one third of the height of the building from any other structures 
on the parcel or on adjacent parcels. This results in a minimum separation of 11.9 feet, based on the 
approved height of the building at 35 feet and 8.94 inches. The structure will utilize a roof system sloped at 
12:6 or greater which allows for an additional 5 feet in height beyond the R1 Zone standard of 35 feet. As a single-
family HOHD, the structure must also meet the additional parking requirements of one parking space per 
bedroom. A building permit for the existing on-site parking is adequate to meet this requirement. 

 
B. Required Findings 

The Planning Commission may approve the CUP only after making the following five findings: 
 

i. Finding #1: 

The conditional use is consistent with the objectives of the Zoning Code and the purpose of the Zone in which 

the site is located. 
 

“The Single-Family Residential (R1) zone applies to areas of the City intended for single-family residential 
development. The affordable and planned residential development options in this zone are intended to 
provide design flexibility for residential development and more efficient and effective use of open space, while 
creating transitional areas into nonresidential or higher density residential zones and protecting areas with 
sensitive environmental characteristics.”  
(FZC 10-40.30.030) 

 
The R1 Zone allows HOHD uses with the granting of a CUP. The primary reason for the Conditional Use Permit 
is to protect the uses that are allowed by right which may be incompatible with HOHD. 
 

ii. Finding #2 

That granting the conditional use will not be detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare. 
 

If the proposed project is developed in accordance with City codes, standards and requirements, the project 

should not be detrimental to the public health, safety, or welfare. 
  



 
 

PZ-24-00013 | April 24, 2024 

 

- 3 – 

 

iii. Finding #3 

The characteristics of the conditional use as proposed, and as it may be conditioned, are reasonably compatible 
with the types of uses permitted in the surrounding area. The CUP shall be issued only when the Planning 
Commission finds that the Applicant has considered and adequately addressed the following to ensure that the 
proposed use will be compatible with the surrounding area (FZC 10-20.40.050.E.3): 

• Access, traffic, and pedestrian, bicycle and vehicular circulation; 

• Adequacy of site and open space provisions, including resource protection standards, 

where applicable; 

• Noise, light, visual and other pollutants; 

• Proposed style and siting of structure(s), and relationship to the surrounding neighborhood; 

• Landscaping and screening provisions, including additional landscaping in excess of 

otherwise applicable minimum requirements; 

• Impact on public utilities; 

• Signage and outdoor lighting; 

• Dedication and development of streets adjoining the property; and 

• Impacts on historical, prehistoric or natural resources. 

 

a. Access and Traffic; Pedestrian, Bicycle and Vehicular Circulation 
Access to the site is provided from South Woodland Hills Drive. The proposed use will have minimal impact on 
traffic circulation. A Traffic Impact Analysis is not required of a single private residence which would only see 
traffic from the home’s occupants. Single-family HOHD is required to provide one off-street parking space per 
bedroom. This development is proposing s i x  bedrooms; on-site parking is provided for at least six vehicles 
which is easily accommodated in the three-car garage and ample driveway. 

 

b. Adequacy of Site/Open Space/Resource Provisions 
A Resource Protection Plan was provided when the subdivision was platted. T h e  a p p l i c a n t  s t a t e s  
t h a t  t he subject property has a 7,207 sq. ft. building envelope. The construction proposed for this request 
will be within the permitted building envelope and tree removal will only occur within the approved building 
envelope. 

 

c. Noise, Light, Visual and Other Pollutants 
It is not anticipated that the proposed uses for the site will create any noise, visual or other pollutants into 
the area. The site is well maintained. 

 

d. Style and Siting of Structure(s), and Relationship to Surrounding Neighborhood 

The architectural style, colors and materials along with the siting of the structure are consistent with the existing 
residences within Pine Canyon. 

 

e. Landscaping and Screening 

Landscaping provisions do not apply to construction of a new single-family dwelling.  

(FZC 10-50.60.020.C) 
 

f. Impact on Public Utilities 
The site proposes to connect to existing City sewer and water services.  No new off-site improvements are 
required to support this use. 
 

g. Signage and Outdoor Lighting 
All exterior lighting will be required to comply with the City of Flagstaff’s strict outdoor lighting requirements 



 
 

PZ-24-00013 | April 24, 2024 

 

- 4 – 

 

which support and maintain our designation as an International Dark Sky City. Section 10-50.70: Outdoor 
Lighting Standards of the Zoning Code allows single-family residences to have a combined max imum o f  
up to 5 ,000 lumens of outdoor lighting (if using non-LED bulbs) or 6,993 lumens of outdoor lighting if 
all lighting is using LED bulbs. All outdoor lighting fixtures must be fully or partially shielded; no unshielded 
fixtures are allowed. Single-family residential building permits do not require a separate Outdoor Lighting 
Permit. 

 

h. Dedication and Development of Streets 
No dedication or development of public streets is required.  All public right of way was dedicated when the 
subdivision was platted. 

 

i. Impacts on Resources 
This site is not currently listed on any state or federal historic registry, nor does the site have any other 
historical significance. The site is located within the Resource Protection Overlay Zone; the proposed 
development fits within the development envelope formed with the Estates at Pine Canyon Unit 5 subdivision 
plat which adequately addresses resource protection requirements. 

 
iv. Finding #4 

For the properties subject to Division 10-30.30, Heritage Preservation, the City’s Historic Preservation Officer 
or the Heritage Preservation Commission has made a determination that the proposed HOHD or MHOHD has 
no adverse effect or has appropriately mitigated its effects on the historic cultural resource. 

 
This property is not subject to Division 10-30.30; therefore, this criterion is not applicable. 

 
v. Finding #5 

Adequate transit service is available to the Development Site containing four dwelling units or more. Adequate 

transit service from a Development Site to a permanent transit stop is: 
 

a. Less than or equal to 1,320 feet; or 
 

b. A distance greater than 1,320 feet when the Planning and Zoning Commission finds that the 
route to the permanent transit stop has adequate nighttime lighting and does not have a significant 
grade change, and the distance does not impede reasonable access to transit. 

 
 

The distance between the permanent transit stop to the Development Site shall be measured following a 

continuously improved sidewalk and/or public paved trail. This proposed Conditional Use Permit is for an HOHD, 

Single-Family; as such, this criterion is not applicable. 
 
C. Citizen Participation 

The applicant notified nearby property owners within 300 feet of the subject site of this application via 

mailer in-lieu of holding a virtual or in-person neighborhood meeting. As of the date of this report, Staff has 

received one comment, which stated that the resident is in full support of the CUP. 
  



 
 

PZ-24-00013 | April 24, 2024 

 

- 5 – 

 

D. Recommendation 

In accordance with the findings presented in this report, Staff recommends that the request for the CUP be 
granted by the Planning and Zoning Commission with the requirements included in Conditional Use Permit 
No. PZ-23-00125 and as follows: 

 

1. The development of the site shall substantially conform to the plans as presented with the 

Conditional Use Permit application. 
 
E. Attachments 

The draft documents have been prepared in accordance with the Staff recommendation and do not indicate the 
Commission’s final decision. These documents will be updated after the public hearing on this case to reflect the 
Commission’s decision. 

 

• Draft Conditional Use Permit No. PZ-24-00013 

• Draft Notice of Decision 

• Draft Prop 207 Waiver 

• Conditional Use Permit Application 

o Narrative 

o Public Participation Report 

o Vicinity Map 

o Site Plan  

o Floor Plans 

o Elevations 

 

 



 
 

COCONINO COUNTY, ARIZONA RECORDER 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 

FROM GRANTOR: CITY OF FLAGSTAFF 
COCONINO COUNTY, ARIZONA 

OFFICE OF PLANNING AND ZONING 
TO GRANTEE: PC 344 HOLDINGS LLC 

 
 

Permit No. PZ-24 -00013 

April 24, 2024 
 
 

Permission is hereby granted to PC 344 Holdings LLC to establish a High Occupancy Housing 
Development, Single-Family use pursuant to Section 10-40.30.030.B of the Flagstaff Zoning Code. 
The High Occupancy Housing Development, Single-Family consists of 5,165 square feet with 5 
bedrooms and 5.5 bathrooms on approximately 0.76 acres located at 2911 South Solitaires 
Canyon Drive in the Single-Family Residential (R1) Zone, and legally described as Coconino County 
Assessor parcel number 105-10-471 in the city of Flagstaff, Arizona. 

 

After a public hearing held on April 24, 2024, the Planning and Zoning Commission voted to 
grant this Conditional Use Permit subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. The development of the site shall substantially conform to the plans as presented with the 

Conditional Use Permit application. 
 

Furthermore, this permit is issued on the express condition that the use permitted herein shall 
conform in all relevant respects to the ordinances of the City of Flagstaff and the laws of the State 
of Arizona. 

 
Any and all conditions endorsed on this permit are subject to periodic review by the City of 
Flagstaff’s Planning Director. Following review, the Planning and Zoning Commission shall be 
notified when the conditions of operation imposed in the approval and issuance of this permit 
have not been or are not being complied with. 

 

The Planning and Zoning Commission shall consider the matter of revocation and set the permit 
for public hearing. If the Planning and Zoning Commission finds, following the public hearing, that 
the conditions imposed in the issuance of this permit are not being complied with, this permit 
may be revoked and further operation of the use for which this permit was approved shall 
constitute a violation of the Zoning Code. 



Permit No. PZ-24 -00013 
April 24, 2024 
Page 2 of 3 

 

 

This Conditional Use Permit shall become null and void one (1) year from the effective date of 
April 24, 2024, unless the following shall have occurred: 

 

1. A building permit has been issued and construction begun and diligently pursued; or 
2. The approved use has been established; or 
3. An extension has been granted by the Planning and Zoning Commission.  Such extension shall 

be for a maximum of one hundred eighty (180) days and no extension may be granted which 
would extend the validity of the permit more than eighteen (18) months beyond the date of 
approval of the permit. 

4. Property Owner shall sign Consent to Conditions/Waiver for Diminution of Value form as a 
condition of issuance of the Conditional Use Permit by the City. 

5. Development of the use shall not be carried out until the applicant has secured all other 
permits and approvals required by the Zoning Code, the City, or applicable regional, State, 
and federal agencies. 

 
This document  does modify, or   X   does not modify the provisions of a previous Conditional 
Use Permit recorded in docket  , Office of the Coconino County, Arizona, Recorder. 

 
 
         

   Planning Director, City of Flagstaff 
 
 

By:     

Applicant (if other than the property owner) 
 
 

STATE OF ARIZONA ) 
)  ss 

County of   ) 
 

Before me,  the undersigned  Notary Public,  personally appeared  who 
executed the foregoing document for the purposes contained therein. 

 
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this  day of  , 2023. 

 
 
 

Notary Public 
 

My Commission expires:    
 

 

 

By:     

Property Owner 



Permit No. PZ-24 -00013 
April 24, 2024 
Page 3 of 3 

 

 
 

STATE OF ARIZONA ) 
) ss 

County of   ) 
 

Before me, the undersigned Notary Public, personally appeared  who 
executed the foregoing document for the purposes contained therein. 

 
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this  day of  , 2023. 

 
 
 

Notary Public 
 

My Commission expires:    



 

 

 

 

 

 

City of Flagstaff 
 

 

 

April 24, 2024 
 

Mr. Hugh McMahon 
Two Hawks Design and Development 

3050 North 44th Street 

Phoenix, AZ 65018 
 

RE: NOTICE OF DECISION – Conditional Use Permit No. PZ-24-00013  

Dear Mr. McMahon, 

The Planning Commission, in accordance with Section 10-20.40.050 of the Flagstaff Zoning Code, has considered 
the request of PC7 Holdings, LLC for a Conditional Use Permit on the property at 2911 South Solitaires Canyon Drive 
(APN 105-10-471) in the Residential Single-Family (R1) Zoning District for a High Occupancy Housing Development, 
Single-Family as provided in Table 10-40.30.030.B of the City of Flagstaff Zoning Code. 

 

The Planning Commission held a public hearing on April 24, 2024, in regard to this Conditional Use Permit.  The 
Commission found and determined that, based on the information provided in the staff report dated April 15, 2024, 
and at the public hearing, the facts exist as required by Section 10-20.40.050.F of the Zoning Code to justify granting 
the Conditional Use Permit. 

 

Based upon the aforementioned findings, the Commission approved a Conditional Use Permit by a vote of (7-0) for 
the use and location described above subject to the following conditions: 

 

1. The development of the site shall substantially conform to the plans as presented with the Conditional Use 
Permit application. 

2. The property owner shall maintain compliance with the Flagstaff Police Department’s Crime Free Multi-
Housing Program, unless exempted by the Police Department’s representative. 

 
The above condition(s) is deemed by the Commission to be required to assure that the requested use will be 
compatible with neighboring uses and the growth and development of the area. 

 
This action becomes final and effective ten (10) calendar days after the posting of this Notice of Decision on 
May 4, 2023, unless during these ten (10) days a written appeal to the City Clerk is filed or the City Council elects 
to review the application. Either appeal or City Council review shall stay the Conditional Use Permit until the City 
Council holds the required public hearing to consider the request. 

 
Please do not hesitate to contact me with any questions, comments, or concerns.  

Sincerely, 

Dustin Stiffler, Associate Planner 
Community Development 
211 W Aspen Ave 
Flagstaff, AZ  86001 
(928) 213-2613 
Dustin.Stiffler@flagstaffaz.gov 

 
cc: Planning Director, City Clerk, City Council 

 
 

211 West Aspen Avenue, Flagstaff, Arizona 86001 



When recorded, mail to: 

City Clerk 

City of Flagstaff 

211 W. Aspen Avenue 

Flagstaff, Arizona 86001 

 

CONSENT TO CONDITIONS/WAIVER FOR DIMINUTION OF VALUE 

 

The undersigned is the owner of certain real property legally described as Coconino County 

Assessor parcel number 105-10-471 in the City of Flagstaff, Arizona that is the subject of 

Conditional Use Permit Application No. PZ-24-00013. By signing this document, the undersigned 

agrees and consents to all of the conditions imposed by the City of Flagstaff in conjunction with 

the approval of Conditional Use Permit No. PZ-24-00013 and waives and fully releases any and all 

claims and causes of action that the owner may have, now or in the future, for any “diminution in 

value” and for any “just compensation” under the Private Property Rights Protection Act, Arizona 

Revised Statutes § 12-1131, et seq., that may now or in the future exist as a result of the approval 

of Conditional Use Permit No. PZ-24-00013. Within ten (10) days after the execution of this 

Consent to Conditions/Waiver for Diminution of Value by the undersigned, the City Clerk shall 

cause this document to be recorded in the official records of Coconino County, Arizona. 

 

Dated this          day of  , 2024 

 

PROPERTY OWNER: 
 

 

 

Print Name 
 

 

 

Sign Name 
 

State of Arizona ) 

) ss 

County of  ) 
 

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this  day of  , 2024, by: 
 

 

 

 

 
 

Notary Public 

 

My commission expires:     





Conditional Use Permits (CUP) 

Conditional uses are those uses which are presumed to be compatible with other authorized or permitted land uses in a zoning district; 
but require additional discretionary review, and possibly the imposition of conditions, to ensure that their location, design, and character 
are appropriate at a particular location.  Only those uses which are authorized as conditional uses in Chapters 10-40 (Specific to Zones), 
may be approved as conditional uses.  Further information regarding conditional uses and the CUP process can be found in Section 10-
20.40.050 (Conditional Uses) of the Zoning Code. 

Review 

Requests for CUP are reviewed by the City’s Planning and Zoning Commission (P&Z), an advisory commission appointed by the City 
Council.  A public hearing is held in conjunction with the request in conformance with Section 10-20.30.080 of the Zoning Code.  Just 
before the public hearing is opened, Development Services staff presents its report to the P&Z, and the applicant is given an 
opportunity to make a presentation regarding the request.  During the public hearing, any person may give testimony or submit written 
materials regarding the proposal.  At the conclusion of the public hearing, the P&Z may approve the application as presented, approve 
the application with conditions, or deny the application.  The P&Z may also continue the public hearing to a future meeting if additional 
information is needed before action can be taken.  P&Z meetings are open to the public in compliance with the State’s Open Meeting 
Law, and agendas are posted at City Hall no less than 24 hours prior to the meeting.  Minutes are kept of all P&Z meetings. 

Schedule 

The Planning and Zoning Commission meets on the second and fourth Wednesday of every month at 4:00 p.m. in the afternoon.  An 
application for a CUP must be made by the close of business at least 30 calendar days prior to a regularly scheduled P&Z meeting. 
Please be aware that a project must receive formal Site Plan Review approval from the Planning Director before a CUP application can 
be submitted. 

Attendance by the applicant or a project representative at the Planning and Zoning Commission hearing is mandatory. 

Submission Requirements 

All applications for CUP must be accompanied by the following information: 

�  Application Fee 
�  10 copies of proposed development plans 
�  Location/vicinity map 
�  Written response to the required findings for a Conditional Use Permit (Section 10-20.40.050 of the Zoning Code) 
�  List of property owners, parcel numbers, and assessor’s maps, for properties within 300 feet 

Application Fee 

An application fee payable to the “City of Flagstaff”, must be paid at the time an application for a CUP is submitted.  The fee helps 
cover the cost of meeting noticing and advertising requirements. 

Signatures 

All applications must be signed and dated by both the applicant and the owner of the property. 

Proposed Development Plans 
Proposed development plans that must be submitted in conjunction with a CUP application are the same as those required for 
formal Site Plan Review (see list below).  Refer to the Site Plan Review Application for a complete description of these plans and the 
information that must be depicted on them. 

�  Site plan 
�  Building elevations (one copy in color) 
�  Building floor plans 
�  Landscape plan 
�  Resource survey and protection plan (when applicable) 
�  Exterior lighting plan 
�  Preliminary signage plan 

All plans submitted with the application must be folded to approximately 8.5 x 11 inches in size. 

2



Location/Vicinity Map 

The location/vicinity map shows adjacent streets and properties, as well as the land uses and zoning for those properties.  Any 
contiguous property owned by the property owner or applicant must also be shown.  The location/vicinity map must be drawn to 
scale and include dimensions.  The location/vicinity map can be made a part of the site plan where space permits. 

Findings for Granting a CUP 

The CUP may be issued only when the P&Z finds that the applicant has considered and adequately addressed all of the following 
issues to ensure that the proposed use will be compatible with the surrounding area.  Therefore, the CUP application must include 
a written response indicating how the request meets the findings identified in Section 10-20.40.050 of the Zoning Code.  Attach 
substantiating documentation when necessary. 

1. That the conditional use is consistent with the objectives of the Zoning Code and purpose of the zone in which the site is
located.

2. That granting the conditional use will not be detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare.  The factors to be
considered in making this finding shall include, but not be limited to:

a. Property damage or nuisance arising from noise, smoke, odor, dust, vibration, or illumination;
b. Hazard to persons or property from possible explosion, contamination, fire, or flood; and,
c. Impact on surrounding areas arising from unusual volume or character of traffic.

3. That the characteristics of the conditional use as proposed and as it may be conditioned are reasonably compatible with
the types of uses permitted in the surrounding area.  The Conditional Use Permit shall be issued only when the Planning
Commission finds that the applicant has considered and adequately addressed the following to ensure that the proposed 
use will be compatible with the surrounding area:

a. Access and traffic; pedestrian, bicycle, and vehicular circulation;
b. Adequacy of site and open space provisions, including site capacity and resource protection standards where

applicable;
c. Noise, light, visual, and other pollutants;
d. Proposed style and siting of structure(s), and relationship to the surrounding neighborhood;
e. Landscaping and screening provisions;
f. Impact on public utilities;
g. Signage and outdoor lighting;
h. Dedication and development of streets adjoining the property; and
i. Impacts on historical, prehistoric, or natural resources.

Neighborhood Meeting 

A neighborhood meeting in accordance with Section 10-20.30.060 of the Zoning Code may be required.  The applicant shall work 
with the Planning Development Manager to determine if a meeting is required. 

Applications will not be accepted or scheduled until all submission requirements are met.  Neither the application nor 
accompanying development plans can be amended or modified once an application has been submitted. 

Process to Schedule and Notify Affected Property Owners of a Public Hearing before the Planning and Zoning Commission 

Step 1: Schedule Planning and Zoning Commission Hearing 

Work with the Planning Development Manager handling the CUP case to schedule a hearing before the P&Z Commission. 

Step 2: Notification to Affected Property Owners 

The applicant for public hearings in the City of Flagstaff shall post signs and notify affected property owners by mail as prescribed 
by Section 10-20.30.080 of the City of Flagstaff Zoning Code to assist in providing adequate notice to interested parties and to meet 
Arizona State Statues. 

The applicant is also responsible for establishing a list of the names and addresses of persons who require notification of a public 
hearing as established in sections 10-20.30.60.(A).3, 10-20.30.60.(B), and 10-20.30.60.(C) of the Zoning Code.  These persons 
include:  

3



� Each real property owner (if different from the applicant) as shown on the last assessment of the property, of any land 
within the areas subject to the application for which the public hearing is required. 

� Each real property owner (if different from the applicant) as shown on the last assessment of the property of any land 
which is located within 300 feet of the property subject to the application for which the public hearing is required.  The 
Director may expand the notification area based on the location and context of the subject property if it is determined that 
the potential impact of the development extends beyond the required notification boundary. 

� The situs or actual address of all tenants and residents living on the subject property. 
� All local government agencies which have reviewed and commented on the proposed development or Zoning Map 

amendment or which abut the subject property. 

The applicant is required to mail a notice of required public hearing via first class mail to each of the persons on the list referenced 
above no later than 15 days prior to the public hearing date. 

The applicant must also erect and maintain a sign on the subject property no later than 15 days prior to the public hearing, and to 
update the hearing information on the sign until final disposition of the case.  It shall also be the responsibility of the applicant to 
remove the sign within seven (7) days after the final disposition of the case. 

Step 3: Documentation of Notification to Affected Parties 

The applicant must submit a notarized copy of the mailing list, Affidavit of Notifications to Affected Property Owners, and Affidavit 
of Sign Posting to the Director prior to the fifteenth day before the public hearing date. 

The Public Hearing Notice Sign Specification and Mailing Notification Instructions documents provide detailed instructions on 
posting and notifications requirements. 

Expiration 

A CUP expires one year from the date of P&Z approval unless a grading or building permit is obtained or the use is established.  The 
P&Z may grant a one-time extension of 180 days following a formal request for such an extension by the applicant.  The extension 
must be approved before the CUP expiration date. 

Appeals 

Any person aggrieved by a decision of the P&Z to approve or deny a CUP (including the applicant) may file an appeal with the City 
Council.  An appeal must be submitted in writing to the Planning Director or Community Development Director within 10 days of the 
P&Z’s decision.  The City Council will conduct a public hearing and at the conclusion of the hearing shall affirm, reverse, or modify the 
decision. 

Public Record 

All information submitted in conjunction with this application will become part of the public record and may be provided to members 
of the public.  You must notify the City prior to submitting this application if you believe the information you are submitting may be 
proprietary or confidential. 

For Further Information 

For further information regarding the application and submission requirements for a CUP, please contact: 

Planning and Development Services Section 
City of Flagstaff 
211 W Aspen Avenue 
Flagstaff AZ 86001 
928-213-2618  
cdfrontcounter@flagstaffaz.gov 

4

mailto:cdfrontcounter@flagstaffaz.gov


Mailing Notification Instructions 

Every mailed notice of a public hearing shall include:  

• The date, time, location and purpose of the hearing;
• The name of the body conducting the hearing, and a telephone number to receive additional information;
• The location and times at which the complete application and development file may be viewed by the public;
• The address or location of the subject property;
• A general description of the proposed development or action and the property included in the application;
• A statement that any interested person or authorized agent may appear and be heard;
• A statement describing how and when to submit written comments;
• The existing zone classification; and
• The words “Zoning,” “Annexation,” or “Conditional Use Permit” as applicable.

Notices of required public hearings shall be sent by first class mail to the following persons: 

• Each real property owner (if different from the applicant) as shown on the last assessment of the property, of
any land within the areas subject to the application for which the public hearing is required.

• Each real property owner (if different from the applicant) as shown on the last assessment of the property of
any land which is located within 300 feet of the property subject to the application for which the public hearing
is required. The Director may expand the notification area based on the location and context of the subject
property if it is determined that the potential impact of the development extends beyond the required
notification boundary.

• The situs or actual address of all tenants and residents living on the subject property.

• All local government agencies which have reviewed and commented on the proposed development or Zoning
Map amendment or which abut the subject property.

Additional noticing requirements:   

In proceedings involving one or more of the following proposed changes or related series of changes in the standards 
governing land uses, notice shall be provided as described in subsections (2) and (3) below: 

• A 10 percent or more increase or decrease in the number of square feet or units that may be developed.
• A 10 percent or more increase or reduction in the allowable height of buildings.
• An increase or reduction in the allowable number of stories of buildings.
• A 10 percent or more increase or decrease in setback or open space requirements.
• An increase or reduction in permitted uses.

2. Notice shall be sent to all persons or groups whose names are on the registry of persons and groups described in
subsection (B) of this section who are interested in receiving such notice. 

3. Notice shall be provided to real property owners in compliance with at least one of the following notification
procedures: 

• Notice shall be sent by first class mail to each real property owner, as shown on the last assessment, whose real
property would be directly governed by the changes.

• Notice shall be included with water bills or other City mass mailings.
• Notice shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation published or circulated in the City in the form of a

“display ad” covering not less than one-eighth of a full page.

5



Affidavit of Notifications to Affected Property Owners 

Case Number: ______________________________________________________ 

Project Name: ______________________________________________________ 

Applicant Name: ____________________________________________________ 

Location: ___________________________________________________________ 

In order to assist in providing adequate notice to interested parties and to meet Arizona State Statute, the applicant 
for public hearings in the City of Flagstaff shall notify affected property owners as prescribed by Section 10-
20.30.080 of the City of Flagstaff Zoning Code.  It shall be the responsibility of the applicant to establish a list of the 
names and addresses of persons who require notification of a public hearing as established in sections 10-
20.30.60.(A).3, 10-20.30.60.(B), and  10-20.30.60.(C) of the Zoning Code, and mail a notice of required public 
hearing via first class mail to each of the persons on the list referenced above no later than 15 days prior to the 
public hearing date. It shall also be the responsibility of the applicant to submit a notarized copy of the mailing list 
to the Director prior to the fifteenth day before the public hearing date. 

I confirm that the public hearing notifications were mailed as detailed in Section 10-20.30.080 of the City of Flagstaff 
Zoning Code at least fifteen (15) days prior to the public hearing. 

Applicant’s/Representative’s Signature: _______________________________________________ 

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN before me this_________ day of ____________________, 20___ by: 

______________________________ 
Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: 

______________________________ 

6



Public Hearing Notice Sign Specification 

• The sign shall be a minimum of 3 feet x 3 feet in size.

• The sign shall be constructed of laminated coroplast, laminated plywood, or other suitable construction

material.

• The sign shall have a white background with black lettering.  The least expensive process is laminated direct

printing.

• The minimum lettering size shall be 1.2 inch for lowercase and 1 inch for upper case.

• The words “Public Hearing” shall be a minimum of 2 inches in size (Sign lettering should be formatted to match

the example below).

• The content of the sign shall match the example below and include specific case details.

• The sign shall be securely fastened to wooden or metal stakes.

• The applicant is responsible for maintaining the integrity and accuracy of the sign.

• The height of the sign shall be at least 4 feet from finished grade to top of sign and shall not be obstructed from

view.

City of Flagstaff 

PUBLIC HEARING 
Planning and Zoning Commission: (Date and Time) 

LOCATION OF HEARING(S): 
REQUEST: 

PROPOSAL: 
GENERAL LOCATION: 

SIZE OF SITE: 
CASE# 

APPLICANT/CONTACT: 
PHONE #: 

Planning & Development Services Department: 928-213-2600 
Posting Date: 

7



Affidavit of Sign Posting 

Case Number: ______________________________________________________ 

Project Name: ______________________________________________________ 

Applicant Name: ____________________________________________________ 

Location: ___________________________________________________________ 

In order to assist in providing adequate notice to interested parties and to meet Arizona State Statute, the applicant for 
public hearings in the City of Flagstaff shall post signs as prescribed by Section 10-20.30.080 of the City of Flagstaff 
Zoning Code.  It shall be the responsibility of the applicant to erect and to maintain the sign on the subject property 15 
days prior to the hearing and to update the hearing information on the sign until final disposition of the case.  It shall 
also be the responsibility of the applicant to remove the sign within seven (7) days after the final disposition of the 
case. 

I confirm that the site has been posted as detailed in Section 10-20.30.080 of the Zoning Code as well as the Public 
Hearing Notice Sign Specifications included in this application for the case above and the site was posted at least fifteen 
(15) days prior to the public hearing. 

See attached date stamped photo exhibit of posted signs. 

Applicant’s/Representative’s Signature: _______________________________________________ 

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN before me this_________ day of ____________________, 20___ by: 

___________________________________ 
Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: 

______________________________ 

8



Conditional Use Permit Request 

 

2911 S. Solitaires Canyon Dr., 

Flagstaff, AZ 86005 

 
Introduction: 
This project is a new 5,165 S.F. residence located on approximately .76 acres in the Pine Canyon community. The 

property is located at 2911 S. Solitaires Canyon Dr. The property is zoned R-1 for single-family residential.  

 

 

The applicant is proposing to construct a single family residence that will contain 5 En suite bedrooms. Due to having 5 

“Sanitation facilities” the current zoning code is considered High Occupancy Housing. The purpose of the High Occupancy 

housing ordinance is to regulate the High-density apartments or mega room single family dwelling units with the intent 

to rent to students in and around the university. The property in question doesn’t meet the intent or purpose of the HOH 

ordinance but due to the amount of sanitation facilities is caught in responding to the ordinance. The applicant is 

requesting a Conditional use permit in accordance to section 10-40.60.175 of the zoning code. 

 

 



 

 

 

Findings for granting a CUP: 

 
The Planning and Zoning Commission may grant a Conditional use permit upon findings as described below and in 

accordance with Section 10-20.40.050. 

 

1) That the conditional use is consistent with the objective of the Zoning Code and purpose of the zone in which the 

site is located.   

Response: The property in question is located in the high-end Pine Canyon development and having an 

En suite bedroom is consistent with the typical amenities of the Single-family residence in this area. The 

placement of the structure is designed within the setback requirements and is lower than the max 

height allowed. The proposed structure has been approved by the Pine Canyon Homeowners 

association and is being built as a single-family primary or secondary residence and not as a High 

occupancy housing development.  

 
2) That granting the conditional use will not be detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare. The factors to be 

considered in making this shall include, but not limited to: 

a. Property damage or nuisance arising from noise, smoke, odor, dust, vibration, or illumination. 

Response:  The residence will create no noise above a standard single-family residence and is following 

all illumination guidelines in regard to allowable lumens. 
b. Hazard to persons or property from possible explosion, contamination, fire, or flood. 

Response:  The residence creates no greater hazard than a standard single-family home and has been 

designed to maintain existing water run off patterns.  

c. Impact on surrounding areas arising from unusual volume or character of traffic. 

Response:  The residence is designed with adequate garage and driveway space for the occupants of 

this single-family home.  

 

 
3) That the characteristics of the conditional use as proposed and as it may be conditioned are reasonably 

compatible with the types of uses permitted in the surrounding area.  

a. Access and traffic: pedestrian, bicycle, and vehicular circulation. 

Response:  The residence is designed with adequate garage and driveway space for the occupants of 

this single-family home. There will not be any vehicular interruptions.  
b. Adequacy of site and open space provisions, including site capacity and resource protection standards 

where applicable. 

Response:  The proposed residence is within the setback requirements and height restrictions of the R-

1 zoning. The proposed disturbed area is well below the allowable disturbed area of the property.  

c. Noise, light, visual, and other pollutants. 

Response:  The residence will create no noise above a standard single-family residence and is following 

all illumination guidelines in regard to allowable lumens. 

d. Proposed style and siting of structure, and relationship to the surrounding neighborhood. 



Response:  The project is consistent with the Pine Canyon Design Guidelines and has been approved 

with holistic design for the community in mind. The residence is within the building envelope per the 

PZ-19-00099-02 PLAT for The Estates at Pine Canyon Pine Run. 

e. Landscaping and screening provisions.  

Response:  The project will comply with the applicable landscaping and screening requirements.  

f. Impact on public utilities. 

Response:  The residence will tie into the existing utilities as designed on the Civil Improvement plans 

for The Estates at Pine Canyon – Pine Run PZ-19-00099-02. 

g. Signage and outdoor lighting  

Response:  The residence complies with all lighting regulations and there is no signage proposed for the 

project.  

h. Dedication and development of streets adjoining the property 

Response:  The property is located in an existing subdivision with developed street and will not require 

any dedication or development of any streets.  

i. Impact on historical, prehistoric, or natural resources 

Response:  The residence complies with all applicable natural resource standards and has no historical 

or prehistoric impacts.  

 

 

 



 

March 17, 2024 

Dus�n S�ffler 

City of Flagstaff 

311 W. Aspen Ave 

Flagstaff, AZ 86001 

 

RE: Public par�cipa�on report for Case #PZ-24-00013 

 

Dear Dus�n, 

 

The following outlines the history of communica�on regarding the request for a condi�onal use permit to add a 5th 

bathroom to the proposed residence at 2911 S. Solitaires Canyon Drive. 

• On March 4th, 2024, Two Hawks Design and Development mailed out le6ers no�fying neighbors within a 300 7. 

area of the request for condi�onal use permit. Enclosed is a copy of the le6er and diagram, along with a list of 

recipients.  

• As of March 15th, 2024 we have received one comment that the resident was in full support of the Condi�onal 

Use permit. 

 

Please let me know if you have any ques�ons or require any addi�onal informa�on at this �me.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

Hugh McMahon  

 



��������������	 
������
��


������
�� ���

�
�����������

�������� !"���#"�$�% &� !���'�"(�!

���
�����)���*+�)�,�-

.
�����*�����������	���
/��0�
�1
�1�2/3�



��������������	 
������
��


������
�� ���

� ��� ��������� �����  !"## $%�"!��&'"
$%�"!
�  !"##

(�) *+*#*�� �&!�",��!"& �!"&�-�*�#

� �.��.�/0 1.��.00�
�����2
23456�5172
8�9:39�;1

<�8�����448

�����7
	8;39�4;
;1
<�1�;527
=�447:���>
0����

726�672��6
<597
8�9:39
?956��

.@/A.... �

� �.��.�/�B 1.������
��..�2
84?BC3?27
851

648�<8
D34E�448

0/.��9
283662;�4
7�1;�267
���
283662;�4
7���>�0����

726�672��6
<597
8�9:39
?956��
172?B

�.@�/.... �

� �.��.�A� 1.��.0�/
��/.�2
23456�5172
8�9:39�;1

F39��61?26
;6;�.�G.�G�/

��/���9��/6C
<4
283662;�4
7���>�0����

726�672��6
<597
8�9:39
?956��

.@�/.... �

� �.��.��� 1�..��A�
�..0�2
84?BC3?27
851

F38C�45=59D
61?26�;6;
.0G.�G�0

�0�/�7
8�	74C7�;
;1�<C3795H�
�>�0�.�0

726�672��6
<597
8�9:39
?956��

.@/0.... �

� �.��.�0A 1.��.�.0 IJK

L�49?6
8�9:39��6
<597
8�9:39�448

0/.��9
283662;�4
7�1;�93����
283662;�4
7���>�0����

726�672��6
<597
8�9:39
?956��

�@.�.... �

/ �.��.��.� 1.������
��0��2
84?BC3?27
851

15	2>�
�9639�M
F5	B714:
61?26�;6;
����0�.�
�	79;7;
���.�.�

�����9���1;
26�<C3795H�
�>�0�.�0

726�672��6
<597
8�9:39
?956��

�@.A.... �

A �.��.�/� 1.��.0�.
��/��2
23456�5172
8�9:39�;1

;74DC5�885
3�E�	54:
45=59D
61?26�;6;
.0G��G��

/.���7
N79�9�;1
283662;�4
7���>�0����

726�672��6
<597
8�9:39
?956��

.@0�.... �



��������������	 
������
��


������
�� ���

� �������� ��������
������
����������
��� ���!�

!�"!���
���#���$
��%����

&����������
���������'�
��� ��(�
�����

����������
)���
��� ��
(�����

�*������ �

� �������� ��������
������
����������
��� ���!�

���+������

������
������!��
�����
)+����,���-
�����

����������
)���
��� ��
(�����

�*�&���� �

�� �������� ��������
������
����������
��� ���!�

)�����
+��!��.�
���

����������+
���������
)+����,���-
�����

����������
)���
��� ��
(�����

�*�&���� �

�� ��������� ��������
������
����������
��� ���!�

����������
��� ������

��&������&�+
)�
������!��
����-������

����������
)���
��� ��
(�����

�*������ �

�� ��������� ������&& /01
)��#����.�
����������
�����

)��%�,
�����
)��������
�-��&���

����������
)���
��� ��
(�����
���(%

��*������ �

�� ������&& ��������
������
��(%+�(��
���

����)�
.��2����

�&����
������!��
���!����
���
������!��
����-������

����������
)���
��� ��
(�����
���(%

�*�&���� �

�� ������&�� �������& /01
����)�
.��2����

�&����
������!��
���!����
���
������!��
����-������

����������
)���
��� ��
(�����
���(%

&*������ �



R
E

G
IS

TERED ARCH
IT

E
C

T

R

E
C

T I IF CATE

O
N

.60672
CAVIN

COSTELLO

RA
IZONA

ASU. . .

D
a
teS

igned

The Ranch Mine LLC
4340 E Indian School Rd.
Suite 21552
Phoenix, AZ 85018

480.399.5990
info@theranchmine.com
www.theranchmine.com

phase:

date of issue:

sheet no:

sheet contents:

rev no, date, description:

1.

20
24

10.

P
in

e
 C

a
n
y
o
n

 3
4
4

2
9
1

1
 S

 S
o
lit

a
ir

e
s
 C

a
n

y
o

n
 D

r.
F

la
g

s
ta

ff
, 

A
Z

 8
6
0

0
5

Construction Documents

01.10.2024

CS

cover sheet

Pine Canyon 344
New Single Family Residence

Subdivision: Estates at Pine Canyon Unit 5 Lot: 344 Sixteenth: SE Quarter: NE Section: 34 Township: 21N Range: 07E
Sixteenth: NE Quarter: SE Section: 34 Township: 21N Range: 07E

PROJECT INFORMATION SHEET INDEX

GOVERNING CODES

ALL CONSTRUCTION SHALL COMPLY WITH THE FOLLOWING 
CODES AND AMENDMENTS PER THEIR ADOPTING ORDINANCES.

2018 INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE
2018 INTERNATIONAL RESIDENTIAL CODE
2018 INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE
2018 INTERNATIONAL ENERGY CONSERVATION CODE
2018 INTERNATIONAL FUEL GAS CODE
2018 INTERNATIONAL MECHANICAL CODE
2018 INTERNATIONAL PLUMBING CODE
2017 NATIONAL ELECTRIC CODE

AREA CALCULATIONSVICINITY MAP CONTACTS

General

CS cover sheet

G-001 general notes

Civil

SV.01 survey

C01 cover grading and drainage plan

C2 grading and drainage plan

C3 erosion control plan notes

C4 erosion control plan

Architecture

A-001 architectural site plan

A-002 architectural site plan enlarged

A-100 floor plan - first

A-101 floor plan - basement

A-102 roof plan

A-110 light & power plan - first

A-111 light & power plan - basement

A-200 elevations

A-201 elevations

A-300 building sections

A-301 building sections

A-500 assemblies and construction details

A-501 construction details

A-502 construction details

A-600 door schedule

A-601 window schedule

Structural

S-001 general structural notes

S-002 general structural notes

S-010 typical details

S-011 typical details

S-012 typical details

S-013 typical details

S-014 typical details

S-015 schedules

S-100 foundation plan

S-101 high foundation / floor framing plan

S-102 roof framing plan

S-200 foundation details

S-201 foundation details

S-300 floor framing details

S-301 floor framing details

S-400 roof framing details

Mechanical

M-1 mechanical symbols, schedules and details

M-2 mechanical plan - first floor

M-3 mechanical plan - basement

Plumbing

P-1 plumbing calculations & schematic

P-2 gas piping diagram

Electrical

E-1 electrical calculations and diagram

IECC CLIMATE ZONE 5 - MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS

MIN CEILING R VALUE:          R-49
WOOD FRAME WALL R-VALUE:       R-20 or 13+5
FLOOR R-VALUE:          R-30
SLAB R-VALUE & DEPTH:         R-10, 2 ft
CRAWL SPACE WALL R-VALUE:      R-15/19

Architect:
The Ranch Mine, LLC
4340 E Indian School Rd. Suite 21552
Phoenix, AZ 85018
Principal: Cavin Costello
p: 480-399-5990
e: cavin@theranchmine.com
Project Contact: Geoff Sosebee
e: geoff@theranchmine.com

Structural Engineer:
Structurology
734 W Polk Suite 5
Phoenix, AZ 85007
Contact: Derek Sherwood
p: 480-269-7675
e: dsherwood@structurology.com

Civil Engineer:
Shepard Wesnitzer Inc.
75 Kallof Place
Sedona, AZ 86336
Contact: Sam Vossler
p: 928-282-1061
e: svossler@swiaz.com

Mechanical, Plumbing, Electrical Engineers
LE Designs, LLC
601 E. Colter St. 
Phoenix, AZ 85012
Contact: Larry Evans
p: 602-363-9751
e: larry@ledesignsaz.com

DRC AREA CALCULATIONS

1st Floor Livable - 3180 SF 
Basement Livable - 1985 SF
Total Livable - 5165 SF

Attached Garage - 1042 SF
Mechanical - 40 SF
Front Porch - 45 SF
Level 1 Patio - 566 SF
Basement Patio- 542 SF
Primary Suite Deck- 83 SF
Driveway - 2398 SF

Lot Area - 33,105.6 SF
Disturbed area - 7,207 SF
Max Disturbed area - 50%
Proposed Disturbed area - 21.76%

FLAGSTAFF ZONING AREA CALCULATIONS

Lot Area - 33,105.6 SF
Max Lot Coverage - 35%
Proposed Lot Coverage - 5,037.1 SF (15.2%)

PROJECT OWNER: PC344 Holdings, LLC

PROJECT ADDRESS: 2911 S Solitaires Canyon Drive
Flagstaff, AZ 86005

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
Pine Canyon - Lot 344 is a 5,165 SF new-build single-family 
residence. There will be 5 bedrooms, 5.5 bathrooms. The house will 
have an attached 1,042 SF attached Garage. 

ZONING INFORMATION:

ZONING DISTRICT: R1

SUBDIVISION: Estates at Pine Canyon

LOT #: 344

APN: 10510471

SETBACKS: Per Pine Canyon Building Envelope

Per Flagstaff 10-40.30.030.C
15' Front 25' Front for Parking
8' Side (Interior) 15' Side (Street)
25' Rear

BUILDING HEIGHT: Flagstaff 10-40.30.030.C:
35' Max w/ *additional 5' for Roof slopes > 6:12
*per note 12

Pine Canyon Design Guidelines:
36' Maximum for slopes 7/12 and higher
32' Maximum for roof slopes up to 7/12
Stories: 2 Stories

2911 S SOLITAIRES CANYON DR FLAGSTAFF, AZ 86005

Cavin
Pen
e

Cavin
Pen

Cavin
Text Box
EXPIRES DEC 31 2024



S S

W W

G G

E E

X X

S

T

4"
TREE

4"
TREE

4"
TREE

4"
TREE

4"
TREE

4"
TREE

4"
TREE

4"
TREE

4"
TREE

4"
TREE

12"
TREE

12"
TREE

12"
TREE

12"
TREE

12"
TREE

12"
TREE

12"
TREE

12"
TREE

4"
TREE

4"
TREE

24"
TREE

24"
TREE

8"
TREE8"

TREE

8"
TREE

8"
TREE

8"
TREE

8"
TREE

8"
TREE

8"
TREE 8"

TREE

8"
TREE

4"
TREE

4"
ASPEN
4"
ASPEN

4"
ASPEN

8"
TREE8"

TREE

6"
TREE

8"
TREE

6"
TREE

6"
TREE

6"
TREE

2"
TREE

14"
TREE

14"
TREE

10"
TREE

10"
TREE

S

T

AHU

Range

W
D

W

W

W

G

G

E

E

S

S

S

E

E

E

E

E

E

G

G

G

G

G

G

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

Keynotes

01

Site Plan Notes

Driveway paving

1. G.C. to site verify all dimensions
2. New plastic water, sewer, and gas line piping shall be installed 

with a yellow tracer wire (18 GA.) min. UPC 1211.1.7.
3. All patios adjacent to house to be sloped away from house at 

1/8" per foot. 

02 Address sign per HOA requirements

03 Grading per civil

04 Site walls with Stone Veneer (SV-1), max. 6' above grade

05 Architectural feature pergola at entry, with lights

06 8" Concrete curb

Site Plan Legend

WOOD DECKING

PROPERTY LINE

SETBACK

EASEMENT

WATER LINE

SEWER LINE

GAS LINE

ELECTRIC LINE

DRIVEWAY PAVERS

FENCE

DRC AREA CALCULATIONS

1st Floor Livable - 3180 SF 
Basement Livable - 1985 SF
Total Livable - 5165 SF

Attached Garage - 1042 SF
Mechanical - 40 SF
Front Porch - 45 SF
Level 1 Patio - 566 SF
Basement Patio- 542 SF
Primary Suite Deck- 83 SF
Driveway - 2398 SF

Lot Area - 33,105.6 SF
Disturbed area - 7,207 SF
Max Disturbed area - 50%
Proposed Disturbed area - 21.76%

FLAGSTAFF ZONING AREA CALCULATIONS

Lot Area - 33,105.6 SF
Max Lot Coverage - 35%
Proposed Lot Coverage - 5,037.1 SF (15.2%)

LOT COVERAGE

N71° 02'40"W 55.00'

S
o

lita
ire

s
 

C
a
n

y
o

n
 D

riv
e

LOT 343

LOT 344

LOT 345

N52° 03'02"W
 187.36'

N
2
7
° 4

2
'5

5
"W

 2
8
1
.5

3
'

N77° 43'51"W 117.76'

N
1
2
° 1

6
'0

9
"W

 1
2
0
.0

0
'

Drainage Easement

8'-0
" P

riv
ate

E
a
s
e
m

e
n
t

G
o
lf U

tilita
ria

n

6
9
3
0
'

69
35

'

6930'

6925'

6920'

69
15

'

69
10

'

69
05

'

6
9
2
5
'

6
9
2
0
'

6
9
1
5
'

6
9
1
0
'

6
9
0
5
'

Stone veneer clad trash enclosure
T.O. Wall Elevation: 6934'

Stone veneer clad utility enclosure
T.O. Wall Elevation: 6930'-6"

Address sign
Owner is responsible for expense and installation of a detached 
address sign with lighting. The following is required for the 
address sign:
-Constructed with a steel pedestal unit with lettering and lighting
-Address sign shall be "always on" when cell is active
-Numbers shall be back-lit through translucent material
-A pre-cast concrete base with 3/4" conduit is provided
-Each unit shall be equipped with a photocell control

Address sign shall be installed at 3'-6' from the driveway and 6' 
from the street pavement. Depending on site conditions, if the 6' 
street dimension is not feasible, the address sign may be placed 
up to 15' from the street pavement (as close to the 6' 
requirement as possible).

Proposed Grading

Site Drainage intent: Surface 
Drain, not intended to channelize 
beyond what naturally occurs

Roof overhang above

8" Tree to be removed

Driveway  2,398 sf
Block-Lite Cobblestone Pavers

Sonoran Blend

Site Drainage intent: Surface Drain, 
not intended to channelize beyond 

what naturally occurs

Gas Meter

S.E.S.

12" Tree to be removed

12" Tree to be removed

12" Tree to be removed

12" Tree to be removed

8" Tree to be removed

8" Tree to be removed

8" Tree to be removed

10" Tree to be removed

8" Tree to be removed

6" Tree to be removed

Proposed Grading

Deck

Deck

B
u
ild

in
g
 E

n
v
e
lo

p
e

Building Envelope

B
u
ild

in
g
 E

n
ve

lo
p
e

Building Envelope

Building Envelope

CU1

6929'-0"

6" Tree to be removed

T
R

Existing catch basin

Existing sewer manhole

Telecom box

CU2

3'-0
"

1'-6
"

HVAC condensing units

6'-0"3'
-6

"

Grinder pump malfunction 
alarm to be visible from street

29' - 
5"

Pitch driveway to
 drain

Full s
ize SUV

F
u
ll size S

U
V

Roof overhang above

Side Setback15' - 
0"

7
9
' - 3

"

125' - 9"

72' - 10"

S
id

e 
S
et

ba
ck

15
' -

 0
"

S
id

e
 S

e
tb

a
c
k

1
5
' -

 0
"

D
riv

ew
ay12

'-0
"

6" Tree to remain

3 steps into home to integrate with site

Grinder Pump
2

2

06

06

01

02

05

04

2

2

roof drain daylights 
into riprap swale

12" Tree to be removed

2

R
e
a
r S

e
tb

a
c
k

2
5
' - 0

"

Rear Setback
25' - 0"

Front S
etback

25' - 0"

R
E

G
IS

TERED ARCH
IT

E
C

T

R

E
C

T I IF CATE

O
N

.60672
CAVIN

COSTELLO

RA
IZONA

ASU. . .

D
a
teS

igned

The Ranch Mine LLC
4340 E Indian School Rd.
Suite 21552
Phoenix, AZ 85018

480.399.5990
info@theranchmine.com
www.theranchmine.com

phase:

date of issue:

sheet no:

sheet contents:

rev no, date, description:

1.

20
24

10.

P
in

e
 C

a
n
y
o
n

 3
4
4

2
9
1

1
 S

 S
o
lit

a
ir

e
s
 C

a
n

y
o

n
 D

r.
F

la
g

s
ta

ff
, 

A
Z

 8
6
0

0
5

Construction Documents

01.10.2024

A-001

architectural site plan

N1/16" = 1'-0"

Site Plan

1 6/13/23 Prelim Design
Review R1

2 01/10/24 Final DRC

Cavin
Pen
e

Cavin
Pen

Cavin
Text Box
EXPIRES DEC 31 2024



S S

W W

G G

E E

X X

T

4"
TREE

4"
TREE

12"
TREE

12"
TREE

12"
TREE

12"
TREE

12"
TREE

12"
TREE

12"
TREE

12"
TREE

4"
TREE

4"
TREE

24"
TREE

24"
TREE

8"
TREE8"

TREE

8"
TREE

8"
TREE

8"
TREE

8"
TREE

8"
TREE

8"
TREE 8"

TREE

8"
TREE

6"
TREE

6"
TREE

6"
TREE

2"
TREE

14"
TREE

14"
TREE

10"
TREE

10"
TREE

T

AHU

Range

W
D

W

W

W

G

G

E

E

S

S

S

W

W

E

E

E

E

E

E

G

G

G

G

G

G

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

Keynotes

01

Site Plan Notes

Driveway paving

1. G.C. to site verify all dimensions
2. New plastic water, sewer, and gas line piping shall be installed 

with a yellow tracer wire (18 GA.) min. UPC 1211.1.7.
3. All patios adjacent to house to be sloped away from house at 

1/8" per foot. 

02 Address sign per HOA requirements

03 Grading per civil

04 Site walls with Stone Veneer (SV-1), max. 6' above grade

05 Architectural feature pergola at entry, with lights

06 8" Concrete curb

Site Plan Legend

WOOD DECKING

PROPERTY LINE

SETBACK

EASEMENT

WATER LINE

SEWER LINE

GAS LINE

ELECTRIC LINE

DRIVEWAY PAVERS

FENCE

DRC AREA CALCULATIONS

1st Floor Livable - 3180 SF 
Basement Livable - 1985 SF
Total Livable - 5165 SF

Attached Garage - 1042 SF
Mechanical - 40 SF
Front Porch - 45 SF
Level 1 Patio - 566 SF
Basement Patio- 542 SF
Primary Suite Deck- 83 SF
Driveway - 2398 SF

Lot Area - 33,105.6 SF
Disturbed area - 7,207 SF
Max Disturbed area - 50%
Proposed Disturbed area - 21.76%

FLAGSTAFF ZONING AREA CALCULATIONS

Lot Area - 33,105.6 SF
Max Lot Coverage - 35%
Proposed Lot Coverage - 5,037.1 SF (15.2%)

LOT COVERAGE

N71° 02'40"W 55.00'

LOT 343

LOT 344

LOT 345

N52° 03'02"W
 187.36'

N
2
7
° 4

2
'5

5
"W

 2
8
1
.5

3
'

Drainage Easement

8'-0
" P

riv
ate

6
9
3
0
'

69
35

'

6930'

6925'

6920'

6
9
2
5
'

6
9
2
0
'

6
9
1
5
'

6
9
1
0
'

6
9
0
5
'

Stone veneer clad trash enclosure
T.O. Wall Elevation: 6934'

Stone veneer clad utility enclosure
T.O. Wall Elevation: 6930'-6"

Proposed Grading

Site Drainage intent: Surface 
Drain, not intended to channelize 
beyond what naturally occurs

Roof overhang above

8" Tree to be removed

Driveway  2,398 sf
Block-Lite Cobblestone Pavers

Sonoran Blend

Site Drainage intent: Surface Drain, 
not intended to channelize beyond 

what naturally occurs

Gas Meter

S.E.S.

12" Tree to be removed

12" Tree to be removed

12" Tree to be removed

12" Tree to be removed

8" Tree to be removed

8" Tree to be removed

8" Tree to be removed

10" Tree to be removed

8" Tree to be removed

6" Tree to be removed

Proposed Grading

Deck

Deck

B
u
ild

in
g
 E

n
v
e
lo

p
e

Building Envelope

B
u
ild

in
g
 E

n
ve

lo
p
e

Building Envelope

Building Envelope

CU1

6929'-0"

6" Tree to be removed

T

R

Existing catch basin

Telecom box

CU2

3'-0
"

1'-6
"

HVAC condensing units

6'-0"3'
-6

"

Grinder pump malfunction 
alarm to be visible from street

29' - 
5"

Pitch driveway to
 drain

Full s
ize SUV

F
u
ll size S

U
V

Roof overhang above

Side Setback15' - 
0"

S
id

e 
S
et

ba
ck

15
' -

 0
"

S
id

e
 S

e
tb

a
c
k

1
5
' -

 0
"

D
riv

ew
ay12

'-0
"

6" Tree to remain

3 steps into home to integrate with site

Grinder Pump

2

2

06

06

01

02

04

03

2

2

roof drain daylights into 
riprap swale

2

12" Tree to be removed
2

Front S
etback

25' - 0"

R
E

G
IS

TERED ARCH
IT

E
C

T

R

E
C

T I IF CATE

O
N

.60672
CAVIN

COSTELLO

RA
IZONA

ASU. . .

D
a
teS

igned

The Ranch Mine LLC
4340 E Indian School Rd.
Suite 21552
Phoenix, AZ 85018

480.399.5990
info@theranchmine.com
www.theranchmine.com

phase:

date of issue:

sheet no:

sheet contents:

rev no, date, description:

1.

20
24

10.

P
in

e
 C

a
n
y
o
n

 3
4
4

2
9
1

1
 S

 S
o
lit

a
ir

e
s
 C

a
n

y
o

n
 D

r.
F

la
g

s
ta

ff
, 

A
Z

 8
6
0

0
5

Construction Documents

01.10.2024

A-002

architectural site plan
enlarged

N1" = 10'-0"

Site Plan Enlarged Scale

1 6/13/23 Prelim Design
Review R1

2 01/10/24 Final DRC

Cavin
Pen
e

Cavin
Pen

Cavin
Text Box
EXPIRES DEC 31 2024



Mic DW

AHU

DN

DN

Range

W
D

DN

Keynotes

01

02

Floor Plan Notes

03

Column per structural

Soffit above

1. See A-500 for wall type details
2. Provide blocking for all wall mounted TV, typ.

Planter

W1

Wood Board & Batten

Stone Veneer

SEE DETAILS ON A-500

W2

W5

Wall Types

Interior partition1x

Stone Veneer CMUW4

Wood Tongue & Groove

W1a Clad on both sides

W4a Clad on both sides

Interior furring2x

Interior Stone Veneer1S

Wood Board & Batten on CMUW3

W5a Clad on both sides

472 SF

Living

4

71 SF

Entry

1

251 SF

Dining

5

59 SF

Powder

3

258 SF

Hall

7
95 SF

Office

8

166 SF

Primary Closet

11

311 SF

Primary Bedroom

9

220 SF

Primary Bath

10

236 SF

Bedroom

14

85 SF

Bathroom

15

31 SF

Closet

16

Toilet

Toilet

Wet Bar

287 SF

Kitchen

6

211 SF

Laundry

2

920 SF

Garage

19

Frz

Ref

CU

CU

6929'-0"

6929'-0"

GARAGE DOOR TO WALL FACE

1'-4"

GARAGE DOOR TO WALL FACE

1'-4"

22'-8"

26'-8"

Main Deck

6927'-6"

F.F.E.

F.F.E.

F.F.E.

F.F.E.

F.F.E.

R @ 6 15/16"19

Balcony

6927'-6"

F.F.E.

6
'-
1
0

"
1

4
'-
0

"
2

5
'-
8

"
3

0
'-
1
0

"
9

'-
1

0
 1

/2
"

3
2

'-
3

"
2

'-
1

1
 1

/2
"

1

A-300

1

A-301

2

A-300

2

A-301

106

107

105

104

103

1
0
1

100
110

1
0

11

111

109

12

13

14

15

16

17

A-200

1

A
-2

00 2

A-201

2

A-201

1

77

76

75

74

73 72 71

807978

57

58

59

60

61

62

63

55 56

66676869

54

W5

W5

W2

W2

W5

W1

W5

W5

W2

W4a

W5

W4a

W1

W1

W1

W2

W5

W2

W2

W1a

W1a

W5

W1

W1

W1

W1

W1

W1

1S

1S

1S

1S

Toilet

4'-0"

4'-0"

4
'-
0

"

Double-sided fireplace

SES

4
'-
6
 3

/8
"

2'-0" 3'-9" 15'-2" 3'-9" 2'-0"

2
'-
4

"
9

'-
0

"
2

'-
8

"
3

'-
0

"
1

8
'-
0

"
3

'-
9

"

12'-7 1/2" 25'-1" 6'-3"

2'-1" 9'-5 5/8" 1'-5 1/4" 4'-10" 6'-3 5/8"

5
'-
2
 1

/4
"

3
'-
3
 1

/4
"

7
'-
9
 1

/2
"

3
'-
7
 1

/4
"

1
'-
6

"
7

'-
3
 3

/8
"

5
'-
9
 1

/2
"

3
'-
2

"
7

'-
0

"
3

'-
2

"
7

'-
1
0

"
2

1
'-
5

"
1

2
'-
1
0

"

2'-6" 2'-8" 3'-9" 3'-9" 3'-9" 3'-9" 2'-5 1/2"2'-5 1/2"

2'-1"

6927'-6"

6
'-
5
 1

/2
"

7
'-
1

"
7

'-
0

"
7

'-
1

"

Gas Fireplace

2' - 7" 14' - 6" 12' - 1"

20'-6 3/8" 8'-5 1/8" 3'-2 3/8" 4'-2" 3'-5 1/8" 10'-4"

1B

1B

3
'-
2
 1

/2
"

3
'-
4
 5

/8
"

5
'-
1
 1

/4
"

5
'-
1

0
 1

/4
"

1
3

'-
3
 3

/8
"

1
0

'-
4

"
9

'-
3

"
2

2
'-
6
 1

/2
"

8'-9" 4'-1" 5'-0" 13'-3"

0303

2
'-
0
 3

/8
"

6'-5 1/4" 6'-1 5/8"

2'-11 3/8"

12'-0 1/2"

4
' 
- 

2
"

2
' 
- 

9
"

6
' 
- 

1
1

"
2

' 
- 

9
"

3
' 
- 

1
0

"

2' - 2"

82 1
' 
- 

8
"

108

5' - 9" 5' - 8"

7' - 10"

5' - 11"

5
' 
- 

0
"

7
' 
- 

6
"

2' - 6"

Built in shelving

Built in shelving

CU

F.F.E.

6927'-6"

6929'-0"

open through 
deck roof above

gas

R
E

G
IS

TERED ARCH
IT

E
C

T

R

E
C

T I IF CATE

O
N

.60672
CAVIN

COSTELLO

RA
IZONA

ASU. . .

D
a
teS

igned

The Ranch Mine LLC
4340 E Indian School Rd.
Suite 21552
Phoenix, AZ 85018

480.399.5990
info@theranchmine.com
www.theranchmine.com

phase:

date of issue:

sheet no:

sheet contents:

rev no, date, description:

1.

20
24

10.

P
in

e
 C

a
n
y
o
n

 3
4
4

2
9
1

1
 S

 S
o
lit

a
ir

e
s
 C

a
n

y
o

n
 D

r.
F

la
g

s
ta

ff
, 

A
Z

 8
6
0

0
5

Construction Documents

01.10.2024

A-100

floor plan - first

Natural Light % Per Area

No. Name Area
Ceiling
Height

Glazing
% of
Floor
Area

4 Living 472 SF 14'-0" 40.26%

5 Dining 251 SF 11'-0" 119.59%

6 Kitchen 287 SF 14'-0" 52.20%

8 Office 95 SF 11'-0" 26.19%

9 Primary Bedroom 311 SF 11'-0" 41.79%

14 Bedroom 236 SF 11'-0" 12.71%

22 Den 266 SF 9'-0" 33.87%

23 Bedroom 238 SF 9'-0" 35.28%

26 Bedroom 194 SF 9'-0" 51.45%

31 Bedroom 300 SF 9'-0" 14.02%

N3/16" = 1'-0"

First Floor

2

2

2 01/10/24 Final DRC

Cavin
Pen
e

Cavin
Pen

Cavin
Text Box
EXPIRES DEC 31 2024



UP

Keynotes

01

02

Floor Plan Notes

03

Column per structural

Soffit above

1. See A-500 for wall type details
2. Provide blocking for all wall mounted TV, typ.

Planter

W1

Wood Board & Batten

Stone Veneer

SEE DETAILS ON A-500

W2

W5

Wall Types

Interior partition1x

Stone Veneer CMUW4

Wood Tongue & Groove

W1a Clad on both sides

W4a Clad on both sides

Interior furring2x

Interior Stone Veneer1S

Wood Board & Batten on CMUW3

W5a Clad on both sides

300 SF

Bedroom

31

266 SF

Den

22

48 SF

Bath

33

93 SF

Bath

32

194 SF

Bedroom

26

238 SF

Bedroom

23

74 SF

Bath

27

29 SF

Closet

28

74 SF

Closet

25

78 SF

Bath

24

259 SF

Hall

21

W/D

AHU
Deck

1

A-300

1

A-301

2

A-301

008

006

005

007

001

003

004

03 02

01

A-200

1

A
-2

00 2

A-201

1

001 002

003 004

007 008

005

W5

W4a W1a

W1

W5

W5

W3

4

4

W3

W3

W3

W3

9'-3" 12'-7 9/32" 27'-7 31/32"

13'-0 7/32" 5'-11 3/4" 8'-8"

6916'-6"

9
'-
1

1
 1

/2
"

9
'-
9
 1

/4
"

9'-3" 4'-7 7/8"

2'-5"

6
'-
1

0
 7

/8
"

3
'-
2

"
7

'-
0

"

3
'-
2
 3

/8
"

4
'-
0

"

5'-9 25/32" 13'-1 1/4" 6'-6"

4
'-
7

 7
/1

6
"

9
'-
4

 5
/1

6
"

1
7

'-
4
 5

/8
"

3
'-
7

 2
7

/3
2

"

4
'-
7

"
5

'-
1

0
 1

/2
"

1
4

'-
9

"

5
'-
4
 1

/2
"

4
'-
3
 1

/2
"

02

2A

1B

2A

2'-5" 2'-6" 3'-5"

57 SF

Closet

34

7
' 
- 

8
"

6
' 
- 

7
"

2
' 
- 

4
"

4
' 
- 

6
"

12' - 10" 6' - 0" 6' - 1"

4
' 
- 

8
"

8
' 
- 

0
"

3
' 
- 

9
"

83

3
' 
- 

2
"

R
E

G
IS

TERED ARCH
IT

E
C

T

R

E
C

T I IF CATE

O
N

.60672
CAVIN

COSTELLO

RA
IZONA

ASU. . .

D
a
teS

igned

The Ranch Mine LLC
4340 E Indian School Rd.
Suite 21552
Phoenix, AZ 85018

480.399.5990
info@theranchmine.com
www.theranchmine.com

phase:

date of issue:

sheet no:

sheet contents:

rev no, date, description:

1.

20
24

10.

P
in

e
 C

a
n
y
o
n

 3
4
4

2
9
1

1
 S

 S
o
lit

a
ir

e
s
 C

a
n

y
o

n
 D

r.
F

la
g

s
ta

ff
, 

A
Z

 8
6
0

0
5

Construction Documents

01.10.2024

A-101

floor plan - basement

Natural Light % Per Area

No. Name Area
Ceiling
Height

Glazing
% of
Floor
Area

4 Living 472 SF 14'-0" 40.26%

5 Dining 251 SF 11'-0" 119.59%

6 Kitchen 287 SF 14'-0" 52.20%

8 Office 95 SF 11'-0" 26.19%

9 Primary Bedroom 311 SF 11'-0" 41.79%

14 Bedroom 236 SF 11'-0" 12.71%

22 Den 266 SF 9'-0" 33.87%

23 Bedroom 238 SF 9'-0" 35.28%

26 Bedroom 194 SF 9'-0" 51.45%

31 Bedroom 300 SF 9'-0" 14.02%

N3/16" = 1'-0"

Basement Plan

Cavin
Pen
e

Cavin
Pen

Cavin
Text Box
EXPIRES DEC 31 2024



Keynotes

01

Elevation Notes

1. See A-500 for wall type details.

02

CMU Stemwall

Wall sconce

First Floor
6927'-6"

T.O. Roof
6952'-0"

Ceiling
6938'-6"

Garage
6929'-0"

Basement Ceiling
6925'-6"

WD-1

MT-2

SV-1

WD-1

SV-1

WD-2

WD-2

WD-1

SV-1

MT-2

SV-1

MT-2

WD-1

T
.O

. 
R

o
o

f 
- 

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 G

ra
d

e

1
9

'-
3

"

T
.O

. 
R

o
o

f 
- 

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 G

ra
d

e

2
5

'-
4
 1

/4
"

T
.O

. 
R

o
o

f 
- 

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 G

ra
d

e

2
4

'-
2
 1

/2
"

T
.O

. 
R

o
o

f 
- 

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 G

ra
d

e

2
2

'-
7
 1

/4
"

Existing grade

Existing grade

6930'-6"
T.O. Wall

63
62

61

60 59 58

57

Stone Lintel Stone Lintel

4

A-501

First Floor
6927'-6"

T.O. Roof
6952'-0"

Ceiling
6938'-6"

Basement
6916'-6"

Garage
6929'-0"

Basement Ceiling
6925'-6"

WD-2

WD-1

SV-1

SV-1

MT-2

WD-1

WD-2

WD-1

WD-1

MT-1

Existing grade

Existing grade

MT-1

m
a

x
 h

e
ig

h
t 
a

t 
ro

o
f

3
5

'-
8
 1

5
/1

6
"

5556

008 007

17

005

16 15

112113

115

114 111

110

787980

001002

0302

003

1
7

' 
- 

6
"

Stone Lintel
Stone Lintel

8" 

1'-0"
8" 

1'-0"

8" 

1'-0"
8" 

1'-0"

m
a

x
 h

e
ig

h
t 
a

t 
ro

o
f

3
3

' 
- 

5
"

m
a

x
 h

e
ig

h
t 
a

t 
ro

o
f

2
9

' -
 1

0
"

MT-2

Standing Seam Metal Roof 
Mechanically seamed
MFR TBD
Black 

SV-1

Stone Veneer
Solstice Stone
Harvest Mix
LRV 26.77%

Brake Metal 
Powder coated shop or factory 
finish to match standing seam roof
Black

WD-2

Wood Siding - Board & Batten
Batten size 3" x 1" spaced 16" O.C.
Wood Fascia
Delta Millworks
ThermoWood Spruce | Smooth 
Color: Delta Black

WD-3

Decking
Delta Millworks
Lunawood Decking
Unfinished

MT-1

T&G Soffits, Rafter Tails, 
Exposed Ridge Beams, 
Garage Doors
Delta Millworks
Western Red Cedar | Smooth
Color: Coyote

WD-1

Wood Siding - Tongue & Groove
1x8
Delta Millworks
Western Red Cedar | Smooth
Color: Coyote

Exterior Doors & Windows
Anodized Aluminum
Black

MT-3

R
E

G
IS

TERED ARCH
IT

E
C

T

R

E
C

T I IF CATE

O
N

.60672
CAVIN

COSTELLO

RA
IZONA

ASU. . .

D
a
teS

igned

The Ranch Mine LLC
4340 E Indian School Rd.
Suite 21552
Phoenix, AZ 85018

480.399.5990
info@theranchmine.com
www.theranchmine.com

phase:

date of issue:

sheet no:

sheet contents:

rev no, date, description:

1.

20
24

10.

P
in

e
 C

a
n
y
o
n

 3
4
4

2
9
1

1
 S

 S
o
lit

a
ir

e
s
 C

a
n

y
o

n
 D

r.
F

la
g

s
ta

ff
, 

A
Z

 8
6
0

0
5

Construction Documents

01.10.2024

A-200

elevations

3/16" = 1'-0"1
East

3/16" = 1'-0"2
North

2

2

2 01/10/24 Final DRC

Cavin
Pen
e

Cavin
Pen

Cavin
Text Box
EXPIRES DEC 31 2024



Keynotes

01

Elevation Notes

1. See A-500 for wall type details.

02

CMU Stemwall

Wall sconce

First Floor
6927'-6"

T.O. Roof
6952'-0"

Ceiling
6938'-6"

Basement
6916'-6"

Garage
6929'-0"

Basement Ceiling
6925'-6"

SV-1

MT-2

WD-1

SV-1

WD-2

MT-2

SV-1

WD-1

WD-1WD-1

WD-1

SV-1

WD-2

MT-1

WD-1

Welded steel 
mesh railing

T
.O

. 
R

o
o

f 
- 

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 G

ra
d

e

3
3

'-
4
 1

1
/3

2
"

T
.O

. 
C

h
im

n
e

y
 -

 E
x
is

ti
n

g
 G

ra
d

e

3
5

'-
0

"

T
.O

. 
C

h
im

n
e

y
 -

 E
x
is

ti
n

g
 G

ra
d

e

3
5

'-
0

"

T
.O

. 
R

o
o

f 
- 

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 G

ra
d

e

2
3

'-
1

 1
/1

6
"

Existing grade

54

74757677

13 14

Stone Lintel

83

Stone Lintel

4

A-501

First Floor
6927'-6"

T.O. Roof
6952'-0"

Ceiling
6938'-6"

Garage
6929'-0"

MT-1

WD-2

SV-1

WD-1

MT-1

WD-1

MT-2

SV-1

WD-2

SV-1

WD-1

T
.O

. 
R

o
o

f 
- 

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 G

ra
d

e

2
3

'-
0

 3
/3

2
"

Existing grade

Existing grade

T
.O

. 
R

o
o

f 
- 

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 G

ra
d

e

2
1

'-
1

0
 1

/2
"

73 72 71 69 68 67 66

106

107108

109

10

6402

01 01

MT-2

Standing Seam Metal Roof 
Mechanically seamed
MFR TBD
Black 

SV-1

Stone Veneer
Solstice Stone
Harvest Mix
LRV 26.77%

Brake Metal 
Powder coated shop or factory 
finish to match standing seam roof
Black

WD-2

Wood Siding - Board & Batten
Batten size 3" x 1" spaced 16" O.C.
Wood Fascia
Delta Millworks
ThermoWood Spruce | Smooth 
Color: Delta Black

WD-3

Decking
Delta Millworks
Lunawood Decking
Unfinished

MT-1

T&G Soffits, Rafter Tails, 
Exposed Ridge Beams, 
Garage Doors
Delta Millworks
Western Red Cedar | Smooth
Color: Coyote

WD-1

Wood Siding - Tongue & Groove
1x8
Delta Millworks
Western Red Cedar | Smooth
Color: Coyote

Exterior Doors & Windows
Anodized Aluminum
Black

MT-3

R
E

G
IS

TERED ARCH
IT

E
C

T

R

E
C

T I IF CATE

O
N

.60672
CAVIN

COSTELLO

RA
IZONA

ASU. . .

D
a
teS

igned

The Ranch Mine LLC
4340 E Indian School Rd.
Suite 21552
Phoenix, AZ 85018

480.399.5990
info@theranchmine.com
www.theranchmine.com

phase:

date of issue:

sheet no:

sheet contents:

rev no, date, description:

1.

20
24

10.

P
in

e
 C

a
n
y
o
n

 3
4
4

2
9
1

1
 S

 S
o
lit

a
ir

e
s
 C

a
n

y
o

n
 D

r.
F

la
g

s
ta

ff
, 

A
Z

 8
6
0

0
5

Construction Documents

01.10.2024

A-201

elevations

3/16" = 1'-0"1
West

3/16" = 1'-0"2
South

Cavin
Pen
e

Cavin
Pen

Cavin
Text Box
EXPIRES DEC 31 2024



  
Planning & Zoning CommissionPlanning & Zoning Commission 6. A. 6.  A.             
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 04/24/2024  
From:From: Wesley Welch, Planner

InformationInformation
TITLE:TITLE:
Juniper Point Parcel 2 Preliminary Plat PZ-22-00192-01Juniper Point Parcel 2 Preliminary Plat PZ-22-00192-01  
JP325, LLC requests Preliminary Plat approval for Juniper Point, Parcel 2, located at 2000 John Wesley
Powell Boulevard, a single-family subdivision of 62 lots on 17.54 (gross) or 11.36 (net) acres in the RR (Rural
Residential) Zone utilizing the Planned Residential Development (PRD) option. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDED ACTION:STAFF RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Staff recommends the Planning & Zoning Commission, in accordance with the findings presented in this
report, forward the Preliminary Plat to the City Council with a recommendation of approval, given the
conditions outlined in the Staff Report. 

Executive Summary:Executive Summary:
JP325, LLC requests Preliminary Plat approval for Juniper Point, Parcel 2, located at 2000 John Wesley
Powell Boulevard, a single-family subdivision of 62 lots on 17.54 (gross) or 11.36 (net) acres in the RR (Rural
Residential) Zone utilizing the Planned Residential Development (PRD) option. The site has a Resouce
Protection Overlay and is currently vacant. It is located in the Southwest portion of the overall Juniper Point
development site and immediately east of Juniper Point Parcel 1 which is currently under construction.
 

AttachmentsAttachments
Staff Report
Application
Preliminary Plat
Vicinity Map
Utility Letters



PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
PRELIMINARY PLAT 

 
 
PZ-22-00192-01        DATE:    April 15, 2024 
         MEETING DATE:  April 24, 2024   
         REPORT BY:    Wesley Welch 
               
REQUEST: 
JP325, LLC requests Preliminary Plat approval for Juniper Point, Parcel 2, located at 2000 John Wesley Powell Boulevard, 
a single-family subdivision of 62 lots on 17.54 (gross) or 11.36 (net) acres in the RR (Rural Residential) Zone utilizing the 
Planned Residential Development (PRD) option.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends the Planning and Zoning Commission, in accordance with the findings presented in this report, 
forward the Preliminary Plat to the City Council with a recommendation of approval, with the following conditions: 
 

1. The Final Plat shall adjust the plat boundaries to include the remainder of Juniper Point Parcel 1 Tract G.  
2. The Final Plat and Engineering plans shall adjust the plat boundaries to include all areas that are being utilized 

for Resource Protection calculations. 
 
PRESENT LAND USE: 
The vacant subject site is located within the southern portion of the Juniper Point development area and to the east of 
the recently constructed subdivision for Juniper Point Parcel 1.    
 
PROPOSED LAND USE: 
Juniper Point Parcel 2 subdivision, consisting of 62 single-family lots located on 17.54 acres in the RR (Rural Residential) 
Zone.  
 
NEIGHBORHOOD DEVELOPMENT: 
See the attached vicinity map for more information.  
 
North: Undeveloped land and Coconino Community College; Rural Residential (RR) zone. 
South: JW Powell Boulevard and Pine Canyon; Single-family Residential (R1) zone.  
East: Undeveloped Land that is part of the Juniper Point development area, RR Zone.  
West: Juniper Point Parcel 1 subdivision, split RR and R1 Zone, developed with PRD standards. 
 
REQUIRED FINDINGS: 
The Planning and Zoning Commission shall find the proposed Preliminary Plat meets the requirements of the City Code 
Title 10, Flagstaff Zoning Code; City Code Title 11, General Plans and Subdivisions; and City Code Title 13, Engineering 
Design Standards and Specifications. 
 

 
STAFF REVIEW: 
 
I. Project Information 
 

A. Background 
 
The applicant, JP325, LLC, is seeking preliminary plat approval for a 62-lot single-family residential  
subdivision. The property is located in the southwest portion of the city, north of Pine Canyon residential  



 
 

PZ-22-00192-01| April 24, 2024 

 

- 2 – 

 

subdivision and south of Interstate 40, and approximately one-half mile southeast of the Coconino Community 
College, Lone Tree Road campus. The subdivision is located within the Resource Protection Overlay (RPO)  
zone and includes steep slope areas and Ponderosa Pine forest.  
 
There is one portion of the site that is currently under development, Juniper Point Parcel 1. This subdivision was 
developed with the PRD mechanism and provided 38 lots on 17.23 acres. The remainder of the parcel, identified as 
Tract “G”, was saved for future development. This preliminary plat for Juniper Point Parcel 2 is utilizing this tract for its 
development and will end up creating another tract for future development, minus what is used for Parcel 2.  
 
The development of this subdivision will be a part of APN 104-14-010, with a portion of that parcel becoming a new 
tract for future development. The applicant currently has multiple submittals for the site, including Juniper Point 
Parcel 3 preliminary plat, Juniper Point South concept plat, and Juniper Point 95 concept plat and rezone.   
 
B. Type of Plat 
This Preliminary Plat request is for a single-family residential subdivision consisting of 62 individual lots. All areas in the 
subdivision not allocated as lots are reserved as tracts. Tracts H, I, J, L, M, and N are reserved for Open Space while 
Tract K is intended for a public utility easement and a public access easement trail. Tract O is intended for Resource 
Protection, Open Space, and Drainage and will be included in more detail on the final plat.  

 
II. Required Findings: Conformance with City Development Standards and Regional Plan 
Staff reviewed and approved the Preliminary Plat based on conformance with City Code Title 10, Flagstaff Zoning Code; 
City Code Title 11, General Plans and Subdivisions; and City Code Title 13, Engineering Design Standards and 
Specifications. 
  

A. City of Flagstaff Zoning Code (Title 10) 
 
i. Rural Residential (RR) Zone 
The property is zoned RR, Rural Residential. The RR Zone has a maximum density requirement of 1 unit per acre.  
The proposed 62 lots on 17.54 acres is a density of 3.53 units per acre which is above the maximum density, 
however the subdivision will be utilizing the PRD standards which allows for the clustering of density while 
preserving larger areas of open space within the site. The applicant will need to adjust their final plat to include the 
boundaries of Juniper Point Parcel 1 Tract G in order to maintain the proper acreage for their density.  

 
PRD is a permitted use in the RR zone. Division 10-40.60.280 of the Zoning Code addresses specific use standards for 
PRD.  PRDs may use different building types (i.e., Carriage House, Single-Family Cottage,  Duplex) as part of an 
integrated site planning process in non-transect zones and for achieving gross densities on undeveloped land where 
substantial natural resources are present on the site.  Division 10-50.110 of the Zoning Code provides standards for 
specific building types and specifies the transect zones in which they are allowed.  The T3N.2 transect zone allows 
the Single-Family House building type in new neighborhoods. It is worth noting that the code for the PRD has 
changed and this will be the last subdivision in the Juniper Point development area to utilize the old code. Juniper 
Point Parcel 3, and all future submittals, will adhere to the new PRD code. 

 
The Single-Family House building type permits a minimum lot area of 5,000 square feet. The lots within this 
subdivision comply with the minimum lot area per building type. The preliminary plat complies with the applicable 
standards and building form and placement standards such as setbacks and height allowed in the T3N.2 transect 
zone (Division 10-40.40.060 of the Zoning Code).   

 
Setback requirements for the T3N.2 transect zone are: 
 



 
 

PZ-22-00192-01| April 24, 2024 

 

- 3 – 

 

Front   12’min, 25’ max 
Side   5’ min 
Side Street 10’ min, 30’ max 
Rear  12’ min 

 
Each building type has specific frontage types that must be used when developing the individual lots.  In this case, the 
Projecting Porch, Integral Porch, and Engaged Porch frontage type has been applied.  Division 10-50.120.040 addresses 
the standards for the Projecting Porch frontage type.  With this frontage type, the house has a shorter front setback 
from the property line.  The resulting front yard is typically smaller than traditional single-family development.   

 
ii. Natural Resources 
The subject property is located within the RPO.  The applicant is identifying resources for the entirety of their overall 
Juniper Point South land area (184.94 acres). This plat does not meet resource protection requirements for the site 
itself and will need to include a boundary adjustment and Tract G from Juniper Point Parcel 1 to meet the requirements 
for this plat. However, the applicant is still identifying the resources for the overall site and this plat will be in 
compliance with resource protection requirements once this adjustment is made.  

 
iii. Historic/Cultural Resources 
A Cultural Resource Study, dated April 2006, was submitted with the Development Master Plan for Juniper Point 
South, and was accepted and approved by the Heritage Preservation Officer. 
 
iv. Parks, Open Space, Pedestrian, and Bicycle Facilities 
PRDs are required to provide 15% of the site as Open Space and 5% as Civic Space. Tract H and Tract J, consisting of 
sidewalks, and trail connections are proposed to satisfy the civic space requirement. Tracts N, L, and K consist of open 
areas on the site and are proposed to satisfy the open space requirement. These numbers will need to be adjusted on the 
Final Plat as the percentage of open and civic space need to be inclusive of the overall site and not just this portion of the 
development. There is a proposed connection to the Bow and Arrow Wash trail that will be realigned and finalized with 
the submittal of the Juniper Point Parcel 3 preliminary plat. 

 
B. City of Flagstaff Subdivision Standards (Title 11) 
 

i. Preliminary Plat 
Inter-department Staff (IDS) approved the Preliminary Plat based on conformance with the procedures and application 
requirements outlined in Section 11-20.60: Preliminary Plat. 
 
ii. Subdivision Standards and Regulations  
IDS also approved the Preliminary Plat based on conformance with relevant standards in Section 11-20.120: Subdivision 
Design Standards and Requirements. 
 

ii.1 Lot Design 
The proposed subdivision meets the standards for lot design:  

• Meet the minimum lot width, depth, and size requirements of the Zoning Code.  

• Be designed appropriately for the location and character of the proposed development, street improvements, and 
underlying topography.  

• All lots shall be lawfully built upon and be developable (lots are designed in a way so that development can meet 
all relevant development standards). 

• Buildable area (building envelope) shall be located away from the crest of ridge lines. 

• Buildable area shall be determined by setback requirements and the location of natural topographic features.  



 
 

PZ-22-00192-01| April 24, 2024 

 

- 4 – 

 

ii.2 Street Design 
The proposed subdivision meets the standards for street design:  

• Meet the street cross-section standards (Engineering Standards) for the type of street proposed. 

• Street design is appropriate for underlying topography and in relation to existing streets. Where feasible, streets 
shall be placed on top of ridges to minimize the extent of grading and reduce the visual impact of development.  

ii.3 Easement Design 
The proposed subdivision meets the standards for easement design:  

• Easements shall be provided and dedicated where deemed necessary for specific purposes (the plat will dedicate 
a public utility easement and a drainage easement). 

• Drainage easements shall substantially follow the line of any existing watercourse that traverses the land. 

ii.4 Block Design 

The proposed subdivision meets the standards for block design:  

• Blocks in non-transect zones shall not normally exceed 1,200 feet in length measured from the property lines, 
except in hillside developments or where a subdivision of one-half acre lots or larger justify or require a variation 
from this requirement, or where there are unusual conditions of the property being subdivided. 

 
iii. Minimum Required Subdivision Improvements 
The subdivider is required to improve all streets, pedestrian ways, alleys, and easements in the subdivision and 
adjacent to it as required to serve the subdivision. Staff review of the Preliminary Plat along with the impact analyses 
discussed in the Engineering Standards section below identified the required improvements in conformance with 
Section 11-20.130: Minimum Required Subdivision Improvements. These improvements will formally be approved with 
Civil Engineering Plans review, which will occur after Preliminary Plat approval by City Council.  

 
C. City of Flagstaff Engineering Standards (Title 13) 
 
As part of the Preliminary Plat review, Staff conducted a public systems analysis to confirm preliminary compliance with 
Engineering Standards. Following Preliminary Plat approval, the applicant shall submit and receive approval for Civil 
Engineering Plans for the subdivision prior to review and approval of the Final Plat. Approval of the Civil Engineering Plans 
will be contingent on the plat meeting City Engineering Standards.  

 
i. Access and Traffic 
During the preliminary platting process of Juniper Point Parcel 1, it was determined that a Traffic Impact Analysis 
(TIA) would be required for the Development Master Plan which was approved in 2022 – however Traffic’s 
requirements were sufficed with a Traffic Statement. A new Traffic Statement was provided for Juniper Point Parcels 
1-3 and was approved by the Traffic division on December 13, 2023. A Master TIA for the entire Juniper Point 
development site has been submitted and is currently under review.  
 
The main access for this subdivision will be taken from JW Powell Boulevard through the entrance created with the 
construction of Parcel 1. The secondary connection for this subdivision will be from Lone Tree Road, once 
constructed.  
 

 
ii. Water and Wastewater  
Audurra, on behalf of the City of Flagstaff Water Services Division, prepared the Water and Wastewater Impact 
Analysis (WSIA).  The analysis is based on the demands generated by the entire Juniper Point development site with a 
residential dwelling cap of 444 residential single-family units and 1,100 multi-family units. 



 
 

PZ-22-00192-01| April 24, 2024 

 

- 5 – 

 

 
Water 
 
Currently there is City of Flagstaff water supply infrastructure adjacent to the site, a 27” water transmission main in 
Bow and Arrow Wash and a 20” waterline south of the project in JW Powell Blvd with capacity deemed adequate to 
serve this development. The proposed subdivision will be serviced by the Zone B water pressure system and any 
tapping or extension of the waterline will be done according to City of Flagstaff Standards.  
 
The Juniper Point Parcel 2 preliminary plat identified a proposed 8” water stub at the intersection of Lone Tree Road 
and Farallon Drive. There are also 5 fire hydrants proposed to be located off the internal road network created by this 
subdivision. There will be a 12” waterline constructed under Lone Tree Road which will connect on the northern 
portion of the site. This waterline will also connect to the waterline on JW Powell Boulevard at the intersection of JW 
Powell Boulevard and Lone Tree Road.  

 
Wastewater 
There is an existing 24” sewer trunk line in the Bow and Arrow Wash that crosses the property and will be utilized for 
sewer collection for the development. The sewer trunk is located is on the property so no offsite sewer extensions 
will be required to reach the existing public system. 

 
There is an existing cleanout that was part of Juniper Point Parcel 1. Parcel 2 will remove the existing cleanout and 
install a new sewer manhole as they connect the existing 8” sewer line to the proposed 8” sewer line that services the 
development. There is a proposed 8” sewer stub located near the waterline stub referenced above. This will be located 
at the intersection of Farallon Drive and Lone Tree Road.   
 
This proposal was reviewed by Water Services staff and no issues have been identified with capacity demands at this 
point in the development.  

 
iii. Stormwater 
A Preliminary Drainage Report for Juniper Point Phase 1 (Parcels 1-3) was prepared on March 7, 2023 and reviewed 
by Stormwater Staff.  The project has been delineated into eight drainage areas to separate flow through the 
development. Juniper Point Parcel 2 contains the following identified basins from the report: B2.1, B2.2, B2.4, B2.5, 
B2.6 and B3. The report determined that detention basins for Phase 1 will be designed to reduce post-development 
runoff rates to be equal to or below the existing peak flow. There are three extended detention ponds located on the 
Parcel 2 site. One is included as part of Tract N and the other two are located within the boundaries of Juniper Point 
Parcel 3, but their construction will be part of the Parcel 2 development.  

 
 

 
REQUIRED FINDINGS: 
The Planning and Zoning Commission shall find the Preliminary Plat meets the requirements of the City Code Title 10, 
Flagstaff Zoning Code; City Code Title 11, General Plans and Subdivisions; and City Code Title 13, Engineering Design 
Standards and Specifications, with the recommended conditions.  
 
 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends the Planning and Zoning Commission, in accordance with the required findings presented in this 
report, forward the Preliminary Plat to the City Council with a recommendation of approval, given the following 
condition: 
 



 
 

PZ-22-00192-01| April 24, 2024 

 

- 6 – 

 

1. The Final Plat shall adjust the plat boundaries to include the remainder of Juniper Point Parcel 1 Tract G.  
2. The Final Plat shall adjust the plat boundaries to include portions that are being utilized for Resource Protection 

calculations. 
 
 
Attachments: 
▪ Application 
▪ Preliminary Plat, including the Natural Resource Protection Plan 
▪ Vicinity Map 
▪ Utility notification letters 





9

C
O

V
E

R
 S

H
E

E
T

CVR
1

PRELIMINARY PLAT
FOR

JUNIPER POINT - PARCEL 2
FLAGSTAFF, ARIZONA

SOURCE OF PROJECT INFORMATION

PROJECT OWNER: PROJECT DEVELOPER:

FEMA DESIGNATION

PROPERTY INFORMATION:

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

PROJECT ENGINEER:

12''W

8''WPROJECT
LOCATION

UTILITY CONFLICT

    

PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION,
BIDDING OR RECORDING

PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION,
BIDDING OR RECORDING

TOTAL RESIDENTIAL UNITS

TOTAL NET ACREAGE

DENSITY TRACKING TABLE

SURVEYOR:

EARTHWORK SUMMARY

BASIS OF BEARING

RESOURCE PRESERVATION



S

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

S

S

W

S

S

S

W

W

W

W

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

W

9

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 B
O

U
N

D
A

R
Y

EB01
2

PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION,
BIDDING OR RECORDING

PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION,
BIDDING OR RECORDING

KEYMAP

COORDINATE SYSTEM DETAILS



>
>

>

>

>

>

>
>

>
>

>
>

>
>

>

>

>

>

>
>

>
>

9

P
LA

T 
O

V
E

R
V

IE
W

OV01
3

PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION,
BIDDING OR RECORDING

PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION,
BIDDING OR RECORDING

KEYMAP



W

W

>
>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>>>>>>
>

>
>

>>>
>

>

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

8''SS

8'
'W

8'
'W

8'
'W

8'
'W

8'
'W

8''W

S
S

S
S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

8'
'W

S

S

S

S
S

S

S

S

S

8''W 8''W

>>>

8''W

8''W8''W

8''W

8''W

8''W

8''W

8''W

8''W

8''W

8''W

8''W

>

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W 12''W 12''W
12''W

12''W

N

11

10

9

1

61

47

39

59

54

46

38

53

45

37

52

44

36

58

51

43

35

57

50

42

34

49

41

L

60

48

40

56 55

H

62

4

5

6

7

8

3

2

M

1

12

25

13J1415
1618

19

20

21

22

23

24

31

26

27

28

29

30

33

K

17

I

9

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
 P

LA
T 

(1
)

PP01
4

PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION,
BIDDING OR RECORDING

PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION,
BIDDING OR RECORDING

FUTURE
PARCEL 3

AT JUNIPER
POINT

PARCEL 1 AT JUNIPER POINT

J.W
. PO

W
ELL BO

U
LEVAR

D

CLEAR VIEW ZONE CALCULATIONS

ID # MAJOR STREET
MANEUVER
DIRECTION

DESIGN SPEED
(VMAJOR)1

TIME GAP
tg

(unadjuste
d)2

GRADE
≤ 3%

MULTIPLE LANE
CROSSINGS

NO. OF
LANES4

TIME GAP
tg(adjusted)

2

INTERSECTION
SIGHT DISTANCE

(ISD3)
STOPPING SIGHT
DISTANCE (SSD)

D1 LONE TREE RD Right 40 6.5 Yes No 1 6.5 385 305
D2 LONE TREE RD Left 40 7.5 Yes Yes 4 9.0 529 305

Notes:
(1) The major road speed limits (VMAJOR in MPH) are based on existing conditions in the project vicinity.

(2) The time gap values, adjusted (tg (adjusted) in seconds) and unadjusted (tg (unadjusted ) in seconds), are based on the current site plan and the AASHTO-Geometric
Design of Highways and Streets Exhibits 9-54 and 9-57 for D1 and D2 and Exhibits 9-66 and 9-67 for M1. The first lane crossed does not warrant an adjustment to
the time gap.

(3) The intersection site distance (ISD in feet) calculations are based on Equation 9-1 in the AASHTO-Geometric Design of Highways and Streets.
Equation 9-1: ISD=1.47*VMAJOR*tg

(4) The number of lanes crossed may include medians converted to equivalent lanes. The number of lanes provided in the table includes the first lane crossed.
(5) If the approach grade is greater than 3%, add 0.1 seconds for each percent grade.

Impervious Area & LID Analysis (Parcel 2 Only)
LID Required Depth (ft)

0.0833

Basin ID
Existing Basin

Area (sf)
Proposed Basin

Area (sf)

Existing
Impervious Area

(sf)

Proposed
Impervious Area

(sf)

Net Impervious
Area (sf)

Required LID
Volume (cf)

B1 291,727 147,610 0 0 0 0
B2 1,195,776 1,289,243 0 240,165 240,165 20,014

B3 500,732 241,776 0 148,340 148,340 12,362

B4 58,291 58,291 39,752 0 39,752 3,313
Notes:
1. Gross required 1" LID volume is for impervious area including proposed streets (internal roadways and Lone Tree to P3), 1/2
JWP ROW along frontage, sidewalks, and lots.

M
A

G
N

O
LI

A
 D

R

SORA LN

FARALLO
N DR

FUTURE
PHASE 2 OF

JUNIPER
POINT LONE TREE ROAD

ROCKPOINT LN



LINE TABLE LINE TABLE LINE TABLE LINE TABLE CURVE TABLE CURVE TABLE

9

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
 P

LA
T 

(2
)

PP02
5

PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION,
BIDDING OR RECORDING

PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION,
BIDDING OR RECORDING



>
>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>>>>>>>>
>

>
>

>
>

>
>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>>>
>

>

S
S

S
S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S
S

S

S

S

S

>>>

>

SD

SD

SD

SD

S
D

S
D

S
D

S
D

SD
SD

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W 12''W 12''W
12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

8''SS

N

11

10

9

1

61

47

39

59

54

46

38

53

45

37

52

44

36

58

51

43

35

57

50

42

34

49

41

L

60

48

40

56 55

H

62

4

5

6

7

8

3

2

M

1

12

25

13J1415
1618

19

20

21

22

23

24

31

26

27

28

29

30

33

K

17

I

9

O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E

OS01
6

PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION,
BIDDING OR RECORDING

PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION,
BIDDING OR RECORDING

FUTURE
PARCEL 3

AT JUNIPER
POINT

PARCEL 1 AT JUNIPER POINT

J.
W

. P
O

W
EL

L 
BO

U
LE

VA
R

D

Preliminary Plat Open Space Analysis
Total Area of Parcel 2 Subdivision
(sf) 763,616
Required Open Space (sf) (15%) 114,542
Required Civic Open Space (5%) 38,181
Provided Open Space (sf) 134,650
Provided Civic Open Space 39,165
1. Open Space is active and passive recreation areas,
landscape areas, and community gardens according to the
Flagstaff Zoning Code 10-40.30.30.

V
E

S
P

E
R

 D
R

SORA LN

FARALLO
N DR

FUTURE
PHASE 2 OF

JUNIPER
POINT

LEGEND



PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION,
BIDDING OR RECORDING

PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION,
BIDDING OR RECORDING

SLO
PE AND

 D
RAINAG

E EASEM
ENT

1% - 2%

RO
W

ROADWAY & ROW

5'
PARK
WAY

5'
SIDE
WALK

2' 2'2'5'
PARK
WAY

5'
SIDE
WALK

2'

37'

SLO
PE AND

 D
RAINAG

E EASEM
ENT 30.5' 30.5'

61' MIN.

2:1
2:1

RO
W

33'
TRAVEL LANE

2-WAY

3" ABC MIN.
(TYP.)

1% - 2%
2:1
2:1

SLO
PE AND

 D
RAINAG

E EASEM
ENT

1% - 2%

RO
W

ROADWAY & ROW

5'
PARK
WAY

5'
SIDE
WALK

2' 2'2'5'
PARK
WAY

5'
SIDE
WALK

2'
33'

SLO
PE AND

 D
RAINAG

E EASEM
ENT

28.5' 28.5'

57' MIN.

2:1
2:1

RO
W

17'
TRAVEL LANE

2-WAY
6'

PARKING
6'

PARKING

3" ABC MIN.
(TYP.)

1% - 2%
2:1
2:1

SLO
PE AND

 D
RAINAG

E EASEM
ENT

RO
W

24.0'
RAISED LANDSCAPE MEDIAN

12.0'
TRAVEL
LANE

5.0'
PARK
WAY

11.0'
FUTS2'

65.0'

50.5'

101.0'

6.5'
BIKE LANE

AND
BUFFER

12.0'
TRAVEL
LANE

6.5'
BIKE LANE

AND
BUFFER

6.0'
SIDE
WALK

10.0'
PARK
WAY

2'

LC ROADWAY & ROW

2:1
2:1

SLO
PE AND

 D
RAINAG

E EASEM
ENT

RO
W

2:1
2:1

1% - 2% 1% - 2%

LONE TREE INTERIM - CROSS SECTION
NOT TO SCALE

50.5'

LONE TREE - CROSS SECTION
NOT TO SCALE

2' 2'

SLO
PE AND

 D
RAINAG

E EASEM
ENT

RO
W

15.0'
RAISED LANDSCAPE

MEDIAN

11.0'
TRAVEL
LANE

5.0'
PARK
WAY

6.0'
WALK2'

65.0'

50.5'

101.0'

12.0'
TRAVEL
LANE

6.0'
SIDE
WALK

5.0'
PARK
WAY

2'

LC ROADWAY & ROW

2:1
2:1

SLO
PE AND

 D
RAINAG

E EASEM
ENT

RO
W

2:1
2:1

1% - 2% 1% - 2%

50.5'

2'
2'

12.0'
TRAVEL
LANE

11.0'
TRAVEL
LANE

5.0'
BIKE

5.0'
BIKE



SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

S

S

W >
>

>

>

>

>>>>
>

>>
>

>>

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

8''SS

SD

9

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
 N

R
P

P
 - 

P
A

R
C

E
L 

2

NRPP1
8

PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION,
BIDDING OR RECORDING

PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION,
BIDDING OR RECORDING

LEGEND

PARCEL 1 AT
JUNIPER POINT

PARCEL 3 AT
JUNIPER POINT

PHASE 2 AT JUNIPER
POINT

FUTURE PHASE AT
JUNIPER POINT

BOW AND ARROW

WASH



S

S

S

S

S S

S

S
S

S

S

SS

SS
SS

SS

SS

SS

SS
SS

SS

SS
SS

SS SS
SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W
W

W

W

W

WW
W

W

G
G

G
G

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

W

>

>

>>

>

>

12''W

9

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
 N

R
P

P
 - 

P
A

R
C

E
L 

2

NRPP2
8

PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION,
BIDDING OR RECORDING

PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION,
BIDDING OR RECORDING

LEGEND

PARCEL 1 AT
JUNIPER POINT

PARCEL 2 AT
JUNIPER POINT

PARCEL 3AT
JUNIPER POINT



0 0.25 0.5 0.75 10.13

mi
City of Flagstaff maps and data are updated on a regular basis from data obtained from various sources.  The City of Flagstaff endeavors to provide accurate information, but accuracy is not guaranteed. You are strongly encouraged to obtain any information you need for a business or legal transaction from

a surveyor, engineer, title company, or other licensed professional as appropriate.  Information is provided subject to the express condition that you knowingly waive any and all claims for damages against the City of Flagstaff relating to use of this information.

JP Parcel 2 Vicinity Map

4/15/2024 3:16 PM



 
 
 
 
 
 

110 W. Dale Ave.                Phone #: 928-773-0354   Email: kfleishman@ardurra.com  
Flagstaff, AZ 86001 
 

 

March 10, 2023 Job #22120 

PROJECT: Parcel 2 at Juniper Point  

UTILITY CONFLICT LETTER

TO: Altice USA                                                                    FROM: Shephard-Wesnitzer, Inc., an Ardurra      
                                                                                                           Company (SWI) 
       Sanford Yazzie               Kayla Fleishman 
       1601 S. Plaza Way                              110 W Dale Ave 
       Flagstaff, AZ 86001                   Flagstaff, AZ 86001   

  

In conformance with the City of Flagstaff subdivision development process, we have enclosed the 
Preliminary Plat for the Juniper Point – Parcel 2 development prepared by Shephard-Wesnitzer, Inc. 
The site is situated on the north side of J.W. Powell Boulevard. 

Note that this is currently an undeveloped area with few or no anticipated conflicts. Please keep in 
mind while reviewing how future service could be provided to the proposed site. Please provide any 
comments and return them to us as soon as possible.  Please also provide maps of any existing 
Altice USA utilities in the vicinity of the site for coordination purposes.  Thank you for taking the time 
to complete, sign, date, and return this document.  Your transmittal may be by mail or email as 
indicated on the bottom of this page. 

 
 
_____ APPROVED without comment and map provided. 

_____ APPROVED with comment, as follows, and map provided. 

_____ NOT APPROVED with comment, as follows. 

________________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

SIGNED:  ___________________________________ TITLE:  __________________________________ 

AGENCY: ___________________________________ DATE:  __________________________________    

 

jason.quinlan
Typewritten Text
x

jason.quinlan
Typewritten Text
Consturction 

jason.quinlan
Typewritten Text
Optimum Communications 

jason.quinlan
Typewritten Text
3/10/2023





 
 
 
 
 
 

110 W. Dale Ave.                Phone #: 928-773-0354   Email: kfleishman@ardurra.com  
Flagstaff, AZ 86001 
 

 

March 10, 2023 Job #22120 

PROJECT: Parcel 2 at Juniper Point   

UTILITY CONFLICT LETTER

TO: Arizona Public Service (APS)                                     FROM: Shephard-Wesnitzer, Inc., an Ardurra      
                                                                                                           Company (SWI) 
       Chad Brooks               Kayla Fleishman 
       2200 E. Huntington Dr.                              110 W Dale Ave 
       Flagstaff, AZ 86004                   Flagstaff, AZ 86001   

  

In conformance with the City of Flagstaff subdivision development process, we have enclosed the Preliminary 
Plat for the Juniper Point – Parcel 2 development prepared by Shephard-Wesnitzer, Inc. The site is situated on 
the north side of J.W. Powell Boulevard. 
 
Note that this is currently an undeveloped area with few or no anticipated conflicts. Please keep in mind while 
reviewing how future service could be provided to the proposed site. Please provide any comments and return 
them to us as soon as possible.  Please also provide maps of any existing APS utilities in the vicinity of the site 
for coordination purposes.  Thank you for taking the time to complete, sign, date, and return this document.  
Your transmittal may be by mail or email as indicated on the bottom of this page. 

 
 
_____ APPROVED without comment and map provided. 

_____ APPROVED with comment, as follows, and map provided. 

_____ NOT APPROVED with comment, as follows. 

________________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

SIGNED:  ___________________________________ TITLE:  __________________________________ 

AGENCY: ___________________________________ DATE:  __________________________________    

 

z12458
Typewritten Text
X

z12458
Typewritten Text
PLEASE SEE ATTACHED 

z12458
Typewritten Text
CPR SR

z12458
Typewritten Text
APS

z12458
Typewritten Text
3-10-2023



              A subsidiary of Pinnacle West Capital Corporation 

         Station 4423 
         2200 E Huntington DR 
         Flagstaff, AZ 86004www.aps.com 
 

March 10th, 2023, 
 
 
 
 
 
Re: Parcel 2 at Juniper Point 
  
Shephard- Wesnitzer, Inc., an Ardurra Company (SWI) 
110 W Dale Ave  
Flagstaff, AZ 86001 
 
Dear Johan, 
 
Thank you for your recent request for a utility conflict check.  Please complete the attached Map 
Request, and e-mail it to the e-mail address on the form (mapprint@apsc.com). Once APS receives a 
completed Map Request, you should receive the map or maps by email within 5-7 business days. 
 
The APS maps show facility locations adjacent to or within the property shown on the proposed plans 
we received from you. Please review these maps for possible conflicts.  The utility locations are 
approximate only and are not reliable for construction purposes. It is important to note that there may 
be additional conflicts in existence due to recent construction that are not shown on the current maps 
you receive. 
 
Please be advised that it is the responsibility of the customer to maintain proper clearances and blue 
stake prior to digging. For actual conditions, please contact the Arizona Blue Stake Center at 602-
263-1100. 
 
Also enclosed is APS’s General Design Guidelines for Proposed Improvements in APS Transmission 
ROW Please review this document carefully. 
 
If I can be of further assistance, please do not hesitate to call me at 602-371-5770. Further 
information is also available on the APS Construction Services at: 
     
          www.aps.com/construction 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Chad Brooks 
Customer Project Representative SR 
Flagstaff Construction  
 
Enclosures 



»

»» »

»

»»

»

»

» »

»

»

» »

»

»

»

»

21.0N-07.0E-34-4

21.0N-07.0E-27-3

21.0N-07.0E-34-1

21.0N-07.0E-27-4

21.0N-07.0E-35-421.0N-07.0E-34-3

21.0N-07.0E-35-121.0N-07.0E-34-2

21.0N-07.0E-26-4

ä

ä

26 '

ä

ä

26 '

ä

ä 26 
'

ä

ä

26 '

ä

ä

26 '






















































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































 







































P B568830

P B248979

P B295871

P B647479

P B647551

P B248839

P B647477

 

S C512952

P B341414

 

 

P B647599

P B341415

 

*

1-UA1/0T-2"

3-2
"-C
O

*

1-UA1/0T-2"

*

1-UA1/0T-2" 3-U
A1
/0T
-2"
+1
-2"
-C
O

*

4-UA1/0T-2"

2-UA1
/0T-2"

5-U
A1/
0T-
2"

2-UA1/0T-2"

1-2.5"-CO

1-2.5"-CO

3-2"-CO

1-UA1/0T-2"

3-UA1/0T-2"

3-UA1/0T-2"

1-U
A1/0
T-2"
+1-2
"-CO

1-UA1/0T-2"

1-U
A1
/0T
-2"

*

3-UA1/0T-2"

*

6-UA1/0T-2"+1-2"-CO

*

2-UA1/0T-2"+1-2"-CO

*

2-UA1/0T-2"

2-U
A1
/0T
-2"
+1
-2"
-C
O

1-UA1/0T-2"

5-U
A1
/0T
-2"

2-UA1/0T-2"

5-U
A1
/0T
-2"

*

3-UA1/0T-2"+3-2"-CO

1-2.5"-CO

1-2.5"-CO

1-2.5"-CO

*

2-UA1/0T-2"

1-U
A1/
0T-
2"

3-UA1/0T-2"+3-2"-CO

3-UA1/0T-2"

3-UA1/0T-2"

1-U
A1
/0T
-2"

4-UA1/0T-2"

4-UA1/0T-2"
12-3"-CO+3-2"-CO

2-U
A1
/0T
-2"
+1-
2"-
CO

*

2-UA1/0T-2"+1-2"-CO

5-UA1/0
T-2"+1-2

"-CO

*

3-UA1/0T-2"

*

14-UA1/0T-2"+1-2"-CO

4-U
A1
/0T
-2"

*

2-UA1/0T-2"

*

1-UA1/0T-2"

*

2-UA1/0T-2"

*

4-UA1/0T-2"

1-2.5"-CO

1-UA1/0T-2"

1-UA
1/0T
-2"

6-U
A1
/0T
-2"

1-UA1/0T-2"

*

2-UA1/0T-2"

6-UA1/0T-2"

6-UA1/0T-2"+1-2"-CO

*

3-UA1/0T-2"

*

1-UA1/0T-2"

1-UA1
/0T-2"

+1-2"-
CO

1-UA1/0T-2"

*

4-UA1/0T-2"

1-UA
1/0T
-2"+
6-3"
-CO

1-U
A1/
0T-
2"+
1-2
"-CO

3-UA1/0T-2"

1-2
.5"
-C
O

1-2.5
"-CO

1-U
A1
/0T
-2"

*

2-UA1/0T-2"

1-2.5"-CO

1-UA1/0T-2"

6-UA1/0T-
2"

2-UA1/0T-2"

3-UA1/0T-2"

3-U
A1
/0T
-2"

4-UA
1/0T
-2"+
1-2"-
CO

1-2"-CO

*

2-UA1/0T-2"+1-2"-CO

*

2-UA1/0T-2"

1-U
A1
/0T
-2"
+1
-2"
-CO

*

2-UA1/0T-2"

*

2-UA1/0T-2"

1-U
A1
/0T
-2"

1-UA1/0T-2"

1-2.5"-CO

6-UA1/0T-2"

1-UA1/0T
-2"+6-3"-

CO

*

1-UA1/0T-2"

3-2"-CO

1-UA1/0
T-2"+6-

3"-CO

*

2-UA1/0T-2"

*

4-UA1/0T-2"+1-2"-CO

4-UA1/0T-2"

5-U
A1
/0T
-2"

*

2-UA1/0T-2"

*

2-UA1/0T-2"

4-U
A1
/0T
-2"

3-UA1/0T-2"-ABAND

3-UA1/0T-2"

*

2-UA1/0T-2"

1-2.5"-CO

3-UA
1/0T
-2"

1-UA1/0T-2"

1-UA1/0T-2"

4-UA1/
0T-2"+

1-2"-CO

2-UA1/0T-2"

6-UA1/0T-2"+1-2"-CO

2-U
A1
/0T
-2"

2-U
A1
/0T
-2"

1-2.5"-CO

1-2.5
"-CO

1-2.5"-CO

1-2
.5"
-C
O

1-U
A1
/0T
-2"

1-2.5"-CO

2-UA1/0T-2"

1-2.5"-CO

2-UA1/0T-2"

*

3-UA1/0T-2"+3-2"-CO

3-UA1/0T-2"

1-UA1/0T-2"

1-UA1/0T-2"

*

3-UA1/0T-2"

5-UA1/0
T-2"+1-2

"-CO

1-UA1/0T-2"

4-UA1/0T-2"

*

1-UA1/0T-2"

5-U
A1/
0T-
2"

1-UA1/0T-2"

2-U
A1/
0T-
2"

*

1-UA1/0T-2"

1-2"-CO

1-2.5"-CO

1-U
A1
/0T
-2"

1-2.5"-CO

1-2.5"-CO

1-3
"-C
O

1-2.5"-CO

T X 295878
500,ABC

T X 516990
50,A

T X 407109
50,B

T X 642834
75,A

T X 642838
50,A

T X 647552
50,A T X 647455

75,A

T X 748657
75,B

T X 647459
75,B

T X 512955
25,C

T X 647456
50,A

T X 647556
50,B

T X 341420
50,B

T X 407108
50,B

T X 642836
50,A

T X 642835
75,A

T X 647555
50,B

T X 647554
50,B

T X 647453
50,A

T X 341413
50,A

T X 295876
112.5,ABC

T X 748655
50,B

T X 516994
50,B

T X 516991
50,A

T X 516995
50,B

T X 642831
75,A

T X 647458
50,A

T X 748652
50,B

T X 748654
50,B

T X 516999
50,C

T X 672375
300,ABC

T X 248638
50,C

T X 642833
75,A

T X 568829
1000,ABC

T X 647557
50,C

T X 648508
50,B

T X 406486
50,B

T X 406484
50,B

T X 406483
50,B

T X 568804
50,C

T X 748653
50,A

T X 642837
50,A

T X 295873
112.5,ABC

T X 647553
50,A

T X 641339
50,A

T X 647600
75,B

T X 406485
50,B

T X 512878
75,A

T X 568802
50,C

T X 647457
50,A

T X 748651
50,C

T X 648420
75,B

T X 648419
50,B

T X 647454
50,A

T X 748658
75,B

T X 748656
50,B

T X 748660
50,B

S C642832

S C647452

S C341411

S C295872

S C341412

S C295880

S C568801

S C407107

S C512990
S 512951
4-22500

S 512960
4-22500

L699289
9-5800

L406488
3-9500

L406489
3-9500

L406487
3-9500

L699293
9-5800

L699102
9-5800

L699110
9-5800

L699101
9-5800

S 512956
4-22500

S 512913
4-22500

S 248633
4-22500

L699291
9-5800

L699290
9-5800

S 512911
4-22500

L699292
9-5800

L699288
9-5800

L699287
9-5800

 

 

 

1B

 

 

2-UA4/0D-4"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-UA1/0A-2"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-U
A4
/0B
-3"

1-UA
4/0B
-3"

1-U
A4
/0B
-3"

1-U
A4
/0B
-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-U
A4
/0B
-3"

1-U
A4
/0B
-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-UA1/0A-2.5"

1-U
A4
/0B
-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"
1-UA1/0A-2.5"

1-UA1/0A-3"

1-UA
4/0B
-3"

1-U
A4
/0B
-3"

1-UA1/0A-3"

*

1-UA1/0A-2"

*

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-UA4/0E-3"

1-UA
4/0B-

3"

1-UA1/0A-2"

1-UA
4/0B
-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"
1-UA4/0B-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-UA4/0B-3" 1-UA4/0B-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-UA1/0A-3"

1-UA1/0A-3"

1-U
A1
/0A
-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-UA
4/0B-

3"

1-U
A4
/0B
-3"

1-U
A4/
0B-
3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-U
A4
/0B
-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-U
A4
/0B
-3"

1-UA4
/0B-3"

1-UA
4/0B
-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-UA
4/0B
-3"

1-UA
4/0B
-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-UA4/0B-3
"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-UA4/0E-3"

1-UA4
/0E-3

"

1-UA4/0E-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"
1-U
A4
/0E
-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-U
A4
/0B
-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-UA4
/0E-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-UA4/0E-3"

1-U
A4
/0B
-3"

1-UA
4/0B
-3"

1-UA4/0E-3"

1-UA
4/0E
-3"

1-UA
4/0B
-3"

1-UA4/0E-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-U
A4
/0E
-3"

1-U
A4/
0E-
3"

1-U
A4
/0B
-3"

1-U
A4
/0B
-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-U
A4
/0B
-3"

1-U
A4
/0B
-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-U
A4/
0B-
3"

1-U
A4/
0B-
3"

1-UA
4/0B-

3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

*

1-UA1/0A-2"

*

1-UA1/0A-2"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-UA4/0
E-3"

1-U
A4
/0E
-3"

1-U
A4
/0B
-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-U
A4
/0E
-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

*

1-UA1/0A-2"

*

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-U
A4
/0B
-3"

*

1-UA1/0A-2.5"

*

1-UA1/0A-2"

1-UA4/0D-4"

1-U
A4/
0B-
3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-U
A4
/0B
-3"

*

1-UA1/0A-2"

*

1-UA4/0B-3"

*

1-UA1/0A-2"

1-UA1/0A-2"

1-U
A1
/0A
-2"

1-UA1/0A-2"

*

1-UA1/0A-2"

*

1-UA1/0A-2"

* 1-UA1/0A-2.5"

1-U
A1
/0A
-2.
5"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-U
A1
/0A
-2.
5"

1-UA4/0E-3"

1-UA4/0E-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-UA4/0D-3"

*

1-UA1/0A-2"

1-U
A4
/0B
-3"

1-U
A1
/0A
-2.
5"

1-UA4/0
B-2.5"

1-U
A4
/0B
-2.5
"

1-U
A1
/0A
-2.5
"

1-U
A4
/0B
-2.5
"

3-U
A7
50
DD
-4"
+3
-4"
CO

1-UA1/0A-2.5"

1-UA1/0A-2.5"1-UA1/0A-2.5"

1-UA1/0A-3"

1-UA1/0A-2.5"

1-U
A4
/0B
-2.
5"

11-UA750D
D-4"

1-UA1/0A-3"

1-U
A4
/0B
-3"

1-UA4/0B-2.5"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-U
A4
/0B
-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-UA4/0B-2.5"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-UA1/0A-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

*

1-UA1/0A-2"

1-UA4/0B-3"

3-U
A1
/0T
-AB
C

3-UA1/0T-X X -ABAND

3-UA1/0T-ABC

1-UA1/0T-A

3-UA1/0T-ABC

3-UA1/0T-ABC

3-U
A1/
0T-
ABC

3-UA1/0T-ABC

1-UA1/0T-B

*

3-UA1/0T-ABC

3-UA
1/0T
-AB
C

1-U
A1
/0T
-B

1-U
A1
/0T
-B

1-U
A1
/0T
-B

1-U
A1
/0T
-B

1-U
A1
/0T
-A

1-UA1/0T-B

1-U
A1
/0T
-C

1-UA1/0T-B

1-U
A1/
0T-
B

*

1-UA1/0T-A

*

1-UA1/0T-A

1-UA1/0T-B

1-UA1/0T-C
1-UA1/0T-C

1-UA1/0T-A

1-UA1/0T-A

1-UA1/0T-A

1-UA1/0T-A

1-UA1/0T-A

1-U
A1
/0T
-A

1-U
A1
/0T
-A

1-UA1/0T-A

1-UA1/0T-B

1-UA1/0T-B

1-UA1/0T-C
1-UA1/0T-B

1-U
A1
/0T
-B

1-UA1/0T-B 1-UA1/0T-B

1-UA1/0T-B

1-UA1/0T-A

1-U
A1
/0T
-A

*

1-UA1/0T-C

1-U
A1/
0T-
C

1-U
A1
/0T
-B

1-UA1/0
T-C

1-UA1/0
T-C

1-UA1/0T-A

1-UA1/0T-A

1-UA1/0T-B

1-UA1
/0T-B

1-U
A1
/0T
-B

1-UA1/0
T-B

1-UA1/0T-A

*

1-UA1/0T-B

1-UA1/0T-A

1-UA1/0T-C

1-UA1/0T-C

1-UA1
/0T-B

3-UA1/0T-ABC

1-UA
1/0T
-C

3-UA1/0T-ABC

1-UA1/0T-A

1-U
A1/
0T-
A

3-UA1/0T-ABC

3-UA1/0T-ABC

1-UA
1/0T
-B

1-U
A1/
0T-
B

3-UA1/0T-ABC

3-UA1/0T-
ABC

3-UA1/0T-
ABC

3-UA1/0T-ABC

1-UA1/0T-C

32

32

-99

-99

-99

-99

-99

32
32

32

-99

-99

-99

32

-99

-99

25'

 

S  CLUBHO
US E CL

E BUENA V IS TA CT

S CL
UBHO

US EC
L

EBY R DS V IEW DR

BLUEBIR D CT

BY R DS  V IEW  DR

S P
IN
Y O
N 
JA
Y  D
R

 X X
 

S CLUBHOU
S ECL

 X X  

 JOHN
 W . P O

W ELL 
BV S P INYON

JA YDR

 BIR DS  OF P R EY  CT

S C
LU
BH
OU
S E
CL

BIR DS V IEW
DR

S CLUBHOU S ECL

ETEL
LU R
IDE
DR

S CLU B
HO
U S

EC
L

S  CLU
BHOU

S E CL

E TEL
LU R ID

E DR

E IR ON HOR S E CL

BY
R D
S  V
IEW

HO
LL
Y H
ILL
CT

S
S O
LIT
AIR
ES
CA
NY
ON
DR

BY R DS V IEW
DR

P INE CANY ON UNIT 3

T R ACT  14L

T R ACT  14K

T R ACT  M

P INE CANY ON CLUBHOU S E

T R ACT  B

T R ACT  4A

P UMP  #10

UNIT  ONE AT P INE CANY ON

P INE CANY ON K IDS  CLUBHOU S E

LIFT S TAT ION B

T R ACT  14M

DEER  CR EEK  CR OS S ING

T R ACT  3E

T R ACT  14G

N.O.

P UMP  #18

X X
4A

3385
58

4200
M

3883
321

4221
1

2608
6

2645
41

3997
301

2732
14

X X
3C

2740
13

X X
334

3933
308

2685
12 2684

14

2920
473A

2612
16

X X
355

2820
3091
463A

1758
77

1750
91

3374
56

1767
14M

3382
57

X X
14K

3433
269

2541
280

2533
281

2509
284

3887
322

2616
5

2716
16

2637
42

X X
3B

3965
304

3957
305

2642
44

3917
310

2749
12

4200
L

2621
8

X X
344

2581
6

2700
13

X X
345

2668
X X

X X
354

X X
X X

X X
350

2540
20

2500
22

3361
61

X X
14G

1766
76

1739
14L

1900
255

1774
88

X X
B

3410
266

2557
278

2565
277

2525
282

2517
283

2624
4

3908
287

2701
325

2609
297

2625
20

2700
312

2424
35

X X
X X

2697
38

X X
338

X X
341

X X
352

2476
23

3140
356

1775
71

3000
K

3850
257

3417
263

2566
273

2582
275

3924
289

X X
327

2601
298

4008
299

2741
11

2653
40

2657
24

3941
307

2665
25

2432
34

X X
3E

2669
37

X X
F

2669
11

2572
18

1759
70

3369
60

1782
74

X X
254

1946
253

3858
258

3866
259

2574
274

2550
271

3425
264

2542
270

3401
261

2549
279

3879
320

3891
323

2618
296

3940
291

3948
292

X X
326

2724
15

2649
23

X X
333

4005
300

2661
39

2653
10

2605
7

X X
340

2636
15

3060
353

2516
21

1758
90

3377
59

1783
72

3409
262

2573
276

3875
319

3418
267

2501
285

2709
7

3895
324

2610
295

3956
293

3932
290

2609
18

2733
10

2650
26

3973
303

3981
302

X X
331

2416
36

X X
342

2557
5

2525
4

2477
1

4075
J

1774
75

X X
14H

1766
89

1790
73

2589
4D

2558
272

3874
260

2717
8

2602
294

2617
19

2641
22

2633
21

3925
309

X X
330

2770
335

2637
9

X X
359

X X
358

X X
348

X X
351

X X
349

1757
86

1946
256

1765
87

3441
268

3402
265

4200
G

2632
3

2640
2

2725
9

2611
17

3900
286

3916
288

2618
43

3909
311

3949
306

3800
F

X X
F

X X
343

X X
339

2509
3

2493
2

2588
17

2556
19

1

1

2

2

3

3

4

4

5

5

6

6

7

7

8

8

9

9

10

10

G G

F F

E E

D D

C C

B B

A A

Arizona Public Service
OH & UG ELECTRIC

GIS MAPPING DEPARTMENT
STATION 4028
PO BOX 53933
PHOENIX AZ 85072-3933
E-MAIL mapprint@apsc.com

NOTICE:

APS Proprietary and 
  Confidential Information

DO NOT COPY, SCAN, OR DIGITIZE
DO NOT DISTRIBUTE
COPYRIGHT © 2002
    ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE
ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

THE UTILITY LOCATIONS SHOWN ON
THIS MAP ARE APPROXIMATE ONLY
AND ARE NOT RELIABLE FOR
CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES. IN
ADDITION, THERE MAY BE FACILITIES
IN EXISTENCE DUE TO RECENT
CONSTRUCTION THAT ARE NOT SHOWN.
FOR ACTUAL FIELD LOCATIONS
CONTACT ARIZONA BLUE STAKE CENTER
AT 1-800-782-5348 (1-800-STAKE-IT).

21N 7E 34 NE

1 " = 100 '
Scale:

Date:

1:1,200

8/7/2020

Wire Code Legend
Overhead:
3 – R 002W  – NC – ABC

P hases
Neutral P osition
W ire Code
# of Conductors

Wire Code Legend
Overhead:
3 – R 002W  – NC – ABC

P hases
Neutral P osition
W ire Code
# of Conductors

Underground:
3 – UA750T – 5”– CO

Encasement*
S ize of Conduit*
W ire Code
# of Conductors

Underground:
3 – UA750T – 5”– CO

Encasement*
S ize of Conduit*
W ire Code
# of Conductors

(* No Conduit S ize or Encasement = Direct Buried)

Overhead P rimary

Overhead Transmission

Underground P rimary
Underground Transmission
Undergound 230 kV  Transmission

Overhead S econdary
Overhead S ervice
Underground S econdary
Underground S ervice

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! Overhead Communication Line
! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! Underground Communication Line

Conduit / Duct / Direct Buried

Electric Line Features Legend

X X Overhead Aerial Cable

E le c tri c  D e v i c e  F e a t u r e s  L e g e n d  
 Overh ea d Capa citor Bank
 P a d Mo unted  Capa citor
 Fe ed er Circuit Breake r
 Fuse Disconne ct
 One Anchor Guy

 OH/U G Ch ange  in W ire/Conduit S ize

 Overh ea d T ap Mid S pan

 P M Auto T ransfer Enclosure
 P M S w itching Enclosure

 P M Junction Enclosure

 P M S e ctionalizing Enclosure

 P M T e rmination Enclosure

 OH Auto T ransfer S w itch

 OH R e closer 

 OH S e ctionalizer

 P a d Mo unted  S e ctionalizer

 Metal P ole - AP S -Owned -  Not Joint U se

 Metal P ole - AP S  Ow ned - Jo int U se

 W o od  P ole - AP S  Owned - No t Joint U se

 W o od  P ole - AP S  Owned - Joint U se

 R iser/T ransition Assemb y
OH P rimary Meter

 S e rvice  Entry P o int

 P a d Mo unted  P rimary Mete r

 Dusk-T o-Dawn L ig ht


S treet Ligh t

 S ubsta tion

 OH Blad e Disconnect

 OH Gang-Operate d Air Brea k S w itch

 Open P oint

 Manhole - Octag on

 Manhole - R e ctang ular
 P rimary P ull Box - Man Acce ssible
 P rimary Junction Bo x

 S e cond ary Junction Box

 P rimary P ull Box

 V a ult Build ing

 OH V olta ge  R e gula tor

 P a d Mo unted  V olta ge  R e gula tor

 OH AP S  X FR  Bank - One U nit

 OH AP S  X FR  Bank - T w o U nits

 OH AP S  X FR  Bank - T hre e U nits

 P a d Mo unted  1 P h  X FR

 P a d Mo unted  Duplex X FR

 P a d Mo unted  3P h X FR
 S ubsurface X FR  



»

»

» »

»

»

»»

»

»

»

»

»

»

»

»

21.0N-07.0E-28-2 21.0N-07.0E-27-2

21.0N-07.0E-27-321.0N-07.0E-28-3

21.0N-07.0E-34-1

21.0N-07.0E-27-4

21.0N-07.0E-33-2

21.0N-07.0E-27-1

21.0N-07.0E-34-2

ä

ä

2 '

ä

ä

60 '

ä

ä

47 '

ä

ä

2 '

ä

ä

42 '

ä

ä

2 '

ä

ä

2 '

ä

ä

46 '



















































































































































































 


















































































































































































 





































P B512912

P B352754

P B512920

P B352753

P B221475

1-2"-CO

6-UA750T-3"+1-UA1/0T-2"

*

6-UA750T-3"+3-UA1/0T-3"+6-3"-CO

*

13-UA1/0T-2"

4-5
"-D
U+
1-2
"-C
O

1-UA
1/0T
-2"-A
BAN
D

*

1-UA1/0T-2"

*

6-UA750T-3"

5-UA1/0T-2"+6-3"-CO

1-UA1/0T-2"+6-3"-CO

*

6-UA750T-3"+1-UA1/0T-2" 4-UA1/0T-2"+6-3"-CO

4-5
"-D
U

*

1-UA1/0T-2"+1-2"-CO

6-UA750T-3"

6-UA750T-3"

3-U
A1
/0T
-3"

3-UA1/0T-3"+
6-3"-CO

1-UA1/0T-2"

*

3-UA1/0T-2"+3-2"-CO

3-U
A1
/0T
-3"

6-UA
750T

-3"

6-UA1/0T-
2"

4-5
"-D
U

*

2-UA1/0T-2"

1-UA1/0T-2"

1-UA1/0T-2"

4-UA1/0T-2"+6-3"-CO

*

9-UA1/0T-2"+3-2"-CO

*

4-UA1/0T-2"+3-2"-CO

1-2
"-C
O

*

12-UA750T-3"+2-UA1/0T-2"

3-UA
1/0T
-3"+
3-3"
-CO

3-UA1/0T-2"

1-UA1/0T-2"+6-3"-CO

T X 206400
25,C

X 210431
25,B

X 228902
25,C

T X 512915
50,C

T X 251812
25,C

T X 210436
750,ABC

T X 699251
167,A

X 374824
10,B

T X 224032
25,C

T X 512919
75,C

X 228874
25,A

S C251817

S C224033

S C210435

S C251813

S C512954S 251819
9-33000

S 398002
9-33000

S 251816
9-33000

S 251811
9-33000

S X X
9--99

X X
9-33000

S 211684
9-22500

S 512916
9-22500

S 248636
4-22500

S 512914
4-22500

L454731
9-8000

S 512918
9-22500

1C

 

1B

2-UA4/0E-4"

1-UA1/0A-2.5"

1-UA1/0A-2.5"

*

1-UC014B-2"

2-U
A4
/0B
-4"

-AB
AN
D

4-UA750DD
-4"

*

1-UA1/0A-2.5"

*

1-UA1/0A-2.5"

* 1-UC014B-1"

*

1-UA1/0A-2"

*

1-UA1/0A-2.5"

*

1-UA1/0A-2.5"

1-UA1/0A-2"

*

1-UA4/0B-2.5"

*

1-UA1/0A-2"

*

1-UA1/0A-2"

1-U
A1/
0A-
2.5
"

1-UA1/0A-2"

*

1-UA1/0A-2"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-U
A1
/0A
-3"

P 251820

P 210434

P 251815

P 221474

P 251818

69 K
V

3-7
95
A-
NC
-A
BC

3-UA1/0T-ABC

3-UA1/0T-ABC

1-2R -NC-B

6-UA750T-ABC

1-U
A1/0
T-X
X -A
BAN
D

6-UA750T-ABC

3-UA1/0T-ABC

3-UA1/0T-ABC

1-UA1/0T-B
6-UA750T-ABC

3-U
A1
/0T
-A
BC

3-795A-NC-CBA

1-UA1/0T-C

1-UA1/0T-C

1-UA1/0T-C

3-U
A1
/0T
-A
BC

1-U
A1
/0T
-A

1-UA1/0T-C
1-UA1/0T-C

3-UA1/0T-ABC

3-UA1/0T-
ABC

3-UA1/0T-
ABC

X X

45

32

32

X X

45

X X

35

65

X X

65

X X

32

32

X X

X X X X

32

32

32

50

60

45

32

45

45 -99

X X

32

32

E INT
ER S T

AT E 4
0

E INT
ER S
TAT E

 40

S  LONE T R EE R D

 JOHN W . P OW ELL BV

S  CLUBHO
US E CL

W  INT
ER S T

ATE 4
0  

XX

X X

 LA 
P LA
NCH
A P W

 JOHN W . P OW ELL BV

 LA P
LAN
CHA
 P W

E IN
TER
S TA
T E 4
0

COCONINO COMMUNIT Y  COLLEGE

2500
2C

X X
13

2500
2800
2C

X X
X X

X X
13

1

1

2

2

3

3

4

4

5

5

6

6

7

7

8

8

9

9

10

10

G G

F F

E E

D D

C C

B B

A A

Arizona Public Service
OH & UG ELECTRIC

GIS MAPPING DEPARTMENT
STATION 4028
PO BOX 53933
PHOENIX AZ 85072-3933
E-MAIL mapprint@apsc.com

NOTICE:

APS Proprietary and 
  Confidential Information

DO NOT COPY, SCAN, OR DIGITIZE
DO NOT DISTRIBUTE
COPYRIGHT © 2002
    ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE
ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

THE UTILITY LOCATIONS SHOWN ON
THIS MAP ARE APPROXIMATE ONLY
AND ARE NOT RELIABLE FOR
CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES. IN
ADDITION, THERE MAY BE FACILITIES
IN EXISTENCE DUE TO RECENT
CONSTRUCTION THAT ARE NOT SHOWN.
FOR ACTUAL FIELD LOCATIONS
CONTACT ARIZONA BLUE STAKE CENTER
AT 1-800-782-5348 (1-800-STAKE-IT).

21N 7E 27 SW

1 " = 100 '
Scale:

Date:

1:1,200

8/7/2020

Wire Code Legend
Overhead:
3 – R 002W  – NC – ABC

P hases
Neutral P osition
W ire Code
# of Conductors

Wire Code Legend
Overhead:
3 – R 002W  – NC – ABC

P hases
Neutral P osition
W ire Code
# of Conductors

Underground:
3 – UA750T – 5”– CO

Encasement*
S ize of Conduit*
W ire Code
# of Conductors

Underground:
3 – UA750T – 5”– CO

Encasement*
S ize of Conduit*
W ire Code
# of Conductors

(* No Conduit S ize or Encasement = Direct Buried)

Overhead P rimary

Overhead Transmission

Underground P rimary
Underground Transmission
Undergound 230 kV  Transmission

Overhead S econdary
Overhead S ervice
Underground S econdary
Underground S ervice

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! Overhead Communication Line
! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! Underground Communication Line

Conduit / Duct / Direct Buried

Electric Line Features Legend

X X Overhead Aerial Cable

E le c tri c  D e v i c e  F e a t u r e s  L e g e n d  
 Overh ea d Capa citor Bank
 P a d Mo unted  Capa citor
 Fe ed er Circuit Breake r
 Fuse Disconne ct
 One Anchor Guy

 OH/U G Ch ange  in W ire/Conduit S ize

 Overh ea d T ap Mid S pan

 P M Auto T ransfer Enclosure
 P M S w itching Enclosure

 P M Junction Enclosure

 P M S e ctionalizing Enclosure

 P M T e rmination Enclosure

 OH Auto T ransfer S w itch

 OH R e closer 

 OH S e ctionalizer

 P a d Mo unted  S e ctionalizer

 Metal P ole - AP S -Owned -  Not Joint U se

 Metal P ole - AP S  Ow ned - Jo int U se

 W o od  P ole - AP S  Owned - No t Joint U se

 W o od  P ole - AP S  Owned - Joint U se

 R iser/T ransition Assemb y
OH P rimary Meter

 S e rvice  Entry P o int

 P a d Mo unted  P rimary Mete r

 Dusk-T o-Dawn L ig ht


S treet Ligh t

 S ubsta tion

 OH Blad e Disconnect

 OH Gang-Operate d Air Brea k S w itch

 Open P oint

 Manhole - Octag on

 Manhole - R e ctang ular
 P rimary P ull Box - Man Acce ssible
 P rimary Junction Bo x

 S e cond ary Junction Box

 P rimary P ull Box

 V a ult Build ing

 OH V olta ge  R e gula tor

 P a d Mo unted  V olta ge  R e gula tor

 OH AP S  X FR  Bank - One U nit

 OH AP S  X FR  Bank - T w o U nits

 OH AP S  X FR  Bank - T hre e U nits

 P a d Mo unted  1 P h  X FR

 P a d Mo unted  Duplex X FR

 P a d Mo unted  3P h X FR
 S ubsurface X FR  



»

»

»

»»

»

»

»

»

»

» »

»

»

»

»

21.0N-07.0E-27-2

21.0N-07.0E-27-3

21.0N-07.0E-34-1

21.0N-07.0E-27-4

21.0N-07.0E-35-1

21.0N-07.0E-27-1

21.0N-07.0E-34-2

21.0N-07.0E-26-4

21.0N-07.0E-26-1ä

ä

26 '

ä

ä

26 '

ä

ä

26 '










































































































































































































































 

























P B647479

S C512958

 

 

P B248839

P B647477

S C512952

 

P B647431

1-2.5"-CO

1-UA1/0T-2"

*

2-UA1/0T-2"

1-2
.5"
-C
O

*

2-UA1/0T-2"

2-U
A1
/0T
-2"
+1
-2"
-C
O

1-2.5"-CO

3-UA1/0T-2"

12-3"-CO+3-2"-CO

*

2-UA1/0T-2"+1-2"-CO

1-U
A1
/0T
-2"
+6-
3"-
CO

1-2.5"-C
O

1-2.5"-CO

1-UA1
/0T-2"

+1-2"-
CO

1-UA
1/0T
-2"+
6-3"
-CO

1-U
A1/
0T-
2"+
1-2
"-CO

1-2.5"-CO

1-2.5"-CO

2-U
A1
/0T
-2"

1-2.5"-CO

1-2
.5"-
CO

6-UA1/0T-
2"

*

2-UA1/0T-2"+1-2"-CO

1-U
A1
/0T
-2"
+1
-2"
-CO

1-U
A1
/0T
-2"

1-2.5"-CO

1-2.5"-CO

1-UA1/0T
-2"+6-3"-

CO

3-2"-CO

1-UA1/0
T-2"+6-

3"-CO

1-UA1/0T-2"+1-2"-CO

1-2.5"-CO

*

2-UA1/0T-2"

1-2.5"-CO

2-UA1/0T-2"

2-U
A1
/0T
-2"

1-2
.5"
-C
O

1-U
A1
/0T
-2"

1-2.5"-CO

1-2.5"-CO

2-U
A1/
0T-
2"

1-U
A1
/0T
-2"

1-2.5"-CO

1-3
"-C
O

1-2.5"-CO

1-2.5"-CO

T X 647552
50,A T X 647455

75,A

T X 647459
75,B

T X 512955
25,C

T X 647456
50,A

T X 406481
50,B

T X 406482
50,B

T X 211683
25,C

T X 647458
50,A

T X 248638
50,C

T X 406484
50,B

T X 406483
50,B

T X 647432
50,B

T X 647457
50,A

S C647452

S C512990
S 512951
4-22500

S 512960
4-22500

L406488
3-9500

L406487
3-9500

L699102
9-5800

S 248634
4-22500

S 512953
4-22500

S 512956
4-22500

S 512959
4-22500

S 512913
4-22500

S 248633
4-22500

S 512911
4-22500

L699287
9-5800

S 512957
4-22500

 

 

1-UA1/0A-2"

1-UA1/0A-2"

1-UA1/0A-2"

1-UA
4/0B
-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"
1-UA4/0B-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-UA4/0B-3" 1-UA4/0B-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-UA1/0A-2.5"

1-U
A4
/0B
-3"

1-U
A4
/0B
-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-UA4/0B-3"

*

1-UA1/0A-2"

*

1-UA1/0A-2"

1-U
A4
/0E
-3"

*

1-UA1/0A-2"

*

1-UA1/0A-2"

1-U
A1
/0A
-2"

*

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-UA1/0A-2"

1-U
A4
/0B
-3"

*

1-UA1/0A-2"

*

1-UA1/0A-2"

1-U
A1
/0A
-2"

1-U
A1
/0A
-2.
5"

1-UA4/0B-3"

1-U
A1
/0A
-2.
5"

1-U
A4
/0B
-3"

1-U
A1
/0A
-2.
5"

1-U
A4
/0B
-2.5
"

1-U
A1
/0A
-2.5
"

1-U
A4
/0B
-2.5
"

1-U
A4
/0B
-3"

1-UA1/0A-2.5"

*

1-UA4/0B-2.5"

*

1-UA1/0A-2.5"

1-U
A1
/0T
-B

1-U
A1
/0T
-B

1-U
A1
/0T
-B

1-U
A1
/0T
-B

1-U
A1
/0T
-B

*

1-UA1/0T-A

1-UA1/0T-A

1-U
A1
/0T
-A

1-U
A1
/0T
-A

*

1-UA1/0T-C

1-U
A1
/0T
-B

1-UA1/0T-B

1-UA1/0
T-C

1-UA1/0
T-C

1-UA1
/0T-B

3-UA1/0T-ABC

3-UA1/0T-
ABC

3-UA1/0T-
ABC

32

32

-99

-99

32

32

32

32

32

32

32

32

 

 

S  CLUBHO
US E CL

 X X  

BLUEBIR D CT

 JOHN
 W . P O

W ELL 
BV S P INY ON

JAYDR

 JO
HN
 W .
 P O
W E
LL 
BV

S CLUBHOUS ECL

E TEL
LU R ID

E DR

S P INY ON
JAY DR

HO
LL
Y H
ILL
CT

ET ELLU R IDEDR

T R ACT  B

P INE CANY ON

DEER  CR EEK  CR OS S ING

4221
1

2645
41

X X
3C

2396
27

X X
1B

2616
5

2637
42

2642
44

2581
6

2540
20

2500
22

X X
B

2624
4

X X
2

2424
35

X X
X X

2697
38

2421
29

2476
23

2653
40

2665
25

2432
34

2669
37

2572
18

2649
23

2661
39

2605
7

2453
31

2516
21

2460
24

2609
18

2650
26

2416
36

2557
5

2525
4

2477
1

2436
25

T R ACT
E

2380
28

2632
3

2640
2

2618
43

X X
X X

2437
30

2509
3

2493
2

2405
A

2420
26

2556
19

1

1

2

2

3

3

4

4

5

5

6

6

7

7

8

8

9

9

10

10

G G

F F

E E

D D

C C

B B

A A

Arizona Public Service
OH & UG ELECTRIC

GIS MAPPING DEPARTMENT
STATION 4028
PO BOX 53933
PHOENIX AZ 85072-3933
E-MAIL mapprint@apsc.com

NOTICE:

APS Proprietary and 
  Confidential Information

DO NOT COPY, SCAN, OR DIGITIZE
DO NOT DISTRIBUTE
COPYRIGHT © 2002
    ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE
ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

THE UTILITY LOCATIONS SHOWN ON
THIS MAP ARE APPROXIMATE ONLY
AND ARE NOT RELIABLE FOR
CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES. IN
ADDITION, THERE MAY BE FACILITIES
IN EXISTENCE DUE TO RECENT
CONSTRUCTION THAT ARE NOT SHOWN.
FOR ACTUAL FIELD LOCATIONS
CONTACT ARIZONA BLUE STAKE CENTER
AT 1-800-782-5348 (1-800-STAKE-IT).

21N 7E 27 SE

1 " = 100 '
Scale:

Date:

1:1,200

8/7/2020

Wire Code Legend
Overhead:
3 – R 002W  – NC – ABC

P hases
Neutral P osition
W ire Code
# of Conductors

Wire Code Legend
Overhead:
3 – R 002W  – NC – ABC

P hases
Neutral P osition
W ire Code
# of Conductors

Underground:
3 – UA750T – 5”– CO

Encasement*
S ize of Conduit*
W ire Code
# of Conductors

Underground:
3 – UA750T – 5”– CO

Encasement*
S ize of Conduit*
W ire Code
# of Conductors

(* No Conduit S ize or Encasement = Direct Buried)

Overhead P rimary

Overhead Transmission

Underground P rimary
Underground Transmission
Undergound 230 kV  Transmission

Overhead S econdary
Overhead S ervice
Underground S econdary
Underground S ervice

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! Overhead Communication Line
! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! Underground Communication Line

Conduit / Duct / Direct Buried

Electric Line Features Legend

X X Overhead Aerial Cable

E le c tri c  D e v i c e  F e a t u r e s  L e g e n d  
 Overh ea d Capa citor Bank
 P a d Mo unted  Capa citor
 Fe ed er Circuit Breake r
 Fuse Disconne ct
 One Anchor Guy

 OH/U G Ch ange  in W ire/Conduit S ize

 Overh ea d T ap Mid S pan

 P M Auto T ransfer Enclosure
 P M S w itching Enclosure

 P M Junction Enclosure

 P M S e ctionalizing Enclosure

 P M T e rmination Enclosure

 OH Auto T ransfer S w itch

 OH R e closer 

 OH S e ctionalizer

 P a d Mo unted  S e ctionalizer

 Metal P ole - AP S -Owned -  Not Joint U se

 Metal P ole - AP S  Ow ned - Jo int U se

 W o od  P ole - AP S  Owned - No t Joint U se

 W o od  P ole - AP S  Owned - Joint U se

 R iser/T ransition Assemb y
OH P rimary Meter

 S e rvice  Entry P o int

 P a d Mo unted  P rimary Mete r

 Dusk-T o-Dawn L ig ht


S treet Ligh t

 S ubsta tion

 OH Blad e Disconnect

 OH Gang-Operate d Air Brea k S w itch

 Open P oint

 Manhole - Octag on

 Manhole - R e ctang ular
 P rimary P ull Box - Man Acce ssible
 P rimary Junction Bo x

 S e cond ary Junction Box

 P rimary P ull Box

 V a ult Build ing

 OH V olta ge  R e gula tor

 P a d Mo unted  V olta ge  R e gula tor

 OH AP S  X FR  Bank - One U nit

 OH AP S  X FR  Bank - T w o U nits

 OH AP S  X FR  Bank - T hre e U nits

 P a d Mo unted  1 P h  X FR

 P a d Mo unted  Duplex X FR

 P a d Mo unted  3P h X FR
 S ubsurface X FR  



»

»

»

» »»

»

»

»»

»

»

»

»

»

»

»

»

»

21.0N-07.0E-34-4

21.0N-07.0E-27-321.0N-07.0E-28-3

21.0N-07.0E-33-3

21.0N-07.0E-34-1

21.0N-07.0E-27-4

21.0N-07.0E-33-2

21.0N-07.0E-34-3

21.0N-07.0E-34-2

ä

ä

11 '

ä

ä

11 '









































































































 



















































































 































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































 




















































































 

































 



















































































 

P B224048

P B224046

P B248631

P B295805

P B512912

P B224031

P B224047

P B224045P B295649

P B295809

P B512920

P B398501

P B398564

P B398505

 

 

*

6-U A750T-3"+1-U A1/0T-2"

*

2-U A1/0T-2"

6-U A750T-3"+1-U A1/0T-2"

*

2-U A1/0T-2"

*

6-U A750T-3"+3-U A1/0T-3"+6-3"-CO

4-U A1/0T-2"

2-U A1/0T-2"

4-U A1/0T-2"

3-U
A1
/0T
-2"

*

13-U A1/0T-2"

*

2-U A1/0T-2"

2-U A
1/0T
-2"

*

2-U A1/0T-2"

1-U A1/0T
-2"

*

1-U A1/0T-2"

1-U
A1
/0T
-2"

1-U A1/0T-2"+1-2"-CO

5-U A1/0T-2"

5-U
A1
/0T
-2"

*

1-U A1/0T-2"

*

3-U A1/0T-2"

*

12-U A1/0T-2"

*

6-U A750T-3"

4-U A1/0T-2"
*

4-U A1/0T-2"

3-U A1/0T-2"

2-U A1/0T-2"

5-U A1/0T-2"+6-3"-CO

*

5-U A1/0T-2"

2-U
A1
/0T
-2"

2-U
A1
/0T
-2"

*2-U A1/0T-2"

3-U A1/0T-2"

1-U
A1
/0T
-2"

1-U A1/0T-2"+6-3"-CO

*

3-2"-CO

*

3-U A1/0T-2"
3-2"-CO

*

1-U A1/0T-2"

1-2"-CO

*

6-U A750T-3"+1-U A1/0T-2"

*

4-U A1/0T-2"

5-U A
1/0T
-2"

*

2-U A1/0T-2"

3-U A1/0T-2"

*

2-U A1/0T-2"

*

2-U A1/0T-2"

1-U A1/0T-2"

2-U
A1
/0T
-2"

4-U A1/0T-2"+6-3"-CO

2-U A
1/0T
-2"

*

2-U A1/0T-2"

3-U A1/0T-2"

3-U A1/0T-2"

1-U
A1
/0T
-2"

1-U A1/0T-2"

1-U A1/0T-2"

1-U A1/0T
-2"

2-U
A1/0
T-2"

1-U A1/0T-2"

*

1-U A1/0T-2"

*

2-U A1/0T-2"

6-U A750T-3"

6-U A750T-3"

*

3-U A1/0T-2"

*

2-U A1/0T-2"

3-U A1/0T-3"+
6-3"-CO

1-UA1/0T-2"

4-U A1/0T-2"

2-U
A1
/0T
-2"

1-U A1/0T-2"

2-U A1/0T-2"

1-U A
1/0T
-2"

*

1-U A1/0T-2"

*

1-U A1/0T-2"

1-U A
1/0T-

2"

*

3-U A1/0T-2"+3-2"-CO

3-U
A1/
0T-
2"

4-U A1/0T-2"

2-U
A1
/0T
-2"

5-U
A1
/0T
-2"

6-U
A75
0T-
3"+
1-2
"-CO

3-U A1/0T-2"

1-2"-
CO

*

3-U A1/0T-2"

6-U A
750T

-3"

1-U A1/0T-2"

1-U A1/0T-2"

2-U A1/0T-2"

*

2-U A1/0T-2"

2-U A1/0T-2"

6-U
A1
/0T
-2"

2-U A
1/0T-

2"

1-U A1
/0T-2"

1-U
A1
/0T
-2"

*

1-U A1/0T-2"

2-U A1/0T-2"

1-U A1
/0T-2"

6-U A1/0T-
2"

2-U A1/0T-2"

1-2
"-C
O

6-U
A7
50
T-3
"+6
-U
A1
/0T
-2"

1-U
A1
/0T
-2"

1-U
A1/0
T-2"

5-U
A1
/0T
-2"

*

2-U A1/0T-2"

*

3-U A1/0T-2"

5-U
A1
/0T
-2"

*

2-U A1/0T-2"

1-U A1/0T-2"

*

1-U A1/0T-2"+1-2"-CO

1-U A1/0T-2"

3-U A1/0T-2"

1-U
A1
/0T
-2"

4-U A1/0T-2"

*
2-U A1/0T-2"

2-U A1/0T-2"

1-U A1/0T-2"

1-U A1/0T-2"

*

2-U A1/0T-2"

1-U A1/0T-2"

1-U
A1
/0T
-2"

12-U A750T-3"

1-U A1/0T-2"

3-2"-CO

3-U A1/0T-2"

*

2-U A1/0T-2"

1-U A1/0T-2"

7-U
A1
/0T
-2"

*
2-U A1/0T-2"

2-U A1/0T-2"

*

2-U A1/0T-2"

4-U A1/0T-2"

2-U A1/0T-2"

4-U A1/0T-2"+6-3"-CO

*

2-U A1/0T-2"

*

2-U A1/0T-2"

*

2-U A1/0T-2"

2-U A
1/0T-

2"

*

2-U A1/0T-2"

*

9-U A1/0T-2"+3-2"-CO

*

4-U A1/0T-2"+3-2"-CO

*

6-U A1/0T-2"

1-U A1/0T-2"

3-U A
1/0T
-2"

1-U A1/0T-2"

6-U A1/0T-2"

1-2
"-C
O

6-U
A7
50
T-3
"

*

12-U A750T-3"+2-U A1/0T-2"

8-U
A1
/0T
-2"

4-U A1/0T-2"

*

2-U A1/0T-2"

*

2-U A1/0T-2"

1-U
A1
/0T
-2"

3-U A1/0T-2"

3-U
A1
/0T
-2"

3-U A1/0T-2"

*

2-U A1/0T-2"

1-U
A1
/0T
-2"

1-U A1/0T-2"

1-U A1/0T-2"+6-3"-CO

TX 761249
25,A

TX 398509
50,C

TX 206400
25,C

TX 579923
50,B

TX 579953
75,A

TX 516992
50,B

TX 295878
500,ABC

TX 516990
50,A

TX 398562
50,C

TX 398503
50,C

TX 224039
50,B

TX 224034
25,A

TX 224037
50,B

TX 516993
50,B

TX 454795
25,A

TX 579929
50,B

TX 295812
50,C

TX 398567
50,B

X 228902
25,C

TX 398565
50,B

TX 398563
50,B

TX 398568
50,C

TX 398592
50,C

TX 224036
50,A

TX 579952
75,A

TX 516996
50,C

TX 512915
50,C

TX 579954
75,A

TX 517000
50,C

TX 398502
50,B

TX 251812
25,C

TX 398591
50,C

TX 398510
50,C

TX 398593
50,C

TX 224040
50,B

TX 224041
50,C

TX 224043
50,C

TX 224044
50,C

TX 579951
75,A

TX 579924
50,B

TX 579927
50,B

TX 516999
50,C

TX 454796
25,A

TX 224035
50,A

X 374824
10,B

TX 224032
25,C

TX 579925
50,B

TX 516998
50,C

TX 398506
50,C

TX 512919
75,C

TX 398561
50,C

TX 224038
50,B

TX 579928
75,B

TX 516989
50,A

TX 251802
25,C

TX 398508
50,C

TX 224042
50,C

TX 579926
50,B

TX 516997
50,C

S C251817

S C224033

S C251813

S C295814

S C398504

S C512954

S C295880

S C295813

S C398507

S 295811
9-33000

S 251819
9-33000

S 295815
9-33000

S 398002
9-33000

S 251816
9-33000

S 251811
9-33000

L699303
9-5800

L699302
9-5800

L699297
9-5800

L699308
9-5800

S 398013
9-33000

S 211684
9-22500

L699298
9-5800

S 398011
9-33000

L699305
9-5800

L699304
9-5800

S 512916
9-22500

S 398016
9-33000

L699306
9-5800

S 248636
4-22500

L699310
9-5800

L699307
9-5800

L699350
9-5800

L699309
9-5800

S 512914
4-22500

L454731
9-8000

L699301
9-5800

S 512918
9-22500

L699299
9-5800

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2-U A4/0D-4"

1-U A1/0A-3"

1-U A
1/0A
-3"

1-U
A1
/0A
-3"

1-U
A1
/0A
-3"

1-U A1/0A-3"

1-U A4/0B-4"

1-U
A1
/0A
-3"

1-U A
1/0A
-3"

1-U A1/0A-3"

1-U A1/0A-3"

1-U A1/0A-3"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

1-U A1/0A-3"

1-U A1/0A-3"

1-U A1/0
A-3"

1-U A1/0A-3"

1-U A1/0A-3"

1-U A1/0A-3"

1-U A
1/0A
-3"

*

1-U A4/0B-4"

1-U
A1/0
A-3
"

1-U A1/0A-3"

1-U A1/0A-3"

1-U A1/0A-3"

1-U A1/0A-3"

1-U A1/0A-3"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"
*

1-U A4/0B-4"

1-U A1/0A-3"

1-U
A4
/0B
-3"

1-U A4/0B-3"

1-U A4/0B-3"

1-U A4/0B-3"

1-U A4/0B-3"

1-U
A4
/0B
-3"

1-U A4/0B-3"

1-U A4/0B-3"

1-U
A4
/0B
-3"

1-U A4/0
B-3"

1-U A4/0B-3"

1-U A4/0B-3"

1-U A4/0B-3"

1-U A
4/0B-

3"

1-U A4/0B-3"

1-U A4/0B-3"

1-U A
4/0B-

3"

1-U A4/0B-3"

1-U
A4
/0B
-3"

1-U A4/0B-3"

1-U A4/0B-3"

1-U A4/0B-3"

1-U
A4
/0B
-3"

1-U A
4/0B-

3"

1-U A4/0B-3"

1-U
A4
/0B
-3"

1-U
A4/0
B-3
"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

1-U
A1
/0A
-2.
5"

1-U
A1
/0A
-2.
5"

1-U
A1
/0A
-3"

1-U A1/0A-3"

1-U A1/0A-3"

1-U A1
/0A-3

"

1-U A1
/0A-3"

1-U A1/0A-3"

1-U
A1/
0A-
3"

1-U
A1
/0A
-3"

1-U
A1
/0A
-3"

1-U A1/0A-3"

1-U A1/0A-3"

1-U A
1/0A-

3"

1-U A1/0
A-3"

1-U
A1/
0A-
3"

1-U A4/0B-4"

1-U A1/0
A-3"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

1-U
A1
/0A
-2.
5"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

1-U
A1
/0A
-2.
5"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

1-U
A1
/0A
-2.
5"

1-U
A1
/0A
-2.
5"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

1-U
A1
/0A
-2.5
"

1-U A1
/0A-2.5

"

1-U
A1
/0A
-2.
5"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

1-U
A1
/0A
-2.
5"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

1-U
A1/0
A-2
.5"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

*
1-U A4/0B-3"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"
1-U
A1
/0A
-2.
5"

1-U
A1
/0A
-2.5
"

1-U
A1
/0A
-2.
5"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

1-U
A1
/0A
-2.
5"

1-U
A1
/0A
-2.5
"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

*

1-U A4/0B-3"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

1-U
A1
/0A
-2.
5"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

1-U A1/0A
-2.5"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

1-U A
1/0A
-2.5"

1-U
A1/
0A-
2.5"

1-U A4/0B-2.5"

*

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

*
1-U A1/0A-2.5"

*

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

*

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

*

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

* 1-U C014B-1"

*

1-U A1/0A-2"

1-U
A1
/0A
-3"

*

1-U A4/0B-4"

*

1-U A4/0B-3"

*

1-U A4/0B-3"

*

1-U A4/0B-4"

1-U A
1/0A
-3"

1-U A1/0A-3"

1-U A1/0A-3"

1-U A1/0A-3"

1-U A1/
0A-3"

*

1-U A4/0B-4"

*

1-U A4/0B-4"

1-U A
1/0A
-3"

*

1-U A4/0B-3"

*

1-U A4/0B-4"

*

1-U A4/0B-3"

*

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

*

1-U A4/0B-4"

1-U
A1
/0A
-3"

1-U A1/0A-2"

*

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

*

1-U A4/0B-3"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

1-U A1/0A-3"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

*

1-U A4/0B-4"

1-U A1/0A-3"

*

1-U A4/0B-4"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

*

1-U A4/0B-4"

*

1-U A4/0B-4"

1-UA1/0A-2"

*
1-U A4/0B-4"

1-U A1/0A-3"

*

1-U A4/0B-4"

1-U
A1
/0A
-3"

1-U A1
/0A-3

"

1-U
A4
/0B
-3"

1-U
A4
/0B
-3"

1-U A4/0B-3"
1-U A4/0B-3"

*

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

*

1-U A4/0B-3"

1-U
A1
/0A
-2.
5"

*

1-U A4/0B-4"

*

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

*

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

*

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

1-U
A4
/0B
-3"

1-U
A4
/0B
-3"

*

1-U A4/0B-4"

*

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

*

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

1-U A4/0B-2.5"

1-U
A1/
0A-
2.5
"

1-U A4/0B-2.5"

1-U A4/0B-2.5"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

1-U
A4
/0B
-2.
5"

1-U A4/0B-2.5"

*

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

*

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

1-U
A1/0
A-2
.5"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

1-U
A1
/0A
-2.
5"

*

1-U A1/0A-2"

*

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

*

1-U A4/0B-3"

*

1-U A4/0B-2.5"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

1-U
A4
/0B
-3"

1-U A4/0B-3"

*

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

1-U A
1/0A-

2"

*

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

*1-U A1/0A-2"

*

1-U A1/0A-2"

*

1-U A1/0A-2"

*

1-U A1/0A-2"

*

1-U A1/0A-2"

* 1-U A4/0B-3"

*

1-U A1/0A-2"
*

1-U A1/0A-2"

1-U A1/
0A-2"

1-U A1/0A-2"

1-U
A1
/0A
-2"

1-U A1/0
A-2"

*1-U A1/0A-2"

*

1-U A1/0A-2"

*

1-U A1/0A-2"

1-U
A1
/0A
-2.
5"

1-U
A1/
0A-
2.5
"

1-U
A1
/0A
-2.
5"

1-U A1/0A-2"

*

1-U A1/0A-2"

1-U A4/0B-3"

1-U
A1/
0A-
3"

1-U
A1
/0A
-3"

1-U A1/0A-3"

1-U
A4
/0B
-3"

1-U
A1
/0A
-3"

1-U A4/0B-2.5"

1-U A4/0B-
2.5"

1-U A4/0B-2.5"
1-U A4/0B-2.

5"

1-U A4/0
B-2.5"

1-U A4/0B-2.5"

1-U
A4
/0B
-2.
5"

2-U A4/0B-4"

2-U
A4
/0B
-4"

1-U A1/0A-2.5"

P 251815

P 251818

3-U A1/0T-ABC

3-U A1/0T-ABC

3-U A1/0T-ABC

3-U A1/0T-ABC

*

1-U A1/0T-C

3-U A1/0T-ABC

1-2R -NC-B

6-U A750T-ABC

6-U
A7
50
T-A
BC

6-U A750T-ABC

3-U A1/0T-ABC

3-U A1/0T-ABC

1-U A1/0T-B
6-U A750T-ABC

1-UA1/0T-C

3-U A1/0T-ABC

3-U A1/0T-ABC

1-U A1/0T-C

1-U A1/0T-A

1-U
A1
/0T
-C

1-U
A1
/0T
-B

1-U
A1
/0T
-A

1-U
A1
/0T
-A

3-U A
1/0T
-AB
C

3-795A-NC-CBA

3-U A1/0T-ABC

3-U A1/0T-ABC

3-U
A1/
0T-
ABC

1-U A1/0T-C

1-U A1/0T-A

1-U A1
/0T-A

1-U
A1
/0T
-B

1-U A1/0T-B

1-U
A1
/0T
-A

1-U A1/0T-C

1-U A1/0T-C

1-U A1/0T-C

1-U A
1/0T-

C

1-U A1/0T-B

1-U A
1/0T
-C

1-U A1/0T-B

1-U A1/0T-B

1-U A1/0T-B

1-U
A1/0
T-C

1-U A1/0T-C
1-U A1/0T-C

1-U A1
/0T-A

1-U A1/0T-A

1-U
A1
/0T
-B

1-U A1/0T-B

1-U A
1/0T
-B

1-U A1/0T-B

1-U A1/0T-B

1-U
A1
/0T
-A

1-U A1/0T-B1-U A1/0T-C

*

1-U A1/0T-C

1-U
A1
/0T
-C

1-U A1/0T-C

1-U A1/0T-B

1-U
A1
/0T
-B

1-U A1/0T
-B

1-U A1/0T-C

1-U A1/0T-C

1-U A
1/0T
-B

1-U A1/0T-B

1-U
A1
/0T
-C

1-U A1/0T-C

1-U A1/0T-C

1-U
A1/0
T-B

1-U
A1
/0T
-B

1-U
A1
/0T
-A

1-U
A1/
0T-
C

1-U
A1
/0T
-C

1-U A1/0T-C
1-U A1/0T-C

1-U
A1
/0T
-A

1-U
A1
/0T
-C

1-U A1/0T-C

1-U A1/0T-C

1-U A1/0T-A

1-U A1/0T-C

1-U
A1
/0T
-A

1-U A1/0T-A

1-U A1/0T-A

1-U
A1
/0T
-A

1-U
A1
/0T
-C

1-U A1/0T-C

1-U A1/0T-C

1-U A1/0T-A

3-U A1/0T-ABC

3-U A1/0T-
ABC

3-U A1/0T-
ABC

1-U A1/0T-C

32

-99

-99

-99

32

-99

32

32

X X

-99

-99

32

-99

X X

35

25

32

-99

32

-99

X X X X

-99

32

32

32

32

45

32

-99

45 -99

-99

-99

-99

32

32

S LONE TR EE R D

S  TOU R MALINE DR

 JOHN W . P OW ELL BV

S  CLU BHO
U S E CL

BENT TR EECL

 LINK S  R D

S CLU BHOU S ECL

S  CLU BHOU S E CL

S S
AL
VE
S T
R I
N 
LN

S C
LU
BH
OU
S E
CL

 JOHN W . P OW ELL BV

ES O
LITU
DECT

E T
R AD
E W
IND
S  C
T

S TOU R MALINEDR

EE
LYS
IANC

T

EMOS
S Y OA

K CT

X X

JOH
NW
.P O
W E
LL
BV

LINK S  R D

 JO
HN
 W
. P
OW
EL
L B
V

 THEMA CL

S INGLETR EECT

E M
OS S
Y O
AK  C
T

 MASONIC LN

  MOR GAN'S  R U N 

EELYS IANCT

TR ACT 7

MOU NTAINS IDE V ILLAGES  TOW NHOMES

TR ACT 5

THE ES TATES

P INE CANYON ES TATES

TR ACT H

TR ACT 14J

MOU NTAIN ES TATES

TR ACT 14L

TR ACT 14K

U NIT TW O
AT P INE CANYON

TR ACT 4A

P U MP  #10

TR ACT 24G

TR ACT 14M

U NIT 1

TR ACT C

TR ACT 1

TR ACT A

MOU NTAIN V IS TA 

TR ACT 24G

TR ACT 14G

CONDOMINIU M
AT P INE CANYON

3210
A

3241
8

3229
9

3224
57

3231
60

1627
59

3302
28

3290
29

1668
5

1679
8

X X
13

1696
27

1699
13

1714
16

1708
33

1715
31

1709
38

X X
38

X X
12

X X
24

X X
44

X X
10

X X
29

3342
52

1728
6

X X
14

X X
50

3305
65

1734
80

X X
45

X X
3

1741
55

1743
68

3366
55

X X
59

1751
69

X X
4A

X X
7

X X
5

1578
2

X X
25

3296
65

3247
34

1608
54

1675
7

1624
53

3271
40

1676
4

1690
19

1699
29

1706
17

X X
36

X X
39

X X
30

1726
81

X X
4

X X
60

1758
77

1750
91

3374
56

1767
14M

1591
12

1607
56

3263
38

1692
2

3291
45

1705
23

1713
24

X X
33

X X
34

X X
26

3310
48

X X
42

3302
47

X X
32

1749
17

3326
50

3358
54

3350
53

X X
2

1742
92

3361
61

X X
14G

1766
76

3230
16

3320
67

1601
15B

1671
6

3278
30

1683
9

1689
21

1695
12

1700
34

1695
36

X X
11

X X
16

X X
14D

X X
15

1749
18

X X
51

X X
48

1742
79

3235
61

1615
58

3230
27

X X
24

3303
48

1682
20

1684
3

3279
42

1703
14

3070
X X

X X
X X

1703
44

X X
21

X X
28

X X
41

3318
49

1719
46

1727
66

1733
83

X X
14E

X X
14F

1750
78

X X
57

1759
70

X X
C

1600
4

1608
5

3239
62

3254
32

1616
52

1648
50

3299
47

1687
11

3295
46

1698
18

1697
22

1700
1

3287
44

1711
15

1712
25

X X
40

1710
41

1717
39

X X
24G

1718
40

1728
8

1725
82

1749
20

X X
49

X X
1

1735
67

3313
64

1741
2648
2691
24G

1749
85

3750
3842
H

X X
1

X X
22

1570
1

3253
7

1599
13

1620
6

3101
Q

3255
36

3259
37

3267
39

1704
26

X X
X X

1707
30

1701
37

X X
35

X X
9

X X
23

1728
5

X X
7

X X
52

X X
53

X X
14J

1741
84

X X
47

1741
56

3325
63

X X
58

3238
17

X X
X X

1590
3

3289
14

3284
64

X X
23

3243
63

3308
66

3251
35

1600
55

3266
31

1636
51

3307
49

1691
10

1689
28

3283
43

1692
35

1694
43

1702
42

X X
37

1716
32

X X
22

X X
25

X X
27

1711
45

X X
43

3334
51

X X
13

X X
31

1749
19

X X
46

1741
54

3353
62

X X
13

1757
86

1946
256

10

5

7

13

14

15

6

11

9

3

2

8

1

12

4

1

1

2

2

3

3

4

4

5

5

6

6

7

7

8

8

9

9

10

10

G G

F F

E E

D D

C C

B B

A A

Arizona Public Service
OH & UG ELECTRIC

GIS MAPPING DEPARTMENT
STATION 4028
PO BOX 53933
PHOENIX AZ 85072-3933
E-MAIL mapprint@apsc.com

NOTICE:

APS Proprietary and 
  Confidential Information

DO NOT COPY, SCAN, OR DIGITIZE
DO NOT DISTRIBUTE
COPYRIGHT © 2002
    ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE
ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

THE UTILITY LOCATIONS SHOWN ON
THIS MAP ARE APPROXIMATE ONLY
AND ARE NOT RELIABLE FOR
CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES. IN
ADDITION, THERE MAY BE FACILITIES
IN EXISTENCE DUE TO RECENT
CONSTRUCTION THAT ARE NOT SHOWN.
FOR ACTUAL FIELD LOCATIONS
CONTACT ARIZONA BLUE STAKE CENTER
AT 1-800-782-5348 (1-800-STAKE-IT).

21N 7E 34 NW

1 " = 100 '
Scale:

Date:

1:1,200

8/7/2020

Wire Code Legend
Overhead:
3 –R 002W  –NC –ABC

P hases
Neutral P osition
W ire Code
# of Conductors

Wire Code Legend
Overhead:
3 –R 002W  –NC –ABC

P hases
Neutral P osition
W ire Code
# of Conductors

Underground:
3 – U A750T –5”–CO

Encasement*
S ize of Conduit*
W ire Code
# of Conductors

Underground:
3 – U A750T –5”–CO

Encasement*
S ize of Conduit*
W ire Code
# of Conductors

(* No Conduit S ize or Encasement = Direct Buried)

Overhead P rimary

Overhead Transmission

U nderground P rimary
U nderground Transmission
U ndergound 230 kV  Transmission

Overhead S econdary
Overhead S ervice
U nderground S econdary
U nderground S ervice

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! Overhead Communication Line
! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! U nderground Communication Line

Conduit / Duct / Direct Buried

Electric Line Features Legend

X X Overhead Aerial Cable

E le c tri c  D e v i c e  F e a t u r e s  L e g e n d  
 Overh ea d Capa citor Ba nk
 P a d Moun ted  Capa citor
 Fe ed er Circuit Breaker
 Fuse Discon ne ct
 One An chor Guy

 OH/U G Ch an ge  in W ire/Conduit S ize

 Overh ea d T ap Mid S pa n

 P M Auto Tra nsfe r En closure
 P M S w itching En closure

 P M Jun ction Enclosure

 P M S e ctiona lizin g Enclosure

 P M T e rmin ation En closure

 OH Auto Tra nsfe r S w itch

 OH R e closer 

 OH S e ctiona lize r

 P a d Moun ted  S e ctiona lizer

 Metal P ole - AP S -Ow n ed  -  Not Join t U se

 Metal P ole - AP S  Ow ned  - Join t U se

 W ood P ole - AP S  Ow n ed  - Not Joint U se

 W ood P ole - AP S  Ow n ed  - Joint U se

 R ise r/Tra nsition Assemb y
OH P rimary Meter

 S e rvice  En try P oin t

 P a d Moun ted  P rimary Mete r

 Dusk-To-Daw n L ig ht


S treet Ligh t

 S ubsta tion

 OH Blad e Disconn ect

 OH Ga ng-Operate d Air Break S w itch

 Ope n P oint

 Man hole - Octag on

 Man hole - R e ctang ular
 P rimary P ull Box - Ma n Acce ssib le
 P rimary Junction Box

 S e cond ary Jun ction Box

 P rimary P ull Box

 V a ult Build in g

 OH V olta ge  R e gula tor

 P a d Moun ted  V olta ge  R e gula tor

 OH AP S  X FR  Ba nk - On e U n it

 OH AP S  X FR  Ba nk - T w o U n its

 OH AP S  X FR  Ba nk - T hre e U nits

 P a d Moun ted  1 P h  X FR

 P a d Moun ted  Duplex X FR

 P a d Moun ted  3P h X FR
 S ubsurface X FR  



 
 

Lumen Conflict Memorandum 
 

Terra Technologies LLC | www.terratechllc.net 

Illinois | Minnesota | Colorado| Washington| Utah | Arizona 

Date: March 28, 2023  

To:  Johan Eriksson (SWI/Ardurra) 

       Jeriksson@ardurra.com 

 

 

From: Kevin Wagner, Terra Technologies LLC  

Subject: Lumen – Conflict Memo – Project No. 222418 – Juniper Point – Parcel 

2, Flagstaff 

 

Lumen Project No. P-424326 AZ 

 

  

Terra Technologies is in receipt of the preliminary plat. Below you will see an overview of 

Lumen facilities within the project limits, and a brief project overview along with 

comments regarding any Lumen facilities with respect to the proposed project. 

 

Inventory of Lumen Facilities 

Lumen has facilities within the project limits.  Terra Technologies anticipates that due to 

the site improvements that the Lumen facilities (ducts, SAI & handhole) should not be 

impacted.  Plan markups have been attached showing approximate locations of Lumen 

facilities. 

 

Project Overview 

The design intent of this project appears to be developing a vacant parcel of land for a 

residential subdivision. 

 

Facility Locations and Impacts 

Plans have been reviewed for conflicts with Lumen facilities based on NDS mapping 

which show a general location of utility locations.  Neither Terra Technologies LLC nor 

Lumen makes any representation regarding the completeness or accuracy of vertical 

and horizontal utility information used to determine conflicts or no conflicts.   

 

Based on Lumen mapping and the construction drawings provided there appear to be 

no conflicts. 

 



 
 

Lumen Conflict Memorandum 
 

Terra Technologies LLC | www.terratechllc.net 

Illinois | Minnesota | Colorado| Washington| Utah | Arizona 

Utility conflicts with this private development project will be 100% reimbursable.  

Payment for design and mitigation of conflicts is to be coordinated prior to work 

commencing. 

 

In accordance with state law, Blue Staking for location of Lumen facilities must be 

completed prior to any construction.  When crossing Lumen facilities, you will be 

required to pothole to determine depth and maintain a minimum of 12 inch vertical 

and horizontal separation from facilities. 

 

Pursuant to state law, support and protection is required for all Lumen facilities during 

construction. 
 

Should the Contractor locate or expose an unknown Lumen facility, please contact 

Lumen as soon as possible. 
  

In the event Lumen facilities need to be removed/relocated, some or all cost may be 

at the expense of the sponsoring agency. 

 

If you have any questions or concerns regarding this review, feel free to contact me 

immediately, either by phone or email at the number/address provided below. The 

contractor is also responsible for contacting Lumen prior to construction around the 

Lumen facilities. 

 

Notification List 

 

Terra Technologies LLC 

Kevin Wagner, Project Manager 

kwagner@terratechllc.net 

815-245-9640 

Lumen (Engineer ll) 

Manny Hernandez 

Manuel.Hernandez@Lumen.com 

112 N Beaver Street 

Flagstaff AZ, 86001 

Work: 928-779-4935 

Lumen (SR Account Mgr – BDP/MDU-GF) 

John West 

John.West1@Lumen.com 

Work: 480-423-4737 

 

 



6

C
O

VE
R

 S
H

EE
T

CVR
1

PRELIMINARY PLAT
FOR

JUNIPER POINT - PARCEL 2
FLAGSTAFF, ARIZONA

SOURCE OF PROJECT INFORMATION

PROJECT OWNER: PROJECT DEVELOPER:

FEMA DESIGNATION

PROPERTY INFORMATION:

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

PROJECT ENGINEER:

12''W

8''WPROJECT
LOCATION

UTILITY CONFLICT

    

PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION,
BIDDING OR RECORDING

TOTAL RESIDENTIAL UNITS

TOTAL NET ACREAGE

DENSITY TRACKING TABLE

SURVEYOR:

EARTHWORK SUMMARY

BASIS OF BEARING

RESOURCE PRESERVATION

http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
rrodriguez
Text Box
Lumen Markups

rrodriguez
Text Box
Wire Center: FLGSAZMA



S

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

S

S

W

S

S

S

W

W

W

W

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

W

6

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 B

O
U

N
D

AR
Y

EB01
2

PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION,
BIDDING OR RECORDING

KEYMAP

http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com


W
W

S
S

>
>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>>>>>>
>>

>
>

>
>

>
>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

> W
>>>

>

>

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S S
S

S
S S S S S

S S

S

8''
W

8'
'W

8'
'W

8'
'W

8'
'W

8''W12''W12''W
12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

SS
S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

12
''W

8''W

SS

S S

S

S

S

S
S

S

S

S

S

12
''W

12
''W

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

S

S

S

S

W

W

W

W

6''W

107

33

32

31

30

29

28

27

26

25

24

23

22

21

20

19
18 17 16

15

5
105

14 102 13
12 11

10

9

8

7

6

3

4

1

2

101

60

103
47

39

58

54

46

38

108

53

45

37

52

44

36

57

51

43

35

56

50

42

34

55

49

41

106

59

104

48

40

100

6

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

PL
AT

PP01
3

PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION,
BIDDING OR RECORDING

FUTURE
PARCEL 3

AT JUNIPER
POINT

PARCEL 1

J.
W

. P
O

W
EL

L 
BO

U
LE

VA
R

D

CLEAR VIEW ZONE CALCULATIONS

ID # MAJOR STREET
MANEUVER
DIRECTION

DESIGN SPEED
(VMAJOR)1

TIME GAP
tg

(unadjuste
d)2

GRADE
≤ 3%

MULTIPLE LANE
CROSSINGS

NO. OF
LANES4

TIME GAP
tg(adjusted)

2

INTERSECTION
SIGHT DISTANCE

(ISD3)
STOPPING SIGHT
DISTANCE (SSD)

D1 LONE TREE RD Right 40 6.5 Yes No 1 6.5 385 305
D2 LONE TREE RD Left 40 7.5 Yes Yes 4 9.0 529 305

Notes:
(1) The major road speed limits (VMAJOR in MPH) are based on existing conditions in the project vicinity.

(2) The time gap values, adjusted (tg (adjusted) in seconds) and unadjusted (tg (unadjusted ) in seconds), are based on the current site plan and the AASHTO-Geometric
Design of Highways and Streets Exhibits 9-54 and 9-57 for D1 and D2 and Exhibits 9-66 and 9-67 for M1. The first lane crossed does not warrant an adjustment to
the time gap.

(3) The intersection site distance (ISD in feet) calculations are based on Equation 9-1 in the AASHTO-Geometric Design of Highways and Streets.
Equation 9-1: ISD=1.47*VMAJOR*tg

(4) The number of lanes crossed may include medians converted to equivalent lanes. The number of lanes provided in the table includes the first lane crossed.
(5) If the approach grade is greater than 3%, add 0.1 seconds for each percent grade.

Impervious Area & LID Analysis (Parcel 2 Only)
LID Required Depth (ft)

0.0833

Basin ID
Existing Basin

Area (sf)
Proposed Basin

Area (sf)

Existing
Impervious Area

(sf)

Proposed
Impervious Area

(sf)

Net Impervious
Area (sf)

Required LID
Volume (cf)

B1 291,727 147,610 0 0 0 0
B2 1,197,693 1,849,183 0 393,802 393,802 32,817

Notes:
1. Gross required 1" LID volume is for impervious area including proposed streets (internal roadways and Lone Tree to Wash),
parking, sidewalks and buildings.

Concept Plat Open Space Analysis
Total Area of Parcel 2 Subdivision
(sf) 763,616
Required Open Space (sf) (15%) 114,542
Required Civic Open Space (5%) 38,181
Provided Open Space (sf) 130,793
Provided Civic Open Space 47,227
1. Open Space is active and passive recreation areas,
landscape areas, and community gardens according to the
Flagstaff Zoning Code 10-40.30.30.

VE
SP

ER
 D

R

SORA LN

FARALLO
N DR

SLO
PE AND

 D
RAINAG

E EASEM
ENT1% - 2%

RO
W

ROADWAY & ROW

5'
PARK
WAY

5'
SIDE
WALK

2' 2'2'5'
PARK
WAY

5'
SIDE
WALK

2'
37'

SLO
PE AND

 D
RAINAG

E EASEM
ENT

30.5' 30.5'

61' MIN.

2:1
2:1

RO
W

33'
TRAVEL LANE

2-WAY

3" ABC MIN.
(TYP.)

1% - 2%

℄

2:1
2:1

TYPICAL SECTION
RESIDENTIAL LOCAL "WIDE" (COF 10-09-037)

http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
rrodriguez
Rectangle

rrodriguez
Ellipse

rrodriguez
Note Box Label

rrodriguez
FreeText
 SAI

rrodriguez
Line

rrodriguez
Line

rrodriguez
Line

rrodriguez
Line

rrodriguez
Callout
SAI # QF FDH 3005 E JW POWELL BLVDHandhole # 30773(Verify Location)

rrodriguez
tduc

rrodriguez
tduc

rrodriguez
Callout
1 Duct w/1 Fiber Cable - 216 (Verify Location) 

rrodriguez
tduc



6

D
ET

AI
LS

CP02
4

PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION,
BIDDING OR RECORDING

FRONTAGE TYPES

SLO
PE AND

 D
RAINAG

E EASEM
ENT1% - 2%

RO
W

ROADWAY & ROW

5'
PARK
WAY

5'
SIDE
WALK

2' 2'2'5'
PARK
WAY

5'
SIDE
WALK

2'
33'

SLO
PE AND

 D
RAINAG

E EASEM
ENT

28.5' 28.5'

57' MIN.

2:1
2:1

RO
W

17'
TRAVEL LANE

2-WAY
6'

PARKING
6'

PARKING

3" ABC MIN.
(TYP.)

1% - 2%

℄

2:1
2:1

TYPICAL SECTION
RESIDENTIAL LOCAL (COF 10-09-038)

PARCEL 2 AT JUNIPER POINT SINGLE FAMILY HOME

SLO
PE AND

 D
RAINAG

E EASEM
ENT

RO
W

31'
RAISED LANDSCAPE MEDIAN

12'
TRAVEL
LANE

5'
PARK
WAY

10'
FUTS 2'3'

72'

51.5'

103'

6.5'
BIKE LANE

AND
BUFFER

12'
TRAVEL
LANE

6.5'
BIKE LANE

AND
BUFFER

6'
SIDE
WALK

5'
PARK
WAY

2'

LC ROADWAY & ROW

2:1
2:1

SLO
PE AND

 D
RAINAG

E EASEM
ENT

RO
W

2:1
2:1

1% - 2% 1% - 2%

LONE TREE INTERIM - CROSS SECTION
NOT TO SCALE

51.5'

2'

SLO
PE AND

 D
RAINAG

E EASEM
ENT

RO
W

12'
RAISED

LANDSCAPE
MEDIAN

12'
TRAVEL LANE

5'
PARK
WAY

10'
FUTS 2'3'

72'

51.5'

103'

4.0'
BIKE LANE AND BUFFER

12'
TRAVEL LANE

4.0'
BIKE LANE AND BUFFER

6'
SIDE
WALK

5'
PARK
WAY

2'

LC ROADWAY & ROW

2:1
2:1

SLO
PE AND

 D
RAINAG

E EASEM
ENT

RO
W

2:1
2:1

1% - 2% 1% - 2%

LONE TREE - CROSS SECTION
NOT TO SCALE

51.5'

2'12'
TRAVEL LANE

12'
TRAVEL LANE

http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com


8''
W

8'
'W

8'
'W

8''W12''W12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

12''W

S
S

S

S

S

S

S

S

8''W

S

S

S

12
''W

S

S

S

S

S

W

W

6''W

6

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

N
R

PP
 - 

PA
R

C
EL

 2

NRPP1
5

VIEW TOWARDS
SAN FRANCISCO

PEAKS VIEW TOWARDS
PINE CANYON

GOLF CLUB

VIEW TOWARDS
FOREST AREA

VIEW TOWARDS
JUNIPER POINT

PARCEL 1

G
EN

ER
AL

 P
AT

H
 O

F 
SO

LA
R

 E
XP

O
SU

R
E

PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION,
BIDDING OR RECORDING

LEGEND

RESOURCE BANK FOR JUNIPER POINT

AVAILABLE
WITHIN JP
PHASE 21  PARCEL 1 PARCEL 2  PARCEL 3

REMAINING
AVAILABLE
WITHIN JP
PHASE 2

SLOPE AREA (SF) FOR 17-24.99% 1,570,822 535 -96,538 -28,827 1,445,992
SLOPE AREA (SF) FOR 24.99-34.99% 765,231 6,166 -3,793 -230 767,374
SLOPE AREA (SF) FOR >35% 275,109 0 0 0 275,109
TREE CANOPY AREA (SF) 2,050,828 35,124 -125,168 1,224 1,962,008

PARCEL 1 AT
JUNIPER POINT

PARCEL 3 AT
JUNIPER POINT

http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com


8'
'W

8'
'W

12''W

12''W

12''W

S

S

S

S

S

S

W

6

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

N
R

PP
 - 

PA
R

C
EL

 2

NRPP2
5

PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION,
BIDDING OR RECORDING

LEGEND

PARCEL 1 AT
JUNIPER POINT

PARCEL 2 AT
JUNIPER POINT

PARCEL 3AT
JUNIPER POINT

http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com
http://www.ardurra.com


E

Pin
e

Knol l
D

r

40

E

Zuni D
r

S
Y

a
q

u
i

D
r

S
C

lu
b

h
o

u
se

C ir

S
K

o
fa

D
r

M
as

onic
L

n

S
L

o
n

e
T

re
e

R
d

40

Coconino Comm
College-Lone

Tree

S
Clubho

u
s e

C
ir

E John W Powell Blvd
E John W Powell Blvd

S
T

o
urm

alin
e

D
r

E
Tellu

r id
e Dr

S
P

in
y

o
n

J
a

y
D

r

LUMEN Relocate Utility Map

Esri Community Maps Contributors, County of Yavapai, Esri, HERE,
Garmin, SafeGraph, GeoTechnologies, Inc, METI/NASA, USGS,
Bureau of Land Management, EPA, NPS, US Census Bureau, USDA

Local Copper Aerial Route

Aerial,In Service

Local Copper UG Route

Underground,In Service

Underground,Pending Placement

Fiber Routes

Aerial,In Service

Underground,In Construction

Underground,In Service

3/22/2023, 9:51:14 AM

0 0.2 0.40.1 mi

0 0.3 0.60.15 km

1:10,032

© map data Lumen
INTERNAL USE ONLY: This map data is for internal LUMEN use only and is NOT to be disseminated outside of LUMEN without authorization from RISK MANAGEMENT. Dissemination of this data outside of LUMEN without authorization will be considered a violation of company policy.



110 W. Dale Ave. Phone #: 928-773-0354 Email: kfleishman@ardurra.com  
Flagstaff, AZ 86001 

March 10, 2023 Job #22120 

PROJECT: Parcel 2 at Juniper Point 

UTILITY CONFLICT LETTER

TO: UniSource  FROM: Shephard-Wesnitzer, Inc., an Ardurra 
 Company (SWI) 

 Martin Conboy    Kayla Fleishman 
 1459 E. Butler Ave.  110 W Dale Ave 
 Flagstaff, AZ 86001  Flagstaff, AZ 86001 

In conformance with the City of Flagstaff subdivision development process, we have enclosed the Preliminary 
Plat for the Juniper Point – Parcel 2 development prepared by Shephard-Wesnitzer, Inc. The site is situated on 
the north side of J.W. Powell Boulevard. 

Note that this is currently an undeveloped area with few or no anticipated conflicts. Please keep in mind while 
reviewing how future service could be provided to the proposed site. Please provide any comments and return 
them to us as soon as possible.  Please also provide maps of any existing Unisource utilities in the vicinity of 
the site for coordination purposes.  Thank you for taking the time to complete, sign, date, and return this 
document.  Your transmittal may be by mail or email as indicated on the bottom of this page. 

_____ APPROVED without comment and map provided. 

_____ APPROVED with comment, as follows, and map provided. 

_____ NOT APPROVED with comment, as follows. 

________________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SIGNED:  ___________________________________ TITLE:  __________________________________ 

AGENCY: ___________________________________ DATE:  __________________________________ 

X

Gas Engineering Supervisor

UNS Gas, Inc.              March 13, 2023



.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

..

.

.

.

.

.

..

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

.

..

.

.

.

.

.

.

. .

.

.

!(W

¤Ï

¤ Ï

!. ¤Ï

!.!.?'

!.

2"

4"

6"
6"

2"

6"
6"

2"

6"

6"
E JOHN WESLEY POWELL BLVD

S R
OC

KP
OI

NT
 LN

Source: Esri, Maxar, Earthstar Geographics, and the GIS User Community



1-8
00

-S
TA

KE
 IT

UN
S G

as
, In

c. 
- J

un
ipe

r P
oin

t

0 100 20050 Feet

1 inch = 100 feet





   6. B.  6. B.                       

CITY OF FLAGSTAFFCITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORTSTAFF SUMMARY REPORT
To:To: The Honorable Mayor and Council
From:From: Michelle McNulty, Planning Director
Co-Submitter:Co-Submitter: Sarah Darr, Housing Director and Nicole Antonopoulos,

Sustainability Director
Date:Date: 04/05/2024
MeetingMeeting
Date:Date:

04/24/2024

TITLETITLE
Land Availability and Suitability Study and Code Analysis Project (LASS+CAP) Project UpdateLand Availability and Suitability Study and Code Analysis Project (LASS+CAP) Project Update
and Discussionand Discussion
 

STAFF RECOMMENDED ACTION:STAFF RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Discussion item only

Executive Summary:Executive Summary:
Project Overview:Project Overview:

Flagstaff's growth in population, coupled with a housing crisis that has limited housing choice and affordability
and a climate crisis that is disrupting weather patterns and threatening communities, has exemplified the need
to better plan and coordinate internally and externally.  The City's housing emergency, as well as the
increased threats of wildfire, flooding, drought, and other climate impacts, has presented a vital need for
Flagstaff to better understand the extent of land that is available in Flagstaff for housing development, the
barriers that exist to developing new housing, and the changes that can be made to the City's development
code and processes to encourage and increase the supply of new housing while recognizing the City's
Carbon Neutrality Plan goals.  This work supports several City housing and climate goals in the City's 10-Year
Housing Plan, Carbon Neutrality Plan, and other documents while acknowledging the tensions between other
community assets and values.

The Land Availability and Suitability Study and Code Analysis Project (LASS+CAP) is a multi-pronged
initiative to address critical long-term planning and resilience needs. There are two components to this
project: the Land Availability and Suitability Study (LASS) and the Code Analysis Project (CAP).

1. The purpose of the LASS is to understand what land is available within the Flagstaff city limits and
peripheral areas for development and redevelopment/infill and the barriers that exist.

2. The Code analysis portion of the project will analyze City codes applied to development projects and will
identify what works well and identify the barriers to meeting the City's housing and climate goals and
policies.

The LASS and the CAP are being completed concurrently. The LASS is a land inventory study to identify
what lands are left to develop or redevelop as residential and identifying the opportunities and/or barriers for
their development or redevelopment. While the LASS includes both privately and publicly owned lands, the
study does not make commitments or obligations for any of the parcels identified, rather this is a data
snapshot to understand how much land is potentially available to meet our residential needs. Any private
property owner whose property has been included in the inventory is welcome to reach out to staff to discuss
the project in more detail. The CAP is a code analysis looking at all development codes and processes to
ensure all are working towards our housing and sustainability goals. While being done concurrently, the LASS



is a standalone document representing technical data from a point in time that will inform the CAP project, as
well as the Regional Plan Update, regarding scenario planning and policy setting. 

This effort is being completed in partnership between Community Development's Planning and Development
Services and Housing Sections, the Sustainability Division, and the Transportation Engineering Section. It will
provide a much-needed base for high-level coordination between numerous other City Divisions/Sections
such as Fire, Building Safety, Economic Vitality, Water Services, PROSE, in addition to the primary City
partners, and Mountain Line.

Land Availability and Suitability Study Land Availability and Suitability Study 
The draft LASS report was completed using the following methodology:

Establishing a preliminary buildable land inventory for the City of Flagstaff and peripheral areas in the
project's study area;
Determining which areas are buildable by applying screening criteria to the study area based on
environmental constraints; and
Identifying and assessing "opportunity sites" from the resulting net buildable land inventory. These are
sites that present unique opportunities for the creation of housing.

Through the Land Availability and Suitability Study, the consultant has established the following key findings
about Flagstaff's land availability:

Flagstaff and the peripheral areas that make up the LASS area contain approximately 8,125 acres of
vacant land spread across 2,242 parcels. Of this land area, approximately 6,735 acres are residentially
zoned.
The study area also contains approximately 5,399 acres of underutilized land spread across 1,822
parcels. These lands contain minimal structures that have a low enough improvement Full Cash Value
(FCV) to suggest that economic forces could encourage their redevelopment for a greater or higher
value use, such as housing.
In total, the study area contains approximately 7,062 acres of vacant buildable land and approximately
4,865 acres of underutilized buildable land. These lands represent the lands most likely to develop or
redevelop in the future.
Approximately 13% of the vacant land within the study area is environmentally constrained by stream
corridors, wetlands, steep slopes, and floodplain or floodways. These lands may not be conducive to
development or redevelopment, including for housing.
The most common environmental constraints in Flagstaff are steep slopes and floodplains and
floodways. This analysis considered steep slopes as any slope 25% or greater, which impacted nearly
7% of the study area's land. However, Flagstaff currently regulates development on slopes 17% or
steeper through the Resource Protection Overlay, which represents a significant barrier to housing
development on sites that may be able to support development. As the LASS+CAP project team
continues to evaluate code section modifications that, if implemented, could result in greater residential
yield, the steep slope provisions of the Resource Protection Overlay may offer such an opportunity. 
Floodplain and floodway areas impact over 4% of the study area land. It is likely that this number will be
reduced through the eventual construction of the Rio de Flag Flood Control Project. Nonetheless,
floodplain and floodway within Flagstaff currently presents a significant challenge to the development of
housing in the study area's vacant parcels.

In general, Flagstaff has a significant amount of buildable land within its city limits and in its immediate
periphery that can be used for the development of housing. However, much of it will require being rezoned to
a higher density zoning designation and is lacking the necessary infrastructure to support higher density
development.

It is expected that this analysis will help inform both the CAP and the Regional Plan update by identifying the
areas that could most benefit from additional density and infill, among other changes that could positively
impact housing yield. For example, the CAP may recommend zoning code or development review process
changes that impact the density allowed in different zoning districts or when Water Sewer Impact Analyses
(WSIA) or Traffic Impact Analyses (TIA) are required. Some observations of note include:



Currently, only individual Opportunity Site redevelopment on the smallest of downtown or Southside sites
may not trigger WSIAs, and even then, this only applies if existing infrastructure appears to be sufficient
to meet new development needs. Any larger developments will all require WSIAs.
Currently, most of the higher opportunity level sites will require TIAs. Developers in the community have
noted that this can be a lengthy and expensive process with difficult-to-predict mitigation. Changes to
how the City manages traffic information and TIA processes could improve the likelihood and
affordability of more significant housing development projects.
Some of the largest sites that may become entirely new development areas tend to be zoned Rural or
Estate Residential, which leads to very spread-out development that only serves high income groups.
Whether these sites are currently owned by other public entities or private owners, the next steps in
Table 25 of the LASS report recommend the City investigate ways to help encourage at least some
areas within these large sites have higher density.

The draft LASS document will help provide specific locations and examples of where significant housing
opportunities exist and therefore serves as a resource for considering when, where and how future code
amendments, zone changes, collaborative development planning and master planning efforts will make the
most impact in the City.

Code Analysis Project -- Code Diagnostic  Code Analysis Project -- Code Diagnostic  
The Code Analysis Project is a multi-phase project that will identify code barriers, provide opportunities to
remove barriers, and recommend code revisions that will support the achievement of the Flagstaff Carbon
Neutrality Plan and Housing Plan goals. The Project will be completed through three deliverables including a
code diagnosis, exploration of concept code changes, and then a final report with recommendations. All
phases of this project will be presented to supporting Commissions (Planning & Zoning, Housing,
Sustainability, and Transportation). This three-prong approach will allow staff in conjunction with City Council
to identify smaller code changes that may be processed prior to the final recommendations.  The draft Code
Diagnostic is the first deliverable in the Code Analysis Project which is attached for Commission and Council
review. 

The scope of the Code diagnosis, concepts, and recommendations addresses the following codes and any
other identified affected codes, standards, policies, or plans as identified by the City:

Fire Code
Engineering Design Standards and Specifications for New Infrastructure
Zoning Code
General Plans and Subdivisions
Public Ways and Property
Building Regulations
Transportation Impact Analysis Manual
Incentive Policy for Affordable Housing
 

Additionally, an Equity and Displacement Vulnerability Assessment was conducted to assist with identifying
code barriers.  The consultants prepared a demographic and spatial analysis of the city to assess which
neighborhoods are more vulnerable to the potential negative impacts of Code changes in accelerating
gentrification and residential displacement.

Each code barrier was reviewed as follows:

Relevant Goal/Policy: Relevant Goal/Policy: Identify all of the relevant goals/policies that the code provision presents a barrier to
meeting.

Magnitude and ImpactsMagnitude and Impacts: Evaluate the magnitude of the barrier and discuss the specific impact it has on the
ability of the City to meet its policy goals. The Consultant Team will coordinate to use a consistent method for
evaluating the magnitude of a barrier. The magnitude of the barrier may vary depending on the policy goal. If
so, that variation will be identified. The barriers were graded on the following scale:

Critical Barrier:Critical Barrier:  Code provisions that render itrender it  physically or economically infeasiblephysically or economically infeasible to develop a



project that contributes to the City's housing and/or climate goals. These code provisions generally are
barriers independent of other standards or requirements and apply broadly to many types of
developments or locations.
Major Barrier:Major Barrier:  Code provisions that significantly reduce the feasibilitysignificantly reduce the feasibility  of developing a project that
contributes to the City's housing and climate goals. The degree to which these provisions are barriers
may be contingent on other standards or requirements and the barrier may apply to a narrower range of
development types of locations.
Minor Barrier: Minor Barrier: Code provisions that may have a limitedmay have a limited negative impact on the feasibility negative impact on the feasibility of
developing a project that contributes to the City's housing and climate goals. The degree to which these
provisions are barriers may be contingent on other standards or requirements and the barrier may apply
to a narrower range of development types of locations.

Please note that the attached draft does not adequately address the cascading climate barriers identified in
the Key Outcomes for each code barrier identified.  Additional work is necessary to refine how the climate
barriers identified in the Carbon Neutrality Plan will be addressed in the final draft of this report. 

Co-Benefits: Co-Benefits: Identify areas, where relevant, reducing or removing a code barrier may have co-benefits or
synergistic impacts on both housing and climate goals.

TensionsTensions: Additionally, identify any potential tensions or trade-offs between policy goals that may arise as
part of the assessment of code barriers. The consultant team identified two types of conflicts:

Housing/Climate TensionsHousing/Climate Tensions: Removing the barrier would advance one of the City's two primary goals
but may constrain the ability to meet the other policy goal.
Tensions with Other Policy GoalsTensions with Other Policy Goals: Removing the barrier may have a negative impact on the City's
ability to meet other policy goals. For example, reducing minimum parking requirements may reduce the
cost of housing development, but may also impact neighborhood livability. 

Feasibility of Alternatives: Feasibility of Alternatives: The consultant team, along with staff, will determine and discuss whether there
are alternative regulations or standards that are reasonably feasible for the City to implement. Feasibility
includes physical, legal, or economic feasibility. Specific alternatives will not be proposed at this stage.

By including all the above information for each code barrier, the City Council will be able to make more
informed decisions and prioritize the most critical barriers to achieving housing and climate goals.

Project Outreach Project Outreach 
These draft reports and a presentation were presented to the larger city staff steering committee, and the
Housing, Sustainability, Transportation, and Planning and Zoning Commissions. At the time of this staff
report, only feedback from the Steering Committee meetings was available and is discussed in the attached
memo (Attachment A). Additional feedback from the respective commissions and Council will be incorporated
into the draft reports before finalizing.

Information:Information:
A link to the draft reports and appendices can be found here: https://www.flagstaff.az.gov/4888/Land-
Availability-Suitability-StudyCode-

Attachments:Attachments: Appendix A - Steering Committee Notes
Presentation

https://www.flagstaff.az.gov/4888/Land-Availability-Suitability-StudyCode-


LASS+CAP Steering Committee 
Combined Notes 
March 6 and March 26, 2024 

  

 

1 
 

Meeting Subject: LASS+CAP Steering Committee #1 (LASS DISCUSSION 
ONLY) 
Meeting Date: 3/6/2024 2:30 PM 
Participating Divisions and Sections: 

• Planning 

• Housing 

• Sustainability 

• Engineering 

• Real Estate 

• City Attorney’s office 

• Building Safety 

• PROSE 

• Solid Waste 

• Water Services 

• Fire 

• Mountain Line 
 

Key Themes + Discussion Topics 
 

1. Flagstaff has 2 different types of opportunity sites: 1) specific vacant and underdeveloped 
opportunity sites in the LASS report, and 2) retrofitting existing low-density areas (downtown 
and suburban neighborhoods) to get additional density.  

a. Flagstaff has a lot of underutilized land due to existing low-density development 
patterns (either through single-family zoning or through practice). Some low-density 
areas may also be good candidates for adding additional density, but they were not 
included in the LASS as undeveloped or underdeveloped sites. We should not lose sight 
of this, especially given that Flagstaff has a very low average density compared to our 
peer cities. 

b. Approaches to foster developments in specific sites, like the opportunity sites identified 
in the LASS report, include extending our infrastructure, which is cost-intensive and may 
not always fix housing and climate issues (depending on the specific site location and 
infrastructure readiness level).  

c. Retrofitting existing subdivisions to get additional density performs a lot better in the 
Regional Plan scenario planning process (with respect to metrics and outcomes from the 
10-year housing plan and CNP) than developing on the periphery.  

d. Encouraging infill in downtown is different than encouraging infill in suburban 
neighborhoods. And different neighborhoods will have different approaches to get to 
medium density.  
 

2. AZ State Land owns most of the vacant land. We need to set up these large parcels to have an 
easier path to a rezone so that when these properties develop, the type of development is 
more likely to advance city housing and climate goals.  

a. This can happen through Regional Plan land use designations and potentially other 
planning processes, in addition to the TIA (Traffic Impact Analysis) and WSIA (Water 
Sewer Impact Analysis) process. 



LASS+CAP Steering Committee 
Combined Notes 
March 6 and March 26, 2024 

  

 

2 
 

b. AZ State Land wants the highest and best use for each property to auction land at a 
higher price. Land can go for a higher price if we show higher density, mixed-use, etc. is 
possible and doable before these parcels go to auction.  
 

3. The following infrastructure topics are important and will be discussed further in the Regional 
Development Cost Reduction Strategy portion of the LASS.  

a. If we fund infrastructure upfront to support high-density housing, such as through 
bonds and other funding mechanisms, we are much more likely to get higher-density 
development that advances housing and climate goals.  

i. The current developer fee model for infrastructure development will likely 
continue the large-lot, high-income subdivisions we currently see.  

ii. If we let the fact that it is expensive to maintain and build new infrastructure, 
we are on our way to becoming a luxury community. 

b. We need larger conversations about infrastructure capacity—particularly water and 
sewer. Can our infrastructure support the desired density? 

c. In downtown, our aging water and sewer infrastructure and tight areas may not 
support the highest level of density/redevelopment on all of the opportunity sites 
identified in the LASS. 

i. This is something we need more information on.  
ii. How do we get more density and maintain our historic downtown core? 

iii. Infrastructure is another challenge – how can we increase it to support 

reinvestment in downtown? 

d. We need to tie the Regional Plan to the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP).   
i. State law requires the CIP to coordinate with the Regional Plan. We need to 

make the Regional Plan 2045 and the CIP work together to identify and prioritize 
infrastructure investments.  

e. It would also be helpful to identify costs (how many people are benefitting vs. cost per 
resident) for developing infrastructure to serve different sites, and how reduction 
strategies might impact costs.  

f. Further Discussion 
i. What type of development are we going to build infrastructure to support? 

1. Just single-family homes? 
2. Single family + other land uses? 
3. High density? 

ii. We need to make sure we get the biggest bang for our buck with respect to 
where we build infrastructure.  

iii. How do we incentivize the development we want, such as giving additional 
points for development in transit corridors.  

1. Examples of what other communities have done would be helpful.  
iv. BOLD goals require BOLD strategies, which require BOLD implementation!!!! 

 
4. There are larger questions about whether we want to grow up or grow out. This relates to 

larger LASS/CAP and the Regional Plan conversations.  



LASS+CAP Steering Committee 
Combined Notes 
March 6 and March 26, 2024 

  

 

3 
 

a. For example: The development of large AZ State Land parcels on the periphery relates 
to larger questions about building up vs. out, and where the city wants to encourage 
development. 

 
5. LASS is focused on residential development, but we can’t lose sight of community needs to 

support residential, like job centers and parks.  
a. Meeting notes:  

i. We need to make sure we set aside land for neighborhood-scale parks and 
open space as vacant and underutilized sites develop.  

ii. The best metric to measure park access is everyone being within a 10-minute 
walk to a park or open space area.  

iii. The City is in the process of updating the Parks Master Plan, but it will likely be a 
year or more before it is finished (the current plan is from 2013).  

iv. Flagstaff doesn’t currently have impact fees for parks and open space. Without 
these, we don't have a good way to set aside and pay for new park space.  

v. It is important to plan for connectivity between parks and open space, and think 
of open space as a larger network that people can use to travel throughout the 
city and to larger open space areas and national forest land (as opposed to just 
creating isolated parks/open space areas).  

b. Additional discussion 
i. We need to plan for and finance parks.  

ii. Industrial and commercial centers may be more vulnerable to redevelopment 
because existing infrastructure already better serves them. 

iii. If we clean up code to help tackle climate and housing emergencies, it will 
benefit all end-users, including commercial, industrial, and parks. 
 

6. There needs to be a continuing conversation about environmental hazards. Fire and post-fire 
flooding risk are important policy issues that the LASS/CAP, the Regional Plan, and other 
planning documents, policies, and projects can make progress on.  

a. Flagstaff is in the Wildland Urban Interface (WUI), so everywhere is vulnerable to fire. 
But, we need to be more explicit about how this risk happens.  

i. Where are the most vulnerable vacant and underutilized parcels to fire and 
post-fire flooding? Vulnerability relates to the location of drainages and the 
status of tree cover/density, among other factors.  

b. What are the factors that foster catastrophic structure fires? There is emerging research 
on this.   

i. We need to talk about how many trees are very close to houses in 
neighborhoods throughout Flagstaff.  

ii. Every neighborhood is vulnerable to catastrophic structure fire under the right 
wind conditions - that assumption should be part of the LASS/CAP, the Regional 
Plan, and other policy discussions and documents.  

iii. These discussions need to consider the four types of fire transmission in the 
WUI:  

1. Vegetation - vegetation 
2. Vegetation to structure 
3. Structure - vegetation 



LASS+CAP Steering Committee 
Combined Notes 
March 6 and March 26, 2024 

  

 

4 
 

4. Structure - structure 
c. Costs of building Firewise vs. not Firewise. Research shows that building Firewise from 

the start may not be much more expensive than building not Firewise.  We need more 
information about how this applies to Flagstaff. 

d. Further discussion 
i. There are places that have existing entitlements where people can build, but 

there are also larger questions about how we build, especially in vulnerable 
areas.  

ii. Once fire maps are updated, we will need to figure out how they impact land 
use and infrastructure planning, such as building design, easements to 
accommodate post-fire flooding, questions about wastewater and where it 
goes, etc.  

iii. The more we build, the more water security we will need to fight fire. How does 
water security play in? 

 

Meeting Subject: LASS+CAP Steering Committee #2 (Draft CAP Code 

Diagnostic Report) 

Meeting Date: 3/26/2024 11:00 AM 
Participating Divisions and Sections:  
 

• Planning 

• Housing 

• Sustainability 

• Engineering 

• Real Estate 

• City Attorney’s office 

• Building Safety 

• PROSE 

• Public Works 

• Water Services 

• Fire 

• Mountain Line 

 
Key Themes + Discussion Topics  

1. The review of best practices needs to include communities that deal with snow seasons. 
2. The review of street design standards needs to also include collector and arterial streets. 
3. The review of the TIA analysis needs to be stronger in regards to the TIA impact on climate 

goals, including adding the focus on active transportation modes as Transportation Demand 
Management (TDM).  Need other alternative than development impact fees. 

4. Code barriers should take into account second homes and short-term rentals. Incentivizing long-
term rentals should be part of future discussions about how to address the barriers.  

5. Future code changes to address barriers may result in budget changes for infrastructure 
improvements.  The barriers are not always code but the funding resources available. 



LASS+CAP Steering Committee 
Combined Notes 
March 6 and March 26, 2024 

  

 

5 
 

6. The report needs to include the full list of state law preemptions that affect the city’s ability to 
meet housing and climate goals, including short-term rentals, second homes, natural gas, 
recycling, etc. 

7. More internal conversation is necessary on snow removal, street width standards, parkways, 
and landscaping, on street parking requirements, and fire code standards.  All of these factors 
contribute to overall street width, which relates to the cost of developments 

8. Need to prioritize our priorities.   
9. Engineering standards and public improvement standards in the Zoning Code can be a barrier to 

infill development and missing middle housing due to meter and infrastructure improvement 
requirements.  

10. It is important to examine the Development Agreement process as part of the larger review of 
development processes.  

11. The LASS/CAP project aims to make Flagstaff a safer place to live while also meeting climate and 
housing goals.  

 



April 16, 2024

PROJECT UPDATE



AGENDA

1. Project Purpose and Goals

2. Land Availability / Site Suitability Findings

3. Code Diagnosis Findings

4. Next Steps

5. Discussion Questions

• Approach and Methodology

• Zoning and Subdivision Codes
• Engineering, Transportation Impact Analysis, and Fire Access Standards
• Building and Fire Code



1. PROJECT PURPOSE 

AND GOALS 



Multi-pronged initiative to address critical long-term planning and resilience needs:

• Partnership between Planning, Housing, Sustainability, Mountain Line 

• Provides much-needed base for high-level coordination between numerous City 

Divisions

• Highly coordinated with Engineering (Development Engineering and Transportation), 
Fire, Building Safety, Economic Vitality, Water Services, and others

PROJECT INTRODUCTION



The Land Availability and Suitability Study (LASS) focuses on: 

• What land is available in Flagstaff, and development potential and barriers

The Code Analysis Project (CAP) will conduct an in-depth analysis of:

• Development code and process, through the lens of City Council commitments to 

address Housing and Climate

• Analysis of what’s working and what is not 

* This analysis will test theory against approved projects.

PROJECT SCOPE



2. LAND AVAILABILITY / SITE SUITABILITY 

PROJECT FINDINGS



PURPOSE AND GOALS - LASS

Why doing? 

• Limited land left to develop and many needs

• Provides context for recommending “right-sized” 

code amendments

• Informs Regional Plan process



HIGH-LEVEL PROCESS

Appropriately-
zoned properties 
in the study area

Inventory vacant 
and underutilized 

sites

From inventory, 
identify 

“opportunity sites”



Across the study area: 

• Vacant Land: approximately 8,125 acres, spread 

across 2,242 parcels. Approximately 7,000 of these 

acres are unencumbered by environmental 

constraints.

• Steep slopes represented the greatest environmental 

constraint on sites. 

• 6,735 acres of the vacant land are residentially zoned. 

• Underutilized Land: approximately 5,399 acres, spread 

across 1,822 parcels. Approximately 4,865 of these 
acres are unencumbered by environmental 

constraints. 

LASS FINDINGS



OPPORTUNITY SITES



GENERAL CONCLUSIONS –
OPPORTUNITY SITES

• 36 of the 51 Sites are Commercially-zoned 
(totaling approximately 21 acres.)

• Rural or Estate Residential – 9 sites, 
approximately 2552 acres.

• Greatest potential for housing yield is in larger 
tracts requiring rezoning and significant 
infrastructure planning/investment.



3. CODE ANALYSIS PROJECT: 

APPROACH AND METHODOLOGY



PURPOSE AND GOALS - CAP

Development codes are a key tool for 
achieving housing and climate goals.

• Plans and policies call for bold, urgent action.

• Codes are not functioning as an effective tool to 

implement plans and policies. 

• Codes may prioritize other goals above housing 

and climate.

• Codes may have been written in a different 

context and are now out of sync with today’s 

economic and climate realities.

City’s plans and policy goals

Codes not aligned with policy goals

Poor housing and climate outcomes



THREE PHASES OF THE CODE ANALYSIS

DIAGNOSTIC CONCEPTS
RECOMMENDATIONS 

AND TESTING

Identify and evaluate barriers, 

opportunities, conflicts.

Deliverable: 
Code Diagnostic Report

Timing: 
February/March 2024

Develop concepts and 

approaches for code updates.

Deliverable: 

Code Concepts Report

Timing: 

Summer 2024

Recommend specific code 

updates and test the impact of 

implementing the changes.

Deliverable: 

Code Recommendations and 
Impacts Report

Timing: 
Late Fall/Winter 2024



DISTILLING POLICIES AND GOALS INTO CLEAR OUTCOMES

Housing

• Abundant Housing Supply

• Diversity of Housing Types

• Lower Cost Market Rate Housing Production

• Income-Restricted Affordable Housing Production

• Mixed Use Development and Neighborhoods

• Infill Development and Compact Land Use Patterns

• Equity and Fair Housing

Climate

• Community Resilience, Health and Safety

• Walkable Neighborhoods

• Safe and Inclusive Networks for Walking 

and Biking

• Transit Oriented Development and Transit 

Ridership

• Clean Air Status

• Adaptive Reuse and Preservation of 

Existing Housing Stock

PLANS

KEY OUTCOMES IMPACTED BY CODES

• Inclusive Recreation

• Electric Mobility

• Clean Electricity

• Building Fuel Switching

• Reduced Building Energy Use

• Sustainable Consumption

• Water Security

• Healthy Forests and Open Spaces

• Carbon Dioxide Removal



SCOPE OF THE CODE ANALYSIS

Municipal Code

• Title 4: Building Regulations

• Title 5: Fire Code

• Title 8: Public Ways and Property

• Title 10: Zoning Code

o Affordable Housing Incentives

o Residential Sustainable Building Incentives

• Title 11: General Plans and Subdivisions

• Title 13: Engineering Design Standards

• Development Review Processes

Technical Manuals

• Transportation Impact Analysis Manual

• Incentive Policy for Affordable Housing

• Mountain Line Design Guidelines for 

Transit Facilities



• Close review of code, process, and plan documents

• Discussions with City staff

• Development stakeholder meetings – soliciting feedback from local developers, 

engineers, and architects regarding potential barriers to affordable and sustainable 

residential development in the City 

• A review of development case studies in the City

• Residential development site, building, and unit modeling

METHODOLOGY



4. CODE DIAGNOSTIC KEY FINDINGS:

Zoning and Subdivision Codes



Where is the buildable land? What zones have the most 
capacity for new housing?

CONTEXT

13

20

24

26

82

0 20 40 60 80 100

Commercial Zone (CB, HC, CS, CC)

HR High Density Residential

MR Medium Density Residential

MH Manufactured Housing

R1 Single-Family Residential

2,352 
acres

RR

ER

Acreage of Buildable Land on 

LASS Opportunity Sites



Where does the Regional Plan call for new housing to be 
prioritized to meet climate and housing goals?

CONTEXT

Regional Plan calls for infill 

development in existing 
neighborhoods

• Commercial zones are prominent in 

existing neighborhoods.

• Medium and high-density zones (MR, 

HR) are also important



Where does the Regional Plan call for new housing to be 
prioritized to meet climate and housing goals?

CONTEXT

Infill must be balanced with 

opportunities for new housing 
supply on greenfield sites

• How can the city ensure that 

rezoning and subdivision 

processes keep pace with 

housing needs?

• When rezoning occurs, will new 
development meet housing and 

climate goals?



Where are the households that are vulnerable to displacement 
if housing production does not keep pace?

CONTEXT

• Displacement risk evaluated using 

demographic and housing data

• Housing production has been found 

to prevent displacement

• New housing supply is needed both 
inside and outside vulnerable 

neighborhoods

Low Population

Late Stage

Mid Stage

Early Stage



Where are the households that are vulnerable to displacement 
if housing production does not keep pace?

CONTEXT

Higher density zones are 

disproportionately mapped to 
vulnerable neighborhoods

• If lower density zones do not keep pace with 

demand, this may shift demand to higher density 
zones

• To mitigate displacement, focus on reducing 

barriers to housing production and diversity in all 
zone districts.

Late Stage

Mid Stage

Early Stage



Overview of Major Barriers and IssuesCONTEXT

CITYWIDE ISSUES

• Review Procedures. Zoning map amendment and subdivision 

review process are deterring development and slowing the 
pace of housing production.

• Affordable Housing and Sustainable Building Incentives. 
Incentive programs are not economically compelling and 

undercut by other provisions.

• Resource Protection. The RPO is not optimized to balance 
housing production goals with environmental goals.

• Minimum Parking Requirements. Critical barrier to housing 

affordability, development feasibility, and climate goals for 
higher density housing in transit-served areas.

• High Occupancy Housing. Requiring a conditional use permit 

and other specific development standards are a critical barrier 
to high density housing. 

Low density and restrictions on housing type are 

inconsistent with housing and climate goals.

Higher density allowance needed to encourage 
smaller, more affordable units.

Could provide for the higher densities that 
support goals, but parking requirements and 

HOH regulations severely limit this potential.

R1/R1N

MR

ZONE-SPECIFIC ISSUES

COMM. 

ZONES



Review Procedures: Zoning Map Amendment, SubdivisionCITYWIDE 

ISSUE

The zoning map amendment and subdivision review 

processes are slowing the pace of housing production. 

• Requiring a Development Agreement is unnecessarily complex, 
limits flexibility, and deters rezoning.

• Development Agreements often focus on addressing citywide 

needs that are difficult for one project to satisfy

• The Concept Plat phase of subdivision process adds 

unnecessary cost and delay 

• City Council approval of all subdivisions adds unnecessary 

uncertainty, cost, and delay.



Single-Family Residential ZoneR1/R1N

• Minimum lot size and minimum street width 

standards limit achievable density.

• Infeasible to deliver housing affordable to 
moderate income families at R1 density level

• Restrictive use regulations and low density 

discourage “missing middle” housing.

• R1 density levels are inconsistent with the 

City’s climate goals.

Wide streets consume a 

large portion of site area

Minimum lot size (6,000 sf) prevents 

adding more lots to this site

max density

6.0 
units per acre

achievable density

4.7
units per acre



Single-Family Residential ZoneR1/R1N

• Minimum lot size and minimum street width 

standards limit achievable density.

• Infeasible to deliver housing affordable to 
moderate income families at R1 density level

• Restrictive use regulations and low density 

discourage “missing middle” housing.

• R1 density levels are inconsistent with the 

City’s climate goals.

Min Feasible Price

$942,800
for 2,000 sf unit

Min Household Income

275%
of Area Median Income



Single-Family Residential ZoneR1/R1N

• Minimum lot size and minimum street width 

standards limit achievable density.

• Infeasible to deliver housing affordable to 
moderate income families at R1 density level

• Restrictive use regulations and low density 

discourage “missing middle” housing.

• R1 density levels are inconsistent with the 

City’s climate goals.



Single-Family Residential ZoneR1/R1N
max density

6.0
units per acre

transit-supportive density

8-15
units per acre

• Minimum lot size and minimum street width 

standards limit achievable density.

• Infeasible to deliver housing affordable to 
moderate income families at R1 density level

• Restrictive use regulations and low density 

discourage “missing middle” housing.

• R1 density levels are inconsistent with the 

City’s climate goals.



Medium Density Residential ZoneMR

Variety of housing types allowed, but max density encourages larger, more expensive units.

Density

14
units per acre

Density

14
units per acre

Smaller, “stacked flats” are more 

affordable, but low max density 

results in inefficient site
Larger units (townhomes) 

are more likely to be 

developed at this density

Min Feasible Price

$541,000
for 880 sf unit

Min Feasible Price

$751,000
for 1,660 sf unit



CITYWIDE 

ISSUE

The RPO is not optimized to balance housing 

production goals with environmental goals.

• Requires a large share of resources to be 
preserved on each site

• Does not allow forest and slope resource 

areas to be contiguous

• May increase fire risk due to proximity of 

residential structures to forest resources

• Limits density below the base zone in 

addition to requiring preservation areas

Resource Protection Overlay Zone



Resource Protection Overlay ZoneCITYWIDE 

ISSUE

The RPO is not optimized to balance housing 

production goals with environmental goals.

• Requires a large share of resources to be 
preserved on each site

• Does not allow forest and slope resource 

areas to be contiguous

• May increase fire risk due to proximity of 

residential structures to forest resources

• Limits density below the base zone in 

addition to requiring preservation areas



Commercial Zones

The code makes it challenging to build 

high-density housing in commercial zones 

• Low maximum density (29 units per acre) is 
a critical barrier to lower cost housing and 

encourages an inefficient use of land.

• Requiring a CUP for a residential projects 
is not the most effective approach for 

balancing the desire for commercial uses.

HC-CB-

CS-CC

Density

29
units per acre

Density is maximized with only a two-

story building unless applying for a 

conditional use permit for HOH.

Large amount of ground floor 

commercial space required unless 

applying for a conditional use permit



Minimum Parking RequirementsCITYWIDE 

ISSUE

Parking requirements are a critical barrier to 

housing and climate goals for high density 

housing in transit-served areas.

• Multi-level parking structures are costly and 

infeasible on smaller sites. Lower cost parking 

solutions are infeasible at higher densities.

• Higher greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions due to 

embodied carbon in concrete parking structures.

• Recent research has found that high parking 

requirements may directly encourage higher 
vehicle ownership.

Wrapping the units around a parking 

garage results in large structures that 

do not fit on small sites

Multi-level parking structure costs 

5-10x to build than surface parking

Min Feasible Rent

$3,880
for 780 sf unit



High Occupancy Housing RegulationsCITYWIDE 

ISSUE

The Conditional Use Permit requirement for 

high density housing in commercial zones is 

deterring infill development.

• The CUP process raises uncertainty and risk 

of denial, deterring investment

• Dilute the effectiveness of the Affordable 
Housing and Sustainability Incentives

• Nullify the benefits of the Transect Zones

• Some standards add unnecessary costs, 

complexity, and equity concerns for multi-

family housing.

HOH was implemented in 

response to large multi-

family projects.

But also applies to this 12-

unit condo building



Affordable Housing IncentivesCITYWIDE 

ISSUE

• The costs of providing affordable units outweigh the 

benefits. Modeled financial returns were lower for 

projects that used the incentives, despite higher 

densities.

• There are alternative pathways to achieving similar 

benefits, diluting the relative value of the incentives.

Base Density

29
units per acre

12% Affordable

34
units per acre

20% Affordable

42
units per acre



Sustainable Building IncentivesCITYWIDE 

ISSUE

Some sustainability features could be required, and 

others lack compelling incentives.

• Features such as water resource protection and 
electric vehicle charging may be more appropriate 

to require for most developments.

• All-electric buildings are essential to the City’s 
carbon neutrality goals, but many developers 

continue to build duel-fuel (electric/gas) projects.

• Density bonus is not a compelling incentive for 

many projects because it is too low or not 
achievable while complying with other standards.

Images of sustainability features:

rainwater harvesting
EV charging

heat pumps



Tensions with Other Policy GoalsCONTEXT

Community 
Character and 

Design 

Infrastructure 
Sufficiency/Funding 

Historic 
Preservation 

Parking 
Management 

Resource 
Protection 

Public Involvement 

Addressing these barriers may 

require reconciling tensions with 

the City’s other policy goals.

• The report identifies these six 

policy goals as potentially 

impacted by addressing these 

code barriers.

• Strategies for reconciling 

tensions with these policy goals 

will be evaluated in the Code 

Concepts and Code 
Recommendations reports.



5. CODE DIAGNOSTIC KEY FINDINGS:

Engineering, Transportation Impact Analysis, and 

Fire Access Standards



Some elements of current WSIA and TIA processes can be barriers to development. 

• The requirement to conduct WSIAs and TIAs is often premature in the development 

process, requiring significant at-risk investment.

• There is an over-reliance on individual projects to fund transportation infrastructure 

versus a more reliable funding mechanism through the use of impact fees

Desire to allow narrower streets and alternative sidewalk and planter strip designs. 

• Noted that it has been difficult to obtain City approvals for modifications to the base 

road designs. 

Stakeholder Comments - Examples 



WSIA Process: 

• Costly and required for most developments 

• In some areas of the City, existing infrastructure may have known issues – old 

and undersized mains in downtown (and the potential for developers to be 

required to take on broader improvements) discourages dense infill and 

redevelopment that might be desired in downtown. 

Flow Metrics:

• Metrics for assuming water and sewer demand in Tables 13-09-002-01 and 13-
09-003-02 are from 1980 and may be overly conservative to actual use. 

Potential BarriersWater and Sewer



• Street Cross-Sections are wide, complex, and stakeholders have noted them 

to be highly prescriptive

• Winter Parking Ordinance leads to off-street parking, even when streets are 
designed to accommodate parking

• Cul-de-Sacs are commonly used and generally an inefficient development 

pattern

• Setbacks on Alleys conflict with the benefits of alleys promoting building-

forward, pedestrian-oriented neighborhoods. The setbacks are wider than 

needed yet often not wide enough to accommodate parking 

• Driveway standards for multi-family development are the same as for 

commercial development, triggering large driveway and parking areas that may 

be over-built for small (3-4 unit) projects. 

Code IssuesTransportation and Access



• Developers may decrease number of units to avoid triggering TIA thresholds if 

known off-site liabilities exist, reducing housing supply

• Concern about equity amongst development projects – standardized impact 
fees could help resolve this

Potential IssuesTIA Requirements



6. CODE DIAGNOSTIC KEY FINDINGS:

Building Code



• Affordable Housing and Construction Costs. Building codes have a minor role in 

current escalations in construction costs. Research supports current drivers of higher 

cost are tied to labor, supply chain disruptions, higher financing cost and demand.

• Adaptive Reuse. Complex and highly variable issue that will vary project-by-

project. A multitude of codes are triggered that typically challenge a project’s viability.

• Sustainability. Misalignment between stakeholders and city goals. Sustainability is 

seen by the development community as a nice-to-have, expensive, non-critical feature. 

Education on actual costs and benefits is needed to inform this narrative.

• Carbon Neutrality. Need to elevate building performance beyond code through 

energy and water efficiency. There is no path to carbon neutrality without renewable 

energy. Policies needs to align with changes in market such as grid decarbonization.

• Incentives. City housing and sustainability incentives are not enticing to overcome 

financial barriers. Requires a suite of local, state and federal and utility incentives.

Building Code Key Findings



7. NEXT STEPS



LASS + CODE DIAGNOSIS OUTREACH

• March 6, 2024:    Steering Committee Meeting: LASS

• March 26, 2024:  Steering Committee Meeting: 

Code Diagnosis

• March 28, 2024:  Sustainability Commission 

• March 28, 2024:  Housing Commission

• April 3, 2024:      Transportation Commission 

• April 10, 2024:    Planning and Zoning Commission

• April 16, 2024:    Council work session

Continue informing the CAP process!



8. DISCUSSION


	Agenda
	AI_7934_PZ-24-00013: Pine Canyon Lot 344, Single Family HOH
	       ATT_Staff Report
	       ATT_Draft Conditional Use Permit No. PZ-24-00013
	       ATT_Draft Notice of Decision
	       ATT_Draft Prop 207 Waiver
	       ATT_Conditional Use Permit Application
	CCF01102024.pdf
	344Conditional Use Permit_App_202303161427427830 (003) (002).pdf
	Conditional Use Permits (CUP)
	Review
	Schedule
	Submission Requirements
	Application Fee
	Signatures
	Proposed Development Plans
	Location/Vicinity Map
	Findings for Granting a CUP

	Process to Schedule and Notify Affected Property Owners of a Public Hearing before the Planning and Zoning Commission
	Step 1: Schedule Planning and Zoning Commission Hearing
	Work with the Planning Development Manager handling the CUP case to schedule a hearing before the P&Z Commission.
	Step 2: Notification to Affected Property Owners
	The applicant for public hearings in the City of Flagstaff shall post signs and notify affected property owners by mail as prescribed by Section 10-20.30.080 of the City of Flagstaff Zoning Code to assist in providing adequate notice to interested par...
	The applicant must also erect and maintain a sign on the subject property no later than 15 days prior to the public hearing, and to update the hearing information on the sign until final disposition of the case.  It shall also be the responsibility of...
	Step 3: Documentation of Notification to Affected Parties

	Expiration
	A CUP expires one year from the date of P&Z approval unless a grading or building permit is obtained or the use is established.  The P&Z may grant a one-time extension of 180 days following a formal request for such an extension by the applicant.  The...
	Appeals
	Public Record
	For Further Information


	       ATT_Narrative
	       ATT_Public Participation Report
	       ATT_Vicinity Map
	       ATT_Site Plan
	Sheets
	A-001 - architectural site plan
	A-002 - architectural site plan enlarged
	A-100 - floor plan - first
	A-101 - floor plan - basement
	A-102 - roof plan
	A-110 - light & power plan - first
	A-111 - light & power plan - basement
	A-200 - elevations
	A-201 - elevations
	A-300 - building sections
	A-301 - building sections
	A-500 - assemblies and construction details
	A-501 - construction details
	A-502 - construction details
	A-600 - door schedule
	A-601 - window schedule
	CS - cover sheet
	G-001 - general notes


	       ATT_Floor Plans
	Sheets
	A-001 - architectural site plan
	A-002 - architectural site plan enlarged
	A-100 - floor plan - first
	A-101 - floor plan - basement
	A-102 - roof plan
	A-110 - light & power plan - first
	A-111 - light & power plan - basement
	A-200 - elevations
	A-201 - elevations
	A-300 - building sections
	A-301 - building sections
	A-500 - assemblies and construction details
	A-501 - construction details
	A-502 - construction details
	A-600 - door schedule
	A-601 - window schedule
	CS - cover sheet
	G-001 - general notes


	       ATT_Elevations
	Sheets
	A-001 - architectural site plan
	A-002 - architectural site plan enlarged
	A-100 - floor plan - first
	A-101 - floor plan - basement
	A-102 - roof plan
	A-110 - light & power plan - first
	A-111 - light & power plan - basement
	A-200 - elevations
	A-201 - elevations
	A-300 - building sections
	A-301 - building sections
	A-500 - assemblies and construction details
	A-501 - construction details
	A-502 - construction details
	A-600 - door schedule
	A-601 - window schedule
	CS - cover sheet
	G-001 - general notes


	AI_7936_PZ-22-00192-01 Juniper Point Parcel 2 Preliminary Plat
	       ATT_Staff Report
	       ATT_Application
	       ATT_Preliminary Plat
	       ATT_Vicinity Map
	       ATT_Utility Letters
	AI_7919_Land Availability and Suitability Study and Code Analysis Project (LASS+CAP) Update and Discussion
	       ATT_Appendix A - Steering Committee Notes
	       ATT_Presentation 
	Slide 1
	Slide 2: AGENDA
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6
	Slide 7: PURPOSE AND GOALS - LASS
	Slide 8: HIGH-LEVEL PROCESS
	Slide 9: LASS FINDINGS
	Slide 10: OPPORTUNITY SITES
	Slide 11: GENERAL CONCLUSIONS –  OPPORTUNITY SITES
	Slide 12
	Slide 13: PURPOSE AND GOALS - CAP
	Slide 14: THREE PHASES OF THE CODE ANALYSIS
	Slide 15: DISTILLING POLICIES AND GOALS INTO CLEAR OUTCOMES
	Slide 16: SCOPE OF THE CODE ANALYSIS
	Slide 17
	Slide 18
	Slide 19: Where is the buildable land? What zones have the most capacity for new housing?
	Slide 20: Where does the Regional Plan call for new housing to be prioritized to meet climate and housing goals?
	Slide 21: Where does the Regional Plan call for new housing to be prioritized to meet climate and housing goals?
	Slide 22: Where are the households that are vulnerable to displacement if housing production does not keep pace?
	Slide 23: Where are the households that are vulnerable to displacement if housing production does not keep pace?
	Slide 24: Overview of Major Barriers and Issues
	Slide 25: Review Procedures: Zoning Map Amendment, Subdivision
	Slide 26: Single-Family Residential Zone
	Slide 27: Single-Family Residential Zone
	Slide 28: Single-Family Residential Zone
	Slide 29: Single-Family Residential Zone
	Slide 30: Medium Density Residential Zone
	Slide 31: Resource Protection Overlay Zone
	Slide 32: Resource Protection Overlay Zone
	Slide 33: Commercial Zones
	Slide 34: Minimum Parking Requirements
	Slide 35: High Occupancy Housing Regulations
	Slide 36: Affordable Housing Incentives
	Slide 37: Sustainable Building Incentives
	Slide 38
	Slide 39
	Slide 40
	Slide 41
	Slide 42
	Slide 43
	Slide 44
	Slide 45
	Slide 46
	Slide 47: LASS + CODE DIAGNOSIS OUTREACH
	Slide 48


